### CITY OF POMPANO BEACH Broward County, Florida

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE OF **POMPANO** BEACH, CITY FLORIDA. APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE CONTRACTS FOR CONSULTING/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH AND MCCAFFERTY **BRINSON** CONSULTING, LLC, **MATHEWS** CONSULTING, INC., GLOBALTECH, INC., TETRA TECH, INC., AND CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC., FOR **CONTRACT** CONTINUING **FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES: PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY**; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, pursuant to law, ten (10) days' notice has been given by publication in a paper of general circulation in the City, notifying the public of this proposed ordinance and of a public hearing in the City Commission Chambers of the City of Pompano Beach; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing before the City Commission was held pursuant to the published notice described above, at which hearing the parties in interest and all other citizens so desiring had an opportunity to be and were, in fact, heard; now, therefore,

#### BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA:

SECTION 1. That five (5) Contracts for Consulting/Professional Services between the City of Pompano Beach and McCafferty Brinson Consulting, LLC, Mathews Consulting, Inc., Globaltech, Inc., Tetra Tech, Inc., and Carollo Engineers, Inc., for Continuing Contract for Engineering Services, copies of which Agreements are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full, are hereby approved.

**SECTION 2.** That the proper City officials are hereby authorized to execute said Contracts.

SECTION 3. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

**SECTION 4.** This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage.

PASSED FIRST READING this 12th day of January , 2016.

PASSED SECOND READING this 8th day of December , 2015.

LAMAR FISHER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

ASCELETA HAMMOND, CITY CLERK

/jrm

11/23/15

L:ord/2016-60

### CONTRACT FOR CONSULTING/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This Contract is made as of the day of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as "CITY," and McCafferty Brinson Consulting, LLC () an individual, () a partnership, (X) a corporation, authorized to do business in the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant".

**WHEREAS**, the Consultant is able and prepared to provide such services as City requires under the terms and conditions set forth herein; and

**WHEREAS**, the City Commission has approved the recommendation that Consultant be employed by the City and authorized the negotiation of contractual terms.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the mutual promises herein, the City and the Consultant agree as follows:

#### ARTICLE 1 – SERVICES/CONSULTANT AND CITY REPRESENTATIVES

The Consultant's responsibility under this Contract is to provide professional consulting services as more specifically set forth in RLI [or RFP] **No.**<u>L-40-15</u> attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein in its entirety.

The Consultant's representative shall be McCafferty Brinson Consulting, LLC

The CITY's representative shall be City Engineer or designee,

#### ARTICLE 2 – SCHEDULE/PERIOD OF SERVICE

The CONSULTANT shall adhere to the schedule given in each work authorization after receiving the "Notice to Proceed."

Reports and other items shall be delivered or completed in accordance with the detailed schedule set forth in individual Work Authorizations or Task Orders as negotiated.

The Term of this Agreement shall be for an initial period of one (1) year from the date of execution by both the City and the Consultant. The contract shall be automatically renewed for four (4) additional one-year periods unless the General Services Director or the successful bidder receiving award shall give notice to the other party of intent not to renew for the additional period, which notice must be delivered by certified mail and must be received at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the initial contract period. All terms, prices and conditions shall remain firm for the initial period of the contract, and any renewal period.

#### **ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENTS TO CONSULTANT**

- A. City agrees to pay Consultant in consideration for its services described herein. It is the intention of the parties hereby to ensure that unless otherwise directed by the City in writing, Consultant will continue to provide services as specified in Exhibit A for the term of this Contract.
- B. <u>Price Formula</u>. City agrees to pay Consultant as negotiated on a Task Order or Work Authorization basis. Each task order or work authorization shall specifically identify the scope of the work to be performed and the fees for said services.
- C. Fee Determination. Each individual Task Order or Work Authorization may be negotiated for fees to be earned by Time and Materials with a Not to Exceed Amount, Lump Sum, or a combination of both methods for subtasks contained therein. The total amount to be paid by the City under a Task Order or Work Authorization shall not exceed specified amounts for all services and materials including "out of pocket" expenses as specified in Paragraph E below and also including any approved subcontracts unless otherwise agreed in writing by both parties. The Consultant shall notify the City's Representative in writing when 90% of the "not to exceed amount" for the total Task Order or Work Authorization has been reached. The Consultant will bill the City on a monthly basis, or as otherwise provided. Time and Materials billing will be made at the amounts set forth in Exhibit B for services rendered toward the completion of the Scope of Work. Where incremental billings for partially completed items are permitted, the total billings shall not exceed the estimated percentage of completion as of the billing date. It is acknowledged and agreed to by the Consultant that the dollar limitation set forth in this section is a limitation upon and describes the maximum extent of City's obligation to pay Consultant, but does not include a limitation upon Consultant's duty to perform all services set forth in Exhibit A for the total compensation in the amount or less than the guaranteed maximum stated above.
- D. Invoices received by the City from the Consultant pursuant to this Contract will be reviewed and approved in writing by the City's Representative, indicating that services have been rendered in conformity with the Contract, and then will be sent to the City's Finance Department for payment. All invoices shall contain a detailed breakdown of the services provided for which payment is being requested. Invoices shall be paid in accordance with the Florida State Statutes governing this process. In addition to detailed invoices, upon request of the City's representative, Consultant will provide City with detailed periodic Status Reports on the project.
- E. "Out-of-pocket" expenses shall be reimbursed up to an amount not to exceed amounts included in each Work Authorization or Task Order. All requests for payment of "out-of-pocket" expenses eligible for reimbursement under the terms of this Contract shall include copies of paid receipts, invoices, or other documentation acceptable to the City's Representative and to the Finance Department. Such documentation shall be sufficient to establish that the expense was actually incurred and necessary in the performance of the Scope of Work described in a Work Authorization and this Contract. All out-of- pocket, reimbursables and expenses shall be billed at actual amount paid by Consultant, with no markup.
- F. <u>Final Invoice</u>: In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, the Consultant will clearly state "<u>Final Invoice</u>" on the Consultant's final/last billing to the City. This final invoice shall also certify that all services provided by Consultant have been properly performed and all charges and costs have been invoiced to the City. Because this account will thereupon be

closed, any and other further charges not properly included on this final invoice are waived by the Consultant.

#### ARTICLE 4 – TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE

Signature of this Contract by the Consultant shall also act as the execution of a truth in negotiation certificate, certifying that the wage rates, overhead charges, and other costs used to determine the compensation provided for this Contract are accurate, complete and current as of the date of the Contract and no higher than those charged the Consultant's most favored customer for the same or substantially similar service. Should the City determine that said rates and costs were significantly increased due to incomplete, non-current or inaccurate representation, then said rates shall be adjusted accordingly.

#### **ARTICLE 5 – TERMINATION**

This Contract may be cancelled by the Consultant, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City's Representative, in the event of substantial failure by the City to perform in accordance with the terms of this Contract through no fault of the Consultant. It may also be terminated, in whole or in part, by the City, with or without cause, immediately upon written notice from the City's Representative or the City Manager to the Consultant. Unless the Consultant is in breach of its Contract, the Consultant shall be paid for services rendered to the City's satisfaction through the date of termination. Ten Dollars (\$10.00) paid to the Consultant, the adequacy of which is acknowledged, is given as specific and independent consideration of the City's right to terminate this Contract for convenience. Termination for cause by the City shall include, but not be limited to, failure to suitably perform the work, failure to continuously perform the work in a manner calculated to meet or accomplish the objectives of the City as set forth herein, or multiple breach of the provisions of this Contract notwithstanding whether any such breach was previously waived or cured. After receipt of a Termination Notice and except as otherwise directed by the City the Consultant shall:

- A. Stop work on the date and to the extent specified.
- B. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the performance of the terminated work.
- C. Transfer all work documents in process, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated work to the City.
  - D. Continue and complete all parts of the work that have not been terminated.

#### ARTICLE 6 - PERSONNEL

The Consultant is, and shall be, in the performance of all work services and activities under this Contract, an independent Contractor, and not an employee, agent or servant of the City. All persons engaged in any of the work or services performed pursuant to this Contract shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to the Consultant's sole direction, supervision, and control and shall not in any manner be deemed to be employees of the City. The Consultant shall exercise control over

the means and manner in which it and its employees perform the work. This contract does not create a partnership or joint venture between the parties.

The Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City, nor shall such personnel be subject to any withholding for tax, Social Security or other purposes by the City, nor be entitled to any benefits of the City including, but not limited to, sick leave, pension benefits, vacation, medical benefits, life insurance, workers or unemployment compensation benefits, or the like from the City.

All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services.

Any changes or substitutions in the Consultant's key personnel, as may be listed in Article 1, must be made known to the City's Representative at the time substitution becomes effective.

The Consultant warrants that all services shall be performed by skilled and competent personnel to the highest professional standards in the field.

#### **ARTICLE 7 – SUBCONTRACTING**

Consultant may subcontract any services or work to be provided to City with the prior written approval of the City's Representative. The City reserves the right to accept the use of a subcontractor or to reject the selection of a particular subcontractor and to inspect all facilities of any subcontractors in order to make determination as to the capability of the subcontractor to perform properly under this Contract. The City's acceptance of a subcontractor shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Consultant is encouraged to seek small business enterprises and to utilize businesses that are physically located in the City of Pompano Beach with a current Business Tax Receipt for participation in its subcontracting opportunities.

#### ARTICLE 8 – FEDERAL AND STATE TAX

The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Taxes. The City will provide the Consultant with the current state issued exemption certificate. The Consultant shall not be exempted from paying sales tax to its suppliers for materials used to fulfill contractual obligations with the City, nor is the Consultant authorized to use the City's Tax Exemption Number in securing such materials.

The Consultant shall be responsible for payment of its own and its share of its employees' payroll, payroll taxes and benefits with respect to this Contract

#### ARTICLE 9 – AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The City's performance and obligation to pay under this contract is contingent upon appropriation for various projects, tasks and other professional services by the City Commission.

#### **ARTICLE 10 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

The Consultant shall not commence work under this Contract until it has obtained all insurance required under this paragraph and such insurance has been approved by the Risk Manager of the City, nor shall the Consultant allow any Subcontractor to commence work on its sub-contract until the aforementioned approval is obtained.

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE, reflecting evidence of the required insurance, shall be filed with the Risk Manager prior to the commencement of the work. The Certificate shall contain a provision that coverage afforded under these policies will not be cancelled, will not expire and will not be materially modified until at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the City. Policies shall be issued by companies authorized to conduct business under the laws of the State of Florida and shall have adequate Policyholders and Financial ratings in the latest ratings of A. M. Best and be part of the **Florida Insurance Guarantee Association Act**.

Insurance shall be in force until all work required to be performed under the terms of the Contract is satisfactorily completed as evidenced by the formal acceptance by the City. In the event the Insurance Certificate provided indicates that the insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Contract, the Consultant shall furnish, at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration of the date of such insurance, a renewed Certificate of Insurance as proof that equal and like coverage for the balance of the period of the Contract and extension thereunder is in effect. The Consultant shall not continue to work pursuant to this Contract unless all required insurance remains in full force and effect.

Limits of Liability for required insurance are shown in Exhibit C.

The City of Pompano Beach must be named as an additional insured for the Automobile and Commercial General Liability Coverage.

For Professional Liability, if coverage is provided on a claims made basis, then coverage must be continued for the duration of this Contract and for not less than one (1) year thereafter, or in lieu of continuation, provide an "extended reporting clause" for one (1) year.

Consultant shall notify the City Risk Manager in writing within thirty (30) days of any claims filed or made against the Professional Liability Insurance Policy.

For Workers' Compensation Insurance, coverage shall be maintained during the life of this Contract to comply with statutory limits for all employees, and in the case of any work sublet, the Consultant shall require any Subcontractors similarly to provide Workers' Compensation Insurance for all the latter's employees unless such employees are covered by the protection afforded by the Consultant. The Consultant and his Subcontractors shall maintain during the life of this Contract Employer Liability Insurance.

#### **ARTICLE 11 – INDEMNIFICATION**

1. The Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees against any loss, damage or expense (including all costs and reasonable

attorneys' fees and appellate attorneys' fees) suffered by City from any claim, demand, judgment, decree, or cause of action of any kind or nature to the extent caused by any negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful conduct of Consultant, or its agents, servants, or employees, in the performance of services in the performance of the contract.

- The Consultant agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees against any loss, damage, or expense (including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and appellate attorneys' fees) suffered by the City from (a) any breach by the Consultant of this Contract; (b) any misconduct by the Consultant; (c) any inaccuracy in or breach of any of the representations, warranties or covenants made by the Consultant herein; (d) any claims, suits, actions, damages or causes of action arising during the term of this Contract for any personal injury, loss of life or damage to property to the extent caused by any negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful performance of this Contract by the Consultant and the Consultant's agents, employees, invitees. Such obligation to indemnify and hold harmless shall include all costs, expenses and liabilities incurred by the City in connection with any such claim, suit, action or cause of action, including the investigation thereof and the defense of any action or proceeding brought thereon and any order, judgment or decree which may be entered in any such action or proceeding or as a result thereof. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that City would not enter into this contract without this indemnification of City by Consultant, and that the City entering into this Contract shall constitute good and sufficient consideration for this indemnification. These provisions shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to affect in any way the City's rights, privileges, and immunities as set forth in Florida Statute § 768.28.
- 3. Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00) of the amount paid to Consultant is given as separate, distinct and independent consideration for the Consultant's grant of this indemnity, the sufficiency and receipt of this consideration is acknowledged by the Consultant.

#### ARTICLE 12 – SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

The City and the Consultant each binds itself and its partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns to the other party of this Contract and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Contract. Except as above, neither the City nor the Consultant shall assign, sublet, encumber, convey or transfer its interest in this Contract without prior written consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of the City, which may be a party hereto, nor shall it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than the City and the Consultant.

#### **ARTICLE 13 – REMEDIES**

The laws of the State of Florida shall govern this Contract. Any and all legal action between the parties arising out of the Contract will be held in Broward County. No remedy

herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

#### ARTICLE 14 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Consultant represents that it has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder, as provided for in the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees (Chapter 112, Part III, Florida Statutes). The Consultant further represents that no person having any interest shall be employed for said performance.

The Consultant shall promptly notify the City's representative, in writing, by certified mail, of a potential conflict(s) of interest for any prospective business association, interest or other circumstance, which may influence or appear to influence the Consultant's judgment or quality of services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Consultant may undertake and request an opinion of the City as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a conflict of interest if entered into by the Consultant. The City agrees to notify the Consultant of its opinion by certified mail within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice by the Consultant. If, in the opinion of the City, the prospective business association, interest, or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the Consultant, the City shall so state in the notice and the Consultant shall at its option, enter into said association, interest or circumstance and it shall be deemed not a conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the City by the Consultant under the terms of this Contract.

#### ARTICLE 15 – EXCUSABLE DELAYS

The Consultant shall not be considered in default by reason of any failure in performance if such failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the Consultant or its subcontractors and without their fault or negligence. Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God; natural or public health emergencies; freight embargoes; and abnormally severe and unusual weather conditions.

Upon the Consultant's request, the City shall consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the work and, if the Consultant's failure to perform was without it, or its subcontractors fault or negligence, the Contract Schedule and/or any other affected provision of this Contract shall be revised accordingly; subject to the City's rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time.

#### **ARTICLE 16 – DEBT**

The Consultant shall not pledge the City's credit or attempt to make it a guarantor of payment or surety for any contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien or any form of indebtedness.

The Consultant further warrants and represents that it has no obligation or indebtedness that would impair its ability to fulfill the terms of this Contract.

#### ARTICLE 17 - DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

The Consultant shall deliver to the City's representatives for approval and acceptance, and before being eligible for final payment of any amounts due, all documents and materials prepared by and for the City under this Contract.

All written and oral information not in the public domain or not previously known, and all information and data obtained, developed, or supplied by the City or at its expense will be kept confidential by the Consultant and will not be disclosed to any other party, directly or indirectly, without the City's prior written consent unless required by a lawful order. All drawings, maps, sketches, programs, data base, reports and other data developed, or purchased, under this Contract for or at the City's expense shall be and remain the City's property and may be reproduced and reused at the discretion of the City.

The City and the Consultant shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (Public Records Law).

All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein, or otherwise made in writing by any party pursuant hereto, including but not limited to any representations made herein relating to disclosure or ownership of documents, shall survive the execution and delivery of this Contract and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby.

#### **ARTICLE 18 – CONTINGENT FEES**

The Consultant warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant to solicit or secure this Contract and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract. Violation of this Article shall constitute a forfeiture of this Contract by Consultant.

#### ARTICLE 19 – ACCESS AND AUDITS

The Consultant shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, expenses, and cost incurred in estimating and performing the work for at least three (3) years after completion of this Contract. The City shall have access to such books, records and documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during normal business hours, at the Consultant's place of business.

#### **ARTICLE 20 – NONDISCRIMINATION**

The Consultant warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital status and sexual orientation.

#### **ARTICLE 21 – INTERPRETATION**

The language of this Contract has been agreed to by both parties to express their mutual intent and no rule of strict construction shall be applied to either party hereto. The headings are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. All personal pronouns used in this Agreement shall include the other gender, and the singular, the plural, and vice versa, unless the context otherwise requires.

#### **ARTICLE 22 – AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE**

The Consultant hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required conducting its business, and that it will at all times conduct its business activities in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City's representative upon request.

#### **ARTICLE 23 – SEVERABILITY**

If any term or provision of this Contract, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this Contract, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Contract shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

#### ARTICLE 24 - ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT

The City and the Consultant agree that this Contract, together with the Exhibits hereto, sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein. It is further agreed that no modification, amendment or alteration in the terms or conditions contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document executed with the same formality and off equal dignity herewith. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Contract may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto in accordance with Article 25 – Modification of Work. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between this Contract and the provisions in the incorporated Exhibits, the terms of this Contract shall supersede and prevail over the terms in the Exhibits.

#### ARTICLE 25 – MODIFICATION OF SCOPE OF WORK

The City reserves the right to make changes in the Scope of Work, including alterations, reductions therein or additions thereto. Upon receipt by the Consultant of the City's notification of a contemplated change, the Consultant shall, in writing: (1) provide a detailed estimate for the increase or decrease in cost due to the contemplated change; (2) notify the City of any estimated change in the completion date; and (3) advise the City if the contemplated change shall affect the Consultant's ability to meet the completion dates or schedules of this Contract.

If the City so instructs in writing, the Consultant shall suspend work on that portion of the Scope of Work affected by a contemplated change, pending the City's decision to proceed with the change.

If the City elects to make the change, the City shall initiate a Work Authorization or Task Order Amendment and the Consultant shall not commence work on any such change until such written amendment is signed by the Consultant and the City Manager, and if such amendment is in excess of \$25,000, it must also first be approved by the City Commission and signed by the appropriate City Official authorized by the City Commission

The City shall not be liable for payment of any additional or modified work, which is not authorized in the manner provided for by this Article.

#### **ARTICLE 26 – NOTICE**

All notices required in this Contract shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following:

#### **FOR CITY:**

City Manager City of Pompano Beach Post Office Drawer 1300 Pompano Beach, Florida 33061

#### **FOR CONSULTANT:**

McCafferty Brinson Consulting, LLC
Frank Brinson, Vice President
633 South Andrews Avenue
Suite 402
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

#### ARTICLE 27 – OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

All finished or unfinished documents, data, reports, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models and photographs prepared or provided by the Consultant in connection with this Contract shall become property of the City, whether the project for which they are made is completed or

not, and shall be delivered by Consultant to City within ten (10) days of notice of termination. If applicable, City may withhold any payments then due to Consultant until Consultant complies with the provisions of this section.

	"CITY"
Witnesses:	CITY OF POMPANO BEACH
Sandra M. Morway Skolly R. Barthelmow	By: Lamar Fisher, Mayor  By: Dennis W. Beach, City Manager
Attest:    Seelifa	(SEAL)
Approved As To Form:  Mark E. Berman, City Attorney	
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF BROWARD	
The foregoing instrument was acknowled by LAMAR FISHER, as Mayor, DE	ledged before me this of day of NNIS W. BEACH, as City Manager and ASCELETA mpano Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation, on behalf y known to me.
NOTABAYA GEAL	MOTARY PURIL OF STATE OF ELOPIDA
NOTARY'S SEAL:	NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA
KRYSTAL AARON NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA Comm# EE874865	(Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)
WDE 1919 Expires 2/14/2017	Commission Number

Commission Number

### "CONSULTANT"

### McCafferty Brinson Consulting, LLC.

Witnesses:	
Nadu Jolo Signature	By: Auch McCaffer Signature
Name Typed, Printed or Stamped	Audra McCaffertyName Typed, Printed or Stamped
Signature  TRENT VAN AUEN  Name Type, Printed or Stamped	Address: 633 S Andrews Ave, Suite 402 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301
The foregoing instrument was a superficient way of the she is personally known to me or who have of identification) as identification.	acknowledged before me this 16th day of Audra McCafferty as mcCafferty Brinson Consulting as produced
NOTARY'S SEAL:  NATALIE CRUZ NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA Content FF241989 Expires 6/18/2019	NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA  Natalil (vot  (Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)  FF241969  Commission Number



## Florida's Warmest Welcome

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH REQUEST FOR LETTERS OF INTEREST L-40-15

CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

RLI OPENING: September 23, 2015, 2:00 P.M. PURCHASING OFFICE 1190 N.E. 3RD AVENUE, BUILDING C (Front) POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA 33060

#### CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA

#### REQUEST FOR LETTERS OF INTEREST (RLI) L-40-15

## CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

Pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 287.055 "Consultants' Competitive Negotiation Act" the City of Pompano Beach invites qualified engineering firms to submit Letters of Interest, qualifications and experience for consideration to provide Professional Engineering Consulting services to the City on a continuing as-needed basis.

The City will receive sealed proposals until <u>2:00 p.m. (local)</u>, <u>September 23, 2015</u>, in the City's Purchasing Office, 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060. E-mailed or faxed proposals will not be acceptable.

The City intends to issue multiple contracts to engineering firms to provide continuing professional services to the City for various Water and Reuse Treatment Plant projects. Professional services under this contract will be restricted to those required for any project for which construction costs will not exceed \$2 million, and for any study activity for which fees will not exceed \$200,000. The contracts will be for an initial term of (1) one year, with automatic renewals for (4) four (1) one-year periods.

#### 1. The types of projects to be undertaken may include, but are not limited to

- Reuse Water Treatment Plant Expansion Projects
- Reuse Water Treatment Plant Modification and/or Enhancement Projects
- Water Treatment Plant Expansion Projects
- Water Treatment Plant Modification and/or Enhancement Projects
- The City's approved Capital Improvement Program maybe found here <a href="http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department">http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department</a> directory/budget/budget.html.php

#### 2. The scope of services may include, but is not limited to, the following:

- Prepare studies and make recommendations on methods of operation and/or treatment.
- Prepare preliminary design reports and/or design alternative recommendations. This may include various types of utility modeling, surveying and field data analysis.
- Prepare all required bidding/construction documents for projects. This will include survey
  preparations, design plan preparations, technical specification preparations and cost
  estimate preparations. Attendance at all required pre-design, design, bidding and bid
  award meetings is required.

- Attend pre-bid conference, prepare possible bid addendums for plan revisions. Assist in making bid award recommendations for contracting/construction services.
- Prepare all required permit applications and submittal packages as required for permit issuance of all agency permits (i.e. State, County and City).
- Provide construction engineering/management services for projects. Services during construction may include shop drawing/contractor submittal reviews and approvals, inspection and approval of project improvements, possible plan revisions and review and approval of contractor pay applications.
- Provide project close-out services. This may include preliminary and final acceptance of projects, preparation and approval of punch list items and project certification as required to all permitting agencies.
- Firms must have previous experience in municipal water and reuse treatment plant projects and must be licensed to practice Professional Engineering in the State of Florida, Florida State Statute 481, by the Board of Professional Regulation.

#### 3 Term of Contract

The initial contract period shall be (1) one year, commencing upon award by the appropriate City officials.

The contract shall be automatically renewed for four (4) additional one-year periods unless the General Services Director or the successful bidder receiving award shall give notice to the other party of intent not to renew for the additional period, which notice must be delivered by certified mail and must be received at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the initial contract period. All terms, prices and conditions shall remain firm for the initial period of the contract, and any renewal period.

#### 4. Small Business Enterprise Program

The Pompano Beach City Commission has established a voluntary Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program to encourage and foster the participation of Small Business Enterprises in the central procurement activities of the City. The City of Pompano Beach is strongly committed to ensuring the participation of Small Business Enterprises (SBE's) as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. The definition of a SBE, for the purpose of the City's voluntary program, is taken from the State of Florida Statute 288.703(1).

As of the date of publication of this solicitation, a small business means an independently owned and operated business concern that employs 200 or fewer permanent full-time employees and that, together with its affiliates, has a net worth of not more than \$5 million or any firm based in Florida that has a Small Business Administration 8(a) certification. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the \$5 million net worth requirement shall include both personal and business investments.

The City encourages all firms to undertake good faith efforts to identify appropriate Small Business Enterprise partners. Sources of information on certified Small Business Enterprises include the Broward County Small Business Development Division, the State of Florida Office of Supplier Diversity, South Florida Water Management District, and other

L-40-1:	5	7	nitia
L-4U-1.		Z 1	IIIIIIa

agencies throughout the State. The City includes links to these organizations from the City's website <a href="https://www.pompanobeachfl.gov">www.pompanobeachfl.gov</a>.

The City has set a 5% voluntary Small Business Enterprise Goal for this project. SBE Forms are located at the end of this solicitation, and all firms responding <u>must return</u> a response of participation or non-participation in order to be considered responsive for evaluation purposes.

Please indicate in your response if your firm is a certified Small Business Enterprise, and include the completed "Good Faith Effort Report" form with your proposal. Proposers should submit Exhibit A, detailing the list of SBE firms to be used on the proposed contract, and a completed Letter of Intent, Exhibit B, for all participating SBE firms. Submit Exhibit C listing SBE firms that were solicited but not selected. Submit Exhibit D explaining your firm's good faith efforts to include SBE firms on this contract.

#### 5. <u>Local Business Program</u>

On March 23, 2010, the City Commission approved a Resolution establishing a Local Business Program, a policy to increase the participation of City of Pompano Beach businesses in the City's procurement process.

You can view the list of City businesses that have a current Business Tax Receipt on the City's website, and locate local firms that are available to perform the work required by the specifications. The business information, sorted by business use classification, is posted on the webpage for the Business Tax Receipt Division: <a href="http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department directory/development services/business">http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department directory/development services/business</a> tax receipt division/business tax receipt division.html.php

The City has set a 5% voluntary Local Business goal for this project. Local Business program forms are located at the end of this solicitation, and all firms responding must return a response of participation or non-participation in order to be considered responsive for evaluation purposes.

The City of Pompano Beach is strongly committed to insuring the participation of City of Pompano Beach Businesses as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. Proposers are encouraged to participate in the City of Pompano Beach's voluntary Local Business Program by including, as part of their package, the Local Business Participation Form (Exhibit E,) listing the local businesses that will be used on the contract, and the Letter of Intent Form (Exhibit F) from each local business that will participate in the contract. Proposers should utilize businesses that are physically located in the City of Pompano Beach with a current Business Tax Receipt. Proposers who are unable to meet the recommended voluntary goals should also provide the Local Business Unavailability Form (Exhibit G,) listing firms that were contacted but not available, and the Good Faith Effort Report (Exhibit H) describing the efforts made to include local business participation in the contract.

#### 6. Required Proposal Submittal

#### Submission/Format Requirements

Submit one (1) original unbound proposal and five (\_5\_) bound photocopies of the proposal. Use 8 ½" x 11" plain white paper; proposal to be typed, and signed by an authorized representative who is able to contractually bind the Proposer. In addition, Proposers must submit one (1) original copy of the Proposal on electronic media in printable Adobe or Microsoft Word format (or other format approved by the City). Duplicate copies must contain all information included in the original submittal. Failure to adhere to the submittal quantity criteria may result in the Proposal being considered non-responsive.

**Information to be included in the proposal**: In order to maintain comparability and expedite the review process, it is required that proposals be organized in the manner specified below, with tabs or dividers between the sections:

#### Title page:

Show the project name and number, the name of the Proposer's firm, address, telephone number, name of contact person and the date.

#### **Table of Contents:**

Include a clear identification of the material by section and by page.

#### Letter of Interest:

A Letter of Interest, signed by an authorized representative of your firm, expressing your understanding of the project and expressing a positive commitment to provide the services described herein. In the letter, include:

- · complete corporate name of the primary firm responding
- applicable Federal Tax Identification Number
- address
- telephone and fax numbers
- name, title, and email of the person to contact regarding your submission

Please limit this section to two pages.

#### **Project Team Form:**

Submit a completed "Project Team" form. The purpose of this form is to identify the key members of your team, including any specialty subconsultants.

#### **Organizational Chart:**

Specifically identify the management plan (if needed) and provide an organizational chart for the team. The proposer must describe at a minimum, the basic approach to these projects, to include reporting hierarchy of staff and sub-consultants, clarify the individual(s) responsible for the co-ordination of separate components of the scope of services.

#### Statement of Skills and Experience of Project Team:

Describe the experience of the entire project team as it relates to the types of projects described in the Scope section of this RLI. Include the experience of the prime consultants as well as other members of the project team; i.e., additional personnel, sub-consultants, branch office, team members, and other resources anticipated to be utilized for this project. Name specific projects (successfully completed within the past five years) where the team members have performed similar projects previously.

#### **Resumes of Key Personnel**

Include resumes for key personnel for prime and subconsultants.

#### References:

References for past projects in the tri-county area (Broward, Palm Beach, and Miami-Dade.) If past projects are not located in the tri-county area references for past projects in other areas of the State of Florida can be provided. Describe the scope of each project in physical terms and by cost, describe the respondent's responsibilities, and provide the contact information (name, email, telephone number) of an individual in a position of responsibility who can attest to respondent's activities in relation to the project.

List any prior projects performed for the City of Pompano Beach.

#### Office Locations:

Identify the location of the office from which services will be rendered, and the number of professional and administrative staff at the prime office location. Also identify the location of office(s) of the prime and/or sub consultants that may be utilized to support any or all of the professional services listed above and the number of professional and administrative staff at the prime office location.

If firms are situated outside the local area, (Broward, Palm Beach, and Miami-Dade counties) include a brief statement as to whether or not the firm will arrange for a local office during the term of the contract, if necessary.

#### **Minority Business Enterprises:**

It is the intent of the City of Pompano Beach to encourage minority and women owned firms to participate in the process. The methods by which this is accomplished should be developed and presented by the respondents in their submissions.

For any member of your team that is a certified Minority Business Enterprise (as defined by the State of Florida) you must include copies of their certifications for them to be considered toward Item 5 in the evaluation criteria. Complete Exhibit I and attach certificates.

#### **Small Business Enterprises:**

Completed SBE program forms, Exhibits A-D. Include copies of all SBE certifications for firms listed on these forms.

#### **Local Businesses:**

Completed Local Business program forms, Exhibits E-H.

#### Litigation

Disclose any litigation within the past five (5) years arising out your firm's performance, including status/outcome.

#### Acknowledgement of all Addenda issued.

#### City Forms:

Responses should include all pages of this solicitation, initialed where indicated, in addition to completed SBE and Local Business forms.

L-40-15	5	Initial

#### 7. <u>Insurance</u>

The insurance described herein reflects the insurance requirements deemed necessary for this contract by the City. It is not necessary to have this level of insurance in effect at the time of submittal, but certificates indicating that the insurance is currently carried or a letter from the Carrier indicating upgrade ability will speed the review process to determine the most qualified Proposer.

The successful Proposer(s) shall not commence operations until certification or proof of insurance, detailing terms and provisions of coverage, has been received and approved by the City of Pompano Beach Risk Manager.

The following insurance coverage shall be required.

a. Worker's Compensation Insurance covering all employees and providing benefits as required by Florida Statute, Chapter 440, regardless of the size of the company (number of employees). The Contractor further agrees to be responsible for employment, control and conduct of its employees and for any injury sustained by such employees in the course of their employment.

#### b. <u>Liability Insurance</u>

- 1) Naming the City of Pompano Beach as an additional insured, on General Liability Insurance only, in connection with work being done under this contract.
- 2) Such Liability insurance shall include the following checked types of insurance and indicated minimum policy limits.

(The rest of this page has been left blank intentionally.)

L-40-15	6	Initial

#### **LIMITS OF LIABILITY**

each Type of Insurance occurrence aggregate GENERAL LIABILITY: MINIMUM \$1,000,000 per OCCURRENCE/\$1,000,000 AGGREGATE \* Policy to be written on a claims incurred basis XX comprehensive form XX premises - operations bodily injury explosion & collapse hazard property damage underground hazard products/completed operations hazard bodily injury and XX contractual insurance property damage XX broad form property combined damage XX independent contractors XX personal injury personal injury AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: MINIMUM \$1,000,000 per OCCURRENCE/\$1,000,000 **AGGREGATE** bodily injury (each person) bodily injury XX comprehensive form (each accident) XX owned property damage XX hired bodily injury and property damage non-owned combined **REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY** XX comprehensive form Consultant must show proof they have this coverage. **EXCESS LIABILITY** bodily injury and XX umbrella form property damage XX other than umbrella combined \$2,000,000. \$2,000,000. XX PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY \$2,000,000. \$2,000,000. \* Policy to be written on a claims made basis

The certification or proof of insurance must contain a provision for notification to the City, and the City's contracted law enforcement provider if applicable, thirty (30) days in advance of any material change in coverage or cancellation.

The successful Proposer shall furnish to the City the certification or proof of insurance required by the provisions set forth above, within ten (10) days after notification of award of contract.

#### 8. <u>Selection/Evaluation Process</u>

A Selection/Evaluation Committee will be appointed to select the most qualified firm(s). The Selection/Evaluation Committee will present their findings to the City Commission.

The Committee will rank responses based upon the following criteria.

<u>Criteria</u> <u>Point Range</u>

- 1. Prior experience of the firm with projects of similar size and complexity: 0-45 points
  - a. Number of similar projects
  - b. Complexity of similar projects
  - c. References from past projects performed by the firm
  - d. Previous projects performed for the City (provide description)
  - e. Litigation within the past 5 years arising out of firm's performance (list, describe outcome)
- 2. Qualifications of personnel including sub consultants:

0-35 points

- a. Organizational chart for project
- b. Number of technical staff
- c. Qualifications of technical staff:
  - (1) Number of licensed staff
  - (2) Education of staff
  - (3) Experience of staff on similar projects
- 3. Proximity of the nearest office to the project location:

0-10 points

- a. Location
- b. Number of staff at the nearest office
- Is the firm a certified minority business enterprise as defined by the Florida Small and Minority Business Assistance Act of 1985? (Certification of any sub-contractors should also be included with the response.)

<u>Value of Work Previously Awarded to Firm (Tie-breaker)</u> - In the event of a tie, the firm with the lowest value of work as a prime contractor on City of Pompano Beach projects within the last five years will receive the higher ranking, the firm with the next lowest value of work shall receive the next highest ranking, and so on. The analysis of past work will be based on the City's Purchase Order and payment records.

The Committee has the option to use the above criteria for the initial ranking to short-list Proposers and to use an ordinal ranking system to score short-listed Proposers following

L-40-15	8	Initial
3	•	

presentations (if deemed necessary) with a score of "1" assigned to the short-listed Proposer deemed most qualified by the Committee.

Each firm should submit documentation that evidences the firm's capability to provide the services required for the Committee's review for short listing purposes. After an initial review of the Proposals, the City may invite Proposers for an interview to discuss the proposal and meet firm representatives, particularly key personnel who would be assigned to the project. Should interviews be deemed necessary, it is understood that the City shall incur no costs as a result of this interview, nor bear any obligation in further consideration of the submittal.

When more than three responses are received, the committee shall furnish the City Commission (for their approval) a listing, in ranked order, of no fewer than three firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the service. If three or less firms respond to the RLI, the list will contain the ranking of all responses.

The City Commission has the authority to (including, but not limited to); approve the recommendation; reject the recommendation and direct staff to re-advertise the solicitation; or, review the responses themselves and/or request oral presentations and determine a ranking order that may be the same or different from what was originally presented to the City Commission.

#### 9. Hold Harmless and Indemnification

Proposer covenants and agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officers, agents, and employees from any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge or expense arising out of any act, action, neglect or omission by the Proposer, whether direct or indirect, or whether to any person or property to which the City or said parties may be subject, except that neither the Proposer nor any of its subcontractors will be liable under this section for damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or property directly caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the City or any of its officers, agents or employees.

#### 10. Retention of Records and Right to Access

The selected firm shall maintain during the term of the contract all books of account, receipt invoices, reports and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and standards. The form of all records and reports shall be subject to the approval of the City's Internal Auditor. The selected firm must comply with the Internal Auditor's recommendation for changes, additions, or deletions. The City's Internal Auditor must be permitted during normal business hours to audit and examine the books of account, reports, and records relating to this contract. The selected firm shall maintain and make available such records and files for the duration of the contract and retain them until the expiration of three years after final payment under the contract.

#### 11. Communications

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by the firm as a result of any discussions with any City employee. Only those communications, which are in writing from the City, may be considered as a duly authorized expression on behalf of the

City. In addition, only communications from firms that are signed and in writing will be recognized by the City as duly authorized expressions on behalf of firms.

#### 12. No Discrimination

There shall be no discrimination as to race, sex, color, age, religion, or national origin in the operations conducted under any contract with the City.

#### 13. Independent Contractor

The selected firm will conduct business as an independent contractor under the terms of this contract. Personnel services provided by the firm shall be by employees of the firm and subject to supervision by the firm, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the City. Personnel policies, tax responsibilities, social security and health insurance, employee benefits, purchasing policies and other similar administrative procedures applicable to services rendered under this agreement shall be those of the firm.

#### 14. Staff Assignment

The City of Pompano Beach reserves the right to approve or reject, for any reasons, Proposer's staff assigned to this project at any time. Background checks may be required.

#### 15. Contract Terms

The contract resulting from this RLI shall include, but not be limited to the following terms:

The contract shall include as a minimum, the entirety of this RLI document, together with the successful Proposer's proposal. Contract shall be prepared by the City of Pompano Beach City Attorney.

If the City of Pompano Beach defends any claim, demand, cause of action, or lawsuit arising out of any act, action, negligent acts or negligent omissions, or willful misconduct of the contractor, its employees, agents or servants during the performance of the contract, whether directly or indirectly, contractor agrees to reimburse the City of Pompano Beach for all expenses, attorney's fees, and court costs incurred in defending such claim, cause of action or lawsuit.

#### 16. Waiver

It is agreed that no waiver or modification of the contract resulting from this RLI, or of any covenant, condition or limitation contained in it shall be valid unless it is in writing and duly executed by the party to be charged with it, and that no evidence of any waiver or modification shall be offered or received in evidence in any proceeding, arbitration, or litigation between the parties arising out of or affecting this contract, or the right or obligations of any party under it, unless such waiver or modification is in writing, duly executed as above. The parties agree that the provisions of this paragraph may not be waived except by a duly executed writing.

#### 17. Survivorship Rights

This contract resulting from this RLI shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties and their executors, administrators, heirs, personal representative, successors and assigns.

#### 18. <u>Termination</u>

The contract resulting from this RLI may be terminated by the City of Pompano Beach without cause upon providing contractor with a least sixty (60) days prior written notice.

Should either party fail to perform any of its obligations under the contract resulting from this RLI for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of such failure, the non-defaulting part will have the right to terminate the contract immediately upon delivery of written notice to the defaulting part of its election to do so. The foregoing rights of termination are in addition to any other rights and remedies that such party may have.

#### 19. Manner of Performance

Proposer agrees to perform its duties and obligations under the contract resulting from this RLI in a professional manner and in accordance with all applicable local, federal and state laws, rules and regulations.

Proposer agrees that the services provided under the contract resulting from this RLI shall be provided by employees that are educated, trained and experienced, certified and licensed in all areas encompassed within their designated duties. Proposer agrees to fumish the City of Pompano Beach with all documentation, certification, authorization, license, permit, or registration currently required by applicable laws or rules and regulations. Proposer further certifies that it and its employees are now in and will maintain good standing with such governmental agencies and that it and its employees will keep all license, permits, registration, authorization or certification required by applicable laws or regulations in full force and effect during the term of this contract. Failure of Proposer to comply with this paragraph shall constitute a material breach of contract.

#### 20. Acceptance Period

Proposals submitted in response to this RLI must be valid for a period no less than ninety (90) days from the closing date of this solicitation.

#### 21. RLI Conditions and Provisions

The proposal must be submitted to the City on or before the time and date stated herein. All Proposers, by submission of a proposal, shall agree to comply with all of the conditions, requirements and instructions of this RLI as stated or implied herein. All proposals and supporting materials submitted will become the property of the City.

Exceptions or deviations to this solicitation may not be added after the submittal date.

All Proposers are required to provide all information requested in this RLI. Failure to do so may result in disqualification of the proposal.

The City reserves the right to postpone or cancel this RLI, or reject all proposals, if in its sole discretion it deems it to be in the best interest of the City to do so.

The City reserves the right to waive any technical or formal errors or omissions and to reject all proposals, or to award contract for the items herein, in part or whole, if it is determined to be in the best interests of the City to do so.

The City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Proposer in the preparation of proposals or for any work performed in connection therein.

#### 22. Standard Provisions

#### a. Governing Law

Any agreement resulting from this RLI shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida, and the venue for any legal action relating to such agreement will be in Broward County, Florida.

#### b. Licenses

In order to perform public work, the successful Proposer shall: Be licensed to do business in Florida, if an entity, and hold or obtain such Contractor' and Business Licenses if required by State Statutes or local ordinances.

#### c. Conflict Of Interest

For purposes of determining any possible conflict of interest, each Proposer must disclose if any Elected Official, Appointed Official, or City Employee is also an owner, corporate officer, or an employee of the firm. If any Elected Official, Appointed Official, or City Employee is an owner, corporate officer, or an employee, the Proposer must file a statement with the Broward County Supervisor of Elections pursuant to §112.313, Florida Statutes.

#### d. Drug Free Workplace

The selected firm(s) will be required to verify they will operate a "Drug Free Workplace" as set forth in Florida Statute, 287.087.

#### e. Public Entity Crimes

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for public entity crime may not submit a proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit proposals on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Florida Statute, Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

#### f. Patent Fees, Royalties, And Licenses

If the selected Proposer requires or desires to use any design, trademark, device, material or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, the selected Proposer and his surety shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, device, trademark, copyright, material or process in connection with the work agreed to be performed and shall indemnify the City from any cost, expense, royalty or damage which the City may be obligated to pay by reason of any infringement at any time during or after completion of the work.

#### g. <u>Familiarity With Laws</u>

It is assumed the selected firm(s) will be familiar with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may affect its services pursuant to this RLI. Ignorance on the part of the firm will in no way relieve the firm from responsibility.

#### h. Withdrawal Of Proposals

A firm may withdraw its proposal without prejudice no later than the advertised deadline for submission of proposals by written communication to the General Services Department, 1190 N.E. 3<sup>rd</sup> Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida 33060.

#### i. Composition Of Project Team

Firms are required to commit that the principals and personnel named in the proposal will perform the services throughout the contractual term unless otherwise provided for by way of a negotiated contract or written amendment to same executed by both parties. No diversion or substitution of principals or personnel will be allowed unless a written request that sets forth the qualifications and experience of the proposed replacement(s) is submitted to and approved by the City in writing.

#### j. <u>Invoicing/Payment</u>

All invoices should be sent to City of Pompano Beach, Accounts Payable, P.O. Drawer 1300, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33061. In accordance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 218, payment will be made within 45 days after receipt of a proper invoice.

#### k. Public Records

- The City of Pompano Beach is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall comply with Florida's Public Records Law. Specifically, the Contractor shall:
  - a. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the City in order to perform the service;
  - b. Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that

L-40	1.5	1 ')	ni	+.	•

does not exceed that provided in chapter 119, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise provided by law;

- Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and exempt from public record requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law; and
- d. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the City, at no cost, all public records in possession of the contractor upon termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt. All records stored electronically must be provided to the City in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the agency.
- The failure of Contractor to comply with the provisions set forth in this Article shall constitute a Default and Breach of this Agreement and the City shall enforce the Default in accordance with the provisions set forth herein.

#### 23. Questions and Communication

All questions regarding the RLI are to be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Office, 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C (Front), Pompano Beach, Florida 33060, fax (954) 786-4168, or email <a href="mailto:purchasing@copbfl.com">purchasing@copbfl.com</a>. All questions must include the inquiring firm's name, address, telephone number and RLI name and number. Questions must be received at least seven (7) calendar days before the scheduled solicitation opening. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Any addendum necessary to answer questions will be posted to the City's website, and it is the Proposer's responsibility to obtain all addenda before submitting a response to the solicitation.

#### 24. Addenda

The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or additional information can be given. If any addenda are issued to this solicitation the City will attempt to notify all known prospective Proposers, however, it shall be the responsibility of each Proposer, prior to submitting their response, to contact the City Purchasing Office at (954) 786-4098 to determine if addenda were issued and to make such addenda a part of their proposal.

### **PROJECT TEAM**

		KLI NUMBER	<del>-</del>
		Federal I.D.#	
PRIME			
Role	Name of Individual Assigned to Project	Number of Years Experience	Education, Degrees
Principal-In-Charge			
Project Manager			
Asst. Project Manager	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Other Key Member			
Other Key Member			
SUB-CONSULTANT			
Role	Company Name and Address of Office Handling This Project	Name of Individu	al Assigned
Surveying			
Landscaping		_	
Engineering		_	
Other Key Member		_	
Other Key Member		_	
Other Key Member			
Other Key Member			
(use attachments if nec	ressary)		

L-40-15

# EXHIBIT "A" CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION FORM

RLI Number & True:		Contractors Name:	
Name of Firm	Contact Person, Telephone Number	Type of Work to be Performed	Contract Percentage of Work
(INCLUDE CERTIFICAT	ES FOR ANY FIRMS LISTED	ON THIS PAGE)	
	FOR (	CITY USE ONLY	
Total SBE Contract Partic	cipation	_	
Are documents requested	d submitted accordingly	YESNO	
L-40-15	16	Initial	

# EXHIBIT "B" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS A SUBCONTRACTOR

RI	LI Number	
TO:		
(Name of Prime or	General Contractor)	_
The undersigned intends to pe contract as (check below)	rform subcontracting v	work in connection with the above
an individual		a corporation
a partnership		a joint venture
The undersigned is prepared to Contract, as hereafter describe		work in connection with the above
(Date)	(Nam	e of SBE Contractor)
	DV.	

# EXHIBIT "C" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UNAVAILABILITY FORM

RLI#

		(Name and Title)	
of		, certify tha	at on theday of
		, I invited the following SBE	CONTRACTOR(s) to bid
work items	to be performed in	the City of Pompano Beach:	
SE	BE Contractor Address	Work Items Sought	Form of Bid Sought (i.e., Unit Price, Materials/Labor, Labo Only, etc.)
Said SBE C	CONTRACTOR(s):		
	Did not bid in res	sponse to the invitation	
	Submitted a bid	that was not the low responsible	e bid
	Other:		
Signature: _			te:
		nents as available.	

18

Initial

L-40-15

# EXHIBIT "D" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE GOOD FAITH EFFORT REPORT

RLI#
------

	What portions of the contract have you identified as SBE opportunities?
	Did you provide adequate information to identified SBE? Please comment on how you provided this information.
-	
	Did you send written notices to SBEs?
	Yes No f yes, please include copy of the notice and the list of individuals who were orwarded copies of the notices.
	Did you advertise in local publications?
H	Yes Yes No fyes, please attach copies of the ads, including name and dates of publicat
	Did you contact any organizations with large constituents of SBE members for some sub-contractors? Please attach list of resource organizations used
۷	Vhat type of efforts did you make to assist SBEs in contracting with you?
_	
L	ist the SBEs you will utilize and subcontract percentage of work.
_	

0.11		
Other comments: _		 

Note: Please attach the unavailability letters with this report.

L-40-15

# <u>EXHIBIT E</u> <u>CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA</u> <u>LOCAL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION FORM</u>

Number & Title:		Prime Contractor's Name:			
Name of Firm, Address	Contact Person, Telephone Number	Type of Work to be Performed	% of Work		
		-			
		-			
		<u> </u>			

Initial

21

L-40-15

# EXHIBIT F LOCAL BUSINESS LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS A SUBCONTRACTOR

	RLI Number
TO: (Name of Prime or Ge	neral Bidder)
	pano Beach business intends to perform subcontracting bove contract as (check below)
an individual	a corporation
a partnership	a joint venture
The undersigned is prepared Contract, as hereafter describ	to perform the following work in connection with the above ed in detail:
(Date)	(Name of Local Business Contractor)
	BY:

L-40-15

22

\_\_\_Initial

# EXHIBIT G LOCAL BUSINESS UNAVAILABILITY FORM

RLI#\_\_\_\_\_

ems to be performed in the City of Pompano Beach:	SINESSES to bid work  Form of Bid Sought (i.e., Unit Price, Materials/Labor, Labor Only, etc.)
	Form of Bid Sought (i.e., Unit Price, Materials/Labor, Labor Only, etc.)
Business Name, Address Work Items Sought	Unit Price, Materials/Labor, Labor Only, etc.)
<del></del>	
aid Local Businesses:	
Did not bid in response to the in	nvitation
Submitted a bid which was not	the low responsible bid
Other:	
Signature:	
Date:	
ote: Attach additional documents as available.	

L-40-15

# EXHIBIT H GOOD FAITH EFFORT REPORT LOCAL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION

RLI#\_\_\_\_\_

What portion	ons of the contract have you identified as Local Business es?
	ovide adequate information to identified Local Businesses? Please n how you provided this information.
Did you ser	nd written notices to Local Businesses?
Yes	No
• •	se include copy of the notice and the list of individuals who were copies of the notices.
Did you adv	vertise in local publications?
Yes	No
If yes, pleas	se attach copies of the ads, including name and dates of publication
What type o	of efforts did you make to assist Local Businesses in contracting w

Other comments:		

# **EXHIBIT** I

# MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION

RLI#	<u> </u>	

List all members of your team that are a certified Minority Business Enterprise (as defined by the State of Florida.) You must include copies of the MBE certificates for each firm listed.

Name of Firm	Certificate Included?
-	

L-40-15 26 Initial

# STATEMENT OF NO RESPONSE RLI L-40-15 CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

If you do not intend to submit on this requirement, please complete and return this form by the submittal deadline to the City of Pompano Beach Purchasing Division, Building C, 1190 N.E. 3<sup>rd</sup> Avenue, Pompano Beach, Florida 33060; this form may be faxed to (954) 786-4168. Failure to respond, either by submitting a proposal, or by submitting a "Statement of No Response" form, may result in your firm's name being removed from our mailing list.

WE, the undersigner reason(s):	ed, have declined to submit on this solicitation for the following
	We do not offer this product or an equivalent
	Our workload would not permit us to perform
	Insufficient time to respond to the Request for Letters of Interest
	Unable to meet specifications (explain below)
	Other (specify below)
Remarks	·
	· 
COMPANY NAME	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	<u> </u>

Page 27

Initial

RLI L-40-15



# Exhibit B

# City of Pompano Beach, Florida Consulting Agreement for Continuing Contract for Engineering Services 2015 Fee Schedule

# Labor Rates:

Staff Classification	Hourly Rate 2015
Deinsinal Engineer	<b>#</b> 200 00
Principal Engineer	\$ 200.00
Senior Engineer	\$ 160.00
Project Engineer	\$ 115.00
Engineer Intern/Staff Professional	\$ 85.00
CAD Designer	\$ 70.00
Project Administrator	\$ 50.00
Field Representative	\$ 115.00
Reimbursable Expense:	
Direct Project Expense (multiplier) Auto Mileage (per mile, IRS standard mileage rate)	1.00 \$0.575
Subcontractor (multiplier)	1.00

# **EXHIBIT C**



# CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 11/16/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ise) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

	AINTICAGE HOUSE IN HER OF BUCIL SHOOT	Sering in the	_					
MO	OUCER			NAME: Renee B	OWMAIL			
Cos	rporate Insurance Advisors			PHONE (954)	315-5000	FAX LA/G. Not:	(954) 32	LS-505P
4	01 E Broward Blvd			PHOME (AC. Mo. Eul): (954) E-MAU. ADDRESS: rbowman	Sciafl.ne	t		
	ite 103					DING COVERAGE		NAIC #
۲Ł	. Lauderdale FL 33	301				Specialty Ins.		
	RED					rty Casualty Co		25674
	Cafferty Brinson Consulting	~ Tag						
		y, Inc.		INSURER C TEALED	ortation	Insurance Co		20494
	3 S. Andrews Ave.			INSURER D ;				
	1te 402			MAURER E :				
	rt Lauderdale FL 33:			MSUMER F:				
_			E NUMBER:15/16			REVISION NUMBER:		104 55505
TP C	his is to certify that the policies ndicated. Notwithstanding any ri ertificate may be issued or may	EQUIREME PERTAIN,	ENT, TERM OR CONDITION THE INSURANCE AFFORD	OF ANY CONTRACT DED BY THE POLICIE	OR OTHER	DOCUMENT WITH RESPE D HEREIN IS SUBJECT T	CT TO	WHICH THIS
	XCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH	POLICIES						
盟		INTER WAT	POLICY NUMBER	(33,500)		LHAIT	8	
	X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY	1		Ì		EACH OCCURRENCE	\$	1,000,000
λ	CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR					PREMISES (En occurrence)	8	50,000
	X Deductible \$2500		EPE108075	4/11/2015	4/11/2016	MED EXP (Any one person)		5,000
						PERSONAL & ADV INJURY	\$	1,000,000
	GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:					GENERAL AGGREGATE	8	1,000,000
	X POUCY PRO- LOC					PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	8	1,000,000
	OTHER:					Pollution Liability	\$	INCLUDED
	AUTOMORILE LIABILITY		<u> </u>			COMBINED SANGLE LIMIT	\$	1,000,000
_	X ANY AUTO					BODILY MUURY (Per person)	\$	
3	ALL OWNED SCHEDULED		BA-9810X151-15	4/26/2015	4/26/2016	BODILY INJURY (Per excident)	8	
	NON-OWNED			1,20,2025	1,10,1014	PROPERTY DAMAGE	5	
	HIRED AUTOS AUTOS				i	(Per accident)	\$	10.000
_	UMBRELLA LIAE X OCCUR	<del>   </del>	<del>                                     </del>			PIP-Besic	_	10,000
	- Occor					EACH OCCURRENCE	\$	2,000,000
X	CLOUIS-MALE	4				AGGREGAYE	8	2,000,000
_	WORKERS COMPENSATION		#FE103281	4/11/2015	4/11/2016	_ Coco CANON	8	
	AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YAM					X STATUTE ER		
_	OFFICERALEMBER EXCLLIDEDS	NIA				E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	8	1,000,000
C	(Mundatory in NYG	1	WC431076363	10/30/2015	10/30/2016	E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE	8	1,000,000
	If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below					E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	8	1,000,000
λ	Professional Liability	1	MPK108075	4/11/2015	4/11/2016	Each Claim	In	ol w GL SIN
	Claims Made				,,	Deductible		\$2500
								72300
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remerts Schedule, way be attached it more space in required)  VARIABLE AND THE PROPERTY ON BY:								
CE	RTIFICATE HOLDER			CANCELLATION				
		.Stanl	ey@copbfl.com		-			
	City of Pompano Beach Post Office Drawer 13 Pompano Beach, FL 33	100		THE EXPIRATION ACCORDANCE W	THE POLICE	ESCRIBED POLICIES BE C EREOF, NOTICE WILL I CY PROVISIONS.		
	-			AUTHORIZED REPRESI	SVITATINE			
						Mark R. A	1. 1	
				Mark Schwartz	/ANGELA	FIGURE K.	sca	wares
				Ф 19	88-2014 AC	ORD CORPORATION.	All rig	hts reserved.
	AMO OF 1864 1864						-	

~	2424		ITC	/DE	MA	DV	0
CO	111	Cr	4 I O	/RE	WA	$\mathbf{n}$	3

(Incidental Contractors Pollution Liab. (ICPL) -Occurrence. ENV01 200 (04/07) Contractor's Pollution Liab. Endt. ENV01300 (08/10) Cov. D- Environmental Consultants Prof. Liab. RE: RLI#H-49-10 \$2,500 per Occ. Deductible Continuing Contract for Civil Engineering Services for Various City Projects. Certificate Holder is included as additional insured with respect to General Liability and Auto Liability as required by written contract.

PATE #2

APPROVED EISK MAN PORTER ON THE TOTAL OF THE

OFREMARK

COPYRIGHT 2000, AMS SERVICES INC.

# CONTRACT FOR CONSULTING/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This Contract is made as of the day of , 2016, by and between the CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as "CITY," and Mathews Consulting, Inc. () an individual, () a partnership, (X) a corporation, authorized to do business in the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant".

WHEREAS, the Consultant is able and prepared to provide such services as City requires under the terms and conditions set forth herein; and

**WHEREAS**, the City Commission has approved the recommendation that Consultant be employed by the City and authorized the negotiation of contractual terms.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the mutual promises herein, the City and the Consultant agree as follows:

## ARTICLE 1 – SERVICES/CONSULTANT AND CITY REPRESENTATIVES

The Consultant's responsibility under this Contract is to provide professional consulting services as more specifically set forth in RLI [or RFP] No.L-40-15 attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein in its entirety.

The Consultant's representative shall be **Mathews Consulting, Inc.** 

The CITY's representative shall be City Engineer or designee,

## ARTICLE 2 – SCHEDULE/PERIOD OF SERVICE

The CONSULTANT shall adhere to the schedule given in each work authorization after receiving the "Notice to Proceed."

Reports and other items shall be delivered or completed in accordance with the detailed schedule set forth in individual Work Authorizations or Task Orders as negotiated.

The Term of this Agreement shall be for an initial period of one (1) year from the date of execution by both the City and the Consultant. The contract shall be automatically renewed for four (4) additional one-year periods unless the General Services Director or the successful bidder receiving award shall give notice to the other party of intent not to renew for the additional period, which notice must be delivered by certified mail and must be received at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the initial contract period. All terms, prices and conditions shall remain firm for the initial period of the contract, and any renewal period.

#### ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENTS TO CONSULTANT

- A. City agrees to pay Consultant in consideration for its services described herein. It is the intention of the parties hereby to ensure that unless otherwise directed by the City in writing, Consultant will continue to provide services as specified in Exhibit A for the term of this Contract.
- B. <u>Price Formula</u>. City agrees to pay Consultant as negotiated on a Task Order or Work Authorization basis. Each task order or work authorization shall specifically identify the scope of the work to be performed and the fees for said services.
- Fee Determination. Each individual Task Order or Work Authorization may be negotiated for fees to be earned by Time and Materials with a Not to Exceed Amount, Lump Sum, or a combination of both methods for subtasks contained therein. The total amount to be paid by the City under a Task Order or Work Authorization shall not exceed specified amounts for all services and materials including "out of pocket" expenses as specified in Paragraph E below and also including any approved subcontracts unless otherwise agreed in writing by both parties. The Consultant shall notify the City's Representative in writing when 90% of the "not to exceed amount" for the total Task Order or Work Authorization has been reached. The Consultant will bill the City on a monthly basis, or as otherwise provided. Time and Materials billing will be made at the amounts set forth in Exhibit B for services rendered toward the completion of the Scope of Work. Where incremental billings for partially completed items are permitted, the total billings shall not exceed the estimated percentage of completion as of the billing date. It is acknowledged and agreed to by the Consultant that the dollar limitation set forth in this section is a limitation upon and describes the maximum extent of City's obligation to pay Consultant, but does not include a limitation upon Consultant's duty to perform all services set forth in Exhibit A for the total compensation in the amount or less than the guaranteed maximum stated above.
- D. Invoices received by the City from the Consultant pursuant to this Contract will be reviewed and approved in writing by the City's Representative, indicating that services have been rendered in conformity with the Contract, and then will be sent to the City's Finance Department for payment. All invoices shall contain a detailed breakdown of the services provided for which payment is being requested. Invoices shall be paid in accordance with the Florida State Statutes governing this process. In addition to detailed invoices, upon request of the City's representative, Consultant will provide City with detailed periodic Status Reports on the project.
- E. "Out-of-pocket" expenses shall be reimbursed up to an amount not to exceed amounts included in each Work Authorization or Task Order. All requests for payment of "out-of-pocket" expenses eligible for reimbursement under the terms of this Contract shall include copies of paid receipts, invoices, or other documentation acceptable to the City's Representative and to the Finance Department. Such documentation shall be sufficient to establish that the expense was actually incurred and necessary in the performance of the Scope of Work described in a Work Authorization and this Contract. All out-of- pocket, reimbursables and expenses shall be billed at actual amount paid by Consultant, with no markup.
- F. <u>Final Invoice</u>: In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, the Consultant will clearly state "<u>Final Invoice</u>" on the Consultant's final/last billing to the City. This final invoice shall also certify that all services provided by Consultant have been properly performed and all charges and costs have been invoiced to the City. Because this account will thereupon be

closed, any and other further charges not properly included on this final invoice are waived by the Consultant.

#### ARTICLE 4 – TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE

Signature of this Contract by the Consultant shall also act as the execution of a truth in negotiation certificate, certifying that the wage rates, overhead charges, and other costs used to determine the compensation provided for this Contract are accurate, complete and current as of the date of the Contract and no higher than those charged the Consultant's most favored customer for the same or substantially similar service. Should the City determine that said rates and costs were significantly increased due to incomplete, non-current or inaccurate representation, then said rates shall be adjusted accordingly.

## **ARTICLE 5 – TERMINATION**

This Contract may be cancelled by the Consultant, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City's Representative, in the event of substantial failure by the City to perform in accordance with the terms of this Contract through no fault of the Consultant. It may also be terminated, in whole or in part, by the City, with or without cause, immediately upon written notice from the City's Representative or the City Manager to the Consultant. Unless the Consultant is in breach of its Contract, the Consultant shall be paid for services rendered to the City's satisfaction through the date of termination. Ten Dollars (\$10.00) paid to the Consultant, the adequacy of which is acknowledged, is given as specific and independent consideration of the City's right to terminate this Contract for convenience. Termination for cause by the City shall include, but not be limited to, failure to suitably perform the work, failure to continuously perform the work in a manner calculated to meet or accomplish the objectives of the City as set forth herein, or multiple breach of the provisions of this Contract notwithstanding whether any such breach was previously waived or cured. After receipt of a Termination Notice and except as otherwise directed by the City the Consultant shall:

- A. Stop work on the date and to the extent specified.
- B. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the performance of the terminated work.
- C. Transfer all work documents in process, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated work to the City.
  - D. Continue and complete all parts of the work that have not been terminated.

# ARTICLE 6 – PERSONNEL

The Consultant is, and shall be, in the performance of all work services and activities under this Contract, an independent Contractor, and not an employee, agent or servant of the City. All persons engaged in any of the work or services performed pursuant to this Contract shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to the Consultant's sole direction, supervision, and control and shall not in any manner be deemed to be employees of the City. The Consultant shall exercise control over

the means and manner in which it and its employees perform the work. This contract does not create a partnership or joint venture between the parties.

The Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City, nor shall such personnel be subject to any withholding for tax, Social Security or other purposes by the City, nor be entitled to any benefits of the City including, but not limited to, sick leave, pension benefits, vacation, medical benefits, life insurance, workers or unemployment compensation benefits, or the like from the City.

All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services.

Any changes or substitutions in the Consultant's key personnel, as may be listed in Article 1, must be made known to the City's Representative at the time substitution becomes effective.

The Consultant warrants that all services shall be performed by skilled and competent personnel to the highest professional standards in the field.

# **ARTICLE 7 – SUBCONTRACTING**

Consultant may subcontract any services or work to be provided to City with the prior written approval of the City's Representative. The City reserves the right to accept the use of a subcontractor or to reject the selection of a particular subcontractor and to inspect all facilities of any subcontractors in order to make determination as to the capability of the subcontractor to perform properly under this Contract. The City's acceptance of a subcontractor shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Consultant is encouraged to seek small business enterprises and to utilize businesses that are physically located in the City of Pompano Beach with a current Business Tax Receipt for participation in its subcontracting opportunities.

# ARTICLE 8 - FEDERAL AND STATE TAX

The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Taxes. The City will provide the Consultant with the current state issued exemption certificate. The Consultant shall not be exempted from paying sales tax to its suppliers for materials used to fulfill contractual obligations with the City, nor is the Consultant authorized to use the City's Tax Exemption Number in securing such materials.

The Consultant shall be responsible for payment of its own and its share of its employees' payroll, payroll taxes and benefits with respect to this Contract

#### ARTICLE 9 – AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The City's performance and obligation to pay under this contract is contingent upon appropriation for various projects, tasks and other professional services by the City Commission.

# **ARTICLE 10 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

The Consultant shall not commence work under this Contract until it has obtained all insurance required under this paragraph and such insurance has been approved by the Risk Manager of the City, nor shall the Consultant allow any Subcontractor to commence work on its sub-contract until the aforementioned approval is obtained.

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE, reflecting evidence of the required insurance, shall be filed with the Risk Manager prior to the commencement of the work. The Certificate shall contain a provision that coverage afforded under these policies will not be cancelled, will not expire and will not be materially modified until at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the City. Policies shall be issued by companies authorized to conduct business under the laws of the State of Florida and shall have adequate Policyholders and Financial ratings in the latest ratings of A. M. Best and be part of the **Florida Insurance Guarantee Association Act**.

Insurance shall be in force until all work required to be performed under the terms of the Contract is satisfactorily completed as evidenced by the formal acceptance by the City. In the event the Insurance Certificate provided indicates that the insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Contract, the Consultant shall furnish, at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration of the date of such insurance, a renewed Certificate of Insurance as proof that equal and like coverage for the balance of the period of the Contract and extension thereunder is in effect. The Consultant shall not continue to work pursuant to this Contract unless all required insurance remains in full force and effect.

Limits of Liability for required insurance are shown in Exhibit C.

The City of Pompano Beach must be named as an additional insured for the Automobile and Commercial General Liability Coverage.

For Professional Liability, if coverage is provided on a claims made basis, then coverage must be continued for the duration of this Contract and for not less than one (1) year thereafter, or in lieu of continuation, provide an "extended reporting clause" for one (1) year.

Consultant shall notify the City Risk Manager in writing within thirty (30) days of any claims filed or made against the Professional Liability Insurance Policy.

For Workers' Compensation Insurance, coverage shall be maintained during the life of this Contract to comply with statutory limits for all employees, and in the case of any work sublet, the Consultant shall require any Subcontractors similarly to provide Workers' Compensation Insurance for all the latter's employees unless such employees are covered by the protection afforded by the Consultant. The Consultant and his Subcontractors shall maintain during the life of this Contract Employer Liability Insurance.

#### ARTICLE 11 – INDEMNIFICATION

1. The Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees against any loss, damage or expense (including all costs and reasonable

attorneys' fees and appellate attorneys' fees) suffered by City from any claim, demand, judgment, decree, or cause of action of any kind or nature to the extent caused by any negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful conduct of Consultant, or its agents, servants, or employees, in the performance of services in the performance of the contract.

- The Consultant agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees against any loss, damage, or expense (including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and appellate attorneys' fees) suffered by the City from (a) any breach by the Consultant of this Contract; (b) any misconduct by the Consultant; (c) any inaccuracy in or breach of any of the representations, warranties or covenants made by the Consultant herein; (d) any claims, suits, actions, damages or causes of action arising during the term of this Contract for any personal injury, loss of life or damage to property to the extent caused by any negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful performance of this Contract by the Consultant and the Consultant's agents, employees, invitees. Such obligation to indemnify and hold harmless shall include all costs, expenses and liabilities incurred by the City in connection with any such claim, suit, action or cause of action, including the investigation thereof and the defense of any action or proceeding brought thereon and any order, judgment or decree which may be entered in any such action or proceeding or as a result thereof. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that City would not enter into this contract without this indemnification of City by Consultant, and that the City entering into this Contract shall constitute good and sufficient consideration for this indemnification. These provisions shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to affect in any way the City's rights, privileges, and immunities as set forth in Florida Statute § 768.28.
- 3. Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00) of the amount paid to Consultant is given as separate, distinct and independent consideration for the Consultant's grant of this indemnity, the sufficiency and receipt of this consideration is acknowledged by the Consultant.

## ARTICLE 12 – SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

The City and the Consultant each binds itself and its partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns to the other party of this Contract and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Contract. Except as above, neither the City nor the Consultant shall assign, sublet, encumber, convey or transfer its interest in this Contract without prior written consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of the City, which may be a party hereto, nor shall it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than the City and the Consultant.

#### **ARTICLE 13 – REMEDIES**

The laws of the State of Florida shall govern this Contract. Any and all legal action between the parties arising out of the Contract will be held in Broward County. No remedy

herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

#### ARTICLE 14 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Consultant represents that it has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder, as provided for in the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees (Chapter 112, Part III, Florida Statutes). The Consultant further represents that no person having any interest shall be employed for said performance.

The Consultant shall promptly notify the City's representative, in writing, by certified mail, of a potential conflict(s) of interest for any prospective business association, interest or other circumstance, which may influence or appear to influence the Consultant's judgment or quality of services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Consultant may undertake and request an opinion of the City as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a conflict of interest if entered into by the Consultant. The City agrees to notify the Consultant of its opinion by certified mail within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice by the Consultant. If, in the opinion of the City, the prospective business association, interest, or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the Consultant, the City shall so state in the notice and the Consultant shall at its option, enter into said association, interest or circumstance and it shall be deemed not a conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the City by the Consultant under the terms of this Contract.

# ARTICLE 15 - EXCUSABLE DELAYS

The Consultant shall not be considered in default by reason of any failure in performance if such failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the Consultant or its subcontractors and without their fault or negligence. Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God; natural or public health emergencies; freight embargoes; and abnormally severe and unusual weather conditions.

Upon the Consultant's request, the City shall consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the work and, if the Consultant's failure to perform was without it, or its subcontractors fault or negligence, the Contract Schedule and/or any other affected provision of this Contract shall be revised accordingly; subject to the City's rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time.

## **ARTICLE 16 – DEBT**

The Consultant shall not pledge the City's credit or attempt to make it a guarantor of payment or surety for any contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien or any form of indebtedness.

The Consultant further warrants and represents that it has no obligation or indebtedness that would impair its ability to fulfill the terms of this Contract.

# ARTICLE 17 - DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

The Consultant shall deliver to the City's representatives for approval and acceptance, and before being eligible for final payment of any amounts due, all documents and materials prepared by and for the City under this Contract.

All written and oral information not in the public domain or not previously known, and all information and data obtained, developed, or supplied by the City or at its expense will be kept confidential by the Consultant and will not be disclosed to any other party, directly or indirectly, without the City's prior written consent unless required by a lawful order. All drawings, maps, sketches, programs, data base, reports and other data developed, or purchased, under this Contract for or at the City's expense shall be and remain the City's property and may be reproduced and reused at the discretion of the City.

The City and the Consultant shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (Public Records Law).

All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein, or otherwise made in writing by any party pursuant hereto, including but not limited to any representations made herein relating to disclosure or ownership of documents, shall survive the execution and delivery of this Contract and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby.

#### ARTICLE 18 - CONTINGENT FEES

The Consultant warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant to solicit or secure this Contract and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract. Violation of this Article shall constitute a forfeiture of this Contract by Consultant.

# **ARTICLE 19 – ACCESS AND AUDITS**

The Consultant shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, expenses, and cost incurred in estimating and performing the work for at least three (3) years after completion of this Contract. The City shall have access to such books, records and documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during normal business hours, at the Consultant's place of business.

#### ARTICLE 20 - NONDISCRIMINATION

The Consultant warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital status and sexual orientation.

## **ARTICLE 21 – INTERPRETATION**

The language of this Contract has been agreed to by both parties to express their mutual intent and no rule of strict construction shall be applied to either party hereto. The headings are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. All personal pronouns used in this Agreement shall include the other gender, and the singular, the plural, and vice versa, unless the context otherwise requires.

# ARTICLE 22 – AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE

The Consultant hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required conducting its business, and that it will at all times conduct its business activities in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City's representative upon request.

# **ARTICLE 23 – SEVERABILITY**

If any term or provision of this Contract, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this Contract, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Contract shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

# ARTICLE 24 – ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT

The City and the Consultant agree that this Contract, together with the Exhibits hereto, sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein. It is further agreed that no modification, amendment or alteration in the terms or conditions contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document executed with the same formality and off equal dignity herewith. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Contract may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto in accordance with Article 25 – Modification of Work. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between this Contract and the provisions in the incorporated Exhibits, the terms of this Contract shall supersede and prevail over the terms in the Exhibits.

#### ARTICLE 25 – MODIFICATION OF SCOPE OF WORK

The City reserves the right to make changes in the Scope of Work, including alterations, reductions therein or additions thereto. Upon receipt by the Consultant of the City's notification of a contemplated change, the Consultant shall, in writing: (1) provide a detailed estimate for the increase or decrease in cost due to the contemplated change; (2) notify the City of any estimated change in the completion date; and (3) advise the City if the contemplated change shall affect the Consultant's ability to meet the completion dates or schedules of this Contract.

If the City so instructs in writing, the Consultant shall suspend work on that portion of the Scope of Work affected by a contemplated change, pending the City's decision to proceed with the change.

If the City elects to make the change, the City shall initiate a Work Authorization or Task Order Amendment and the Consultant shall not commence work on any such change until such written amendment is signed by the Consultant and the City Manager, and if such amendment is in excess of \$25,000, it must also first be approved by the City Commission and signed by the appropriate City Official authorized by the City Commission

The City shall not be liable for payment of any additional or modified work, which is not authorized in the manner provided for by this Article.

#### **ARTICLE 26 – NOTICE**

All notices required in this Contract shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following:

## **FOR CITY:**

City Manager City of Pompano Beach Post Office Drawer 1300 Pompano Beach, Florida 33061

## FOR CONSULTANT:

Mathews Consulting, Inc.

Dave Mathews, Executive Vice President
477 South Rosemary Avenue
Suite 330

West Palm Beach, FL 33401

# **ARTICLE 27 – OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS**

All finished or unfinished documents, data, reports, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models and photographs prepared or provided by the Consultant in connection with this Contract shall become property of the City, whether the project for which they are made is completed or

not, and shall be delivered by Consultant to City within ten (10) days of notice of termination. If applicable, City may withhold any payments then due to Consultant until Consultant complies with the provisions of this section.

# "CITY"

Witnesses:	CITY OF POMPANO BEACH
Sholy R. Bartholomer	By: Lamar Fisher, Mayor  By: Dennis W. Beach, City Manager
Attest:  Asceleta Hammond, City Clerk	(SEAL)
Approved As To Form:  Mark E. Berman, City Attorney  STATE OF FLORIDA	
2016 by LAMAR FISHER, as Mayor, DE	ledged before me this 19th day of January, NNIS W. BEACH, as City Manager and ASCELETA mpano Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation, on behalf y known to me.
NOTARY'S SEAL:	NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA
KRYSTAL AARON NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA Comm# EE874865	(Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)
WCE 191 Expires 2/14/2017	Commission Number

# "CONSULTANT"

<u> </u>	Mathews Consulting Inc.
Witnesses:	
Onath Marghell	By:
Signature Courrey Marshall	Signature
Courmey Moushall	Rene L. Mathews, P.E.
Name Typed, Printed or Stamped	Name Typed, Printed or Stamped
	Title President
PM/V	4.11 455 G P
511 Will	Address: 477 S. Rosemary Avenue, Suite 330
Signature )	West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
Name Type, Printed or Stamped	
wante Type, Finited of Stamped	
STATE OF FLORIDA	
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH	
The foregoing instrument v	was acknowledged before me this day of
November, 2015, b	y Kine Marhews, as
President	of Mathews Consulting, Inc.
He/she is personally known to me or (type of identification) as identification	<u> </u>
(type of identification) as identification	
	U. he Succes Co
NOTARY'S SEAL:	NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA
Notary Public State of Florida	M. Rebecca Travis
M Rebecca Travis  My Commission FF 069995	(Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)
Expires 11/12/2017	FF 069995
	Commission Number



# Florida's Warmest Welcome

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH REQUEST FOR LETTERS OF INTEREST L-40-15

CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

RLI OPENING: September 23, 2015, 2:00 P.M.
PURCHASING OFFICE
1190 N.E. 3RD AVENUE, BUILDING C (Front)
POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA 33060

# CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA

# REQUEST FOR LETTERS OF INTEREST (RLI) L-40-15

# CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

Pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 287.055 "Consultants' Competitive Negotiation Act" the City of Pompano Beach invites qualified engineering firms to submit Letters of Interest, qualifications and experience for consideration to provide Professional Engineering Consulting services to the City on a continuing as-needed basis.

The City will receive sealed proposals until <u>2:00 p.m. (local)</u>, <u>September 23, 2015</u>, in the City's Purchasing Office, 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060. E-mailed or faxed proposals will not be acceptable.

The City intends to issue multiple contracts to engineering firms to provide continuing professional services to the City for various Water and Reuse Treatment Plant projects. Professional services under this contract will be restricted to those required for any project for which construction costs will not exceed \$2 million, and for any study activity for which fees will not exceed \$200,000. The contracts will be for an initial term of (1) one year, with automatic renewals for (4) four (1) one-year periods.

## 1. The types of projects to be undertaken may include, but are not limited to

- Reuse Water Treatment Plant Expansion Projects
- Reuse Water Treatment Plant Modification and/or Enhancement Projects
- Water Treatment Plant Expansion Projects
- Water Treatment Plant Modification and/or Enhancement Projects
- The City's approved Capital Improvement Program maybe found here <a href="http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department">http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department</a> directory/budget/budget.html.php

# 2. The scope of services may include, but is not limited to, the following:

- Prepare studies and make recommendations on methods of operation and/or treatment.
- Prepare preliminary design reports and/or design alternative recommendations. This may include various types of utility modeling, surveying and field data analysis.
- Prepare all required bidding/construction documents for projects. This will include survey
  preparations, design plan preparations, technical specification preparations and cost
  estimate preparations. Attendance at all required pre-design, design, bidding and bid
  award meetings is required.

L-40-15	Initia

- Attend pre-bid conference, prepare possible bid addendums for plan revisions. Assist in making bid award recommendations for contracting/construction services.
- Prepare all required permit applications and submittal packages as required for permit issuance of all agency permits (i.e. State, County and City).
- Provide construction engineering/management services for projects. Services during construction may include shop drawing/contractor submittal reviews and approvals, inspection and approval of project improvements, possible plan revisions and review and approval of contractor pay applications.
- Provide project close-out services. This may include preliminary and final acceptance of projects, preparation and approval of punch list items and project certification as required to all permitting agencies.
- Firms must have previous experience in municipal water and reuse treatment plant projects and must be licensed to practice Professional Engineering in the State of Florida, Florida State Statute 481, by the Board of Professional Regulation.

# 3 Term of Contract

The initial contract period shall be (1) one year, commencing upon award by the appropriate City officials.

The contract shall be automatically renewed for four (4) additional one-year periods unless the General Services Director or the successful bidder receiving award shall give notice to the other party of intent not to renew for the additional period, which notice must be delivered by certified mail and must be received at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the initial contract period. All terms, prices and conditions shall remain firm for the initial period of the contract, and any renewal period.

# 4. Small Business Enterprise Program

The Pompano Beach City Commission has established a voluntary Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program to encourage and foster the participation of Small Business Enterprises in the central procurement activities of the City. The City of Pompano Beach is strongly committed to ensuring the participation of Small Business Enterprises (SBE's) as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. The definition of a SBE, for the purpose of the City's voluntary program, is taken from the State of Florida Statute 288.703(1).

As of the date of publication of this solicitation, a small business means an independently owned and operated business concern that employs 200 or fewer permanent full-time employees and that, together with its affiliates, has a net worth of not more than \$5 million or any firm based in Florida that has a Small Business Administration 8(a) certification. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the \$5 million net worth requirement shall include both personal and business investments.

The City encourages all firms to undertake good faith efforts to identify appropriate Small Business Enterprise partners. Sources of information on certified Small Business Enterprises include the Broward County Small Business Development Division, the State of Florida Office of Supplier Diversity, South Florida Water Management District, and other

L-40-15	2	Initial

agencies throughout the State. The City includes links to these organizations from the City's website <a href="https://www.pompanobeachfl.gov">www.pompanobeachfl.gov</a>.

The City has set a 5% voluntary Small Business Enterprise Goal for this project. SBE Forms are located at the end of this solicitation, and all firms responding <u>must return</u> a response of participation or non-participation in order to be considered responsive for evaluation purposes.

Please indicate in your response if your firm is a certified Small Business Enterprise, and include the completed "Good Faith Effort Report" form with your proposal. Proposers should submit Exhibit A, detailing the list of SBE firms to be used on the proposed contract, and a completed Letter of Intent, Exhibit B, for all participating SBE firms. Submit Exhibit C listing SBE firms that were solicited but not selected. Submit Exhibit D explaining your firm's good faith efforts to include SBE firms on this contract.

# 5. Local Business Program

On March 23, 2010, the City Commission approved a Resolution establishing a Local Business Program, a policy to increase the participation of City of Pompano Beach businesses in the City's procurement process.

You can view the list of City businesses that have a current Business Tax Receipt on the City's website, and locate local firms that are available to perform the work required by the specifications. The business information, sorted by business use classification, is posted on the webpage for the Business Tax Receipt Division: <a href="http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department directory/development services/business">http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department directory/development services/business</a> tax receipt division/business tax receipt division.html.php

The City has set a 5% voluntary Local Business goal for this project. Local Business program forms are located at the end of this solicitation, and all firms responding must return a response of participation or non-participation in order to be considered responsive for evaluation purposes.

The City of Pompano Beach is strongly committed to insuring the participation of City of Pompano Beach Businesses as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. Proposers are encouraged to participate in the City of Pompano Beach's voluntary Local Business Program by including, as part of their package, the Local Business Participation Form (Exhibit E,) listing the local businesses that will be used on the contract, and the Letter of Intent Form (Exhibit F) from each local business that will participate in the contract. Proposers should utilize businesses that are physically located in the City of Pompano Beach with a current Business Tax Receipt. Proposers who are unable to meet the recommended voluntary goals should also provide the Local Business Unavailability Form (Exhibit G,) listing firms that were contacted but not available, and the Good Faith Effort Report (Exhibit H) describing the efforts made to include local business participation in the contract.

## 6. Required Proposal Submittal

# **Submission/Format Requirements**

L-40-15 3 Initial

Submit one (1) original unbound proposal and five (\_5\_) bound photocopies of the proposal. Use 8 ½" x 11" plain white paper; proposal to be typed, and signed by an authorized representative who is able to contractually bind the Proposer. In addition, Proposers must submit one (1) original copy of the Proposal on electronic media in printable Adobe or Microsoft Word format (or other format approved by the City). Duplicate copies must contain all information included in the original submittal. Failure to adhere to the submittal quantity criteria may result in the Proposal being considered non-responsive.

**Information to be included in the proposal**: In order to maintain comparability and expedite the review process, it is required that proposals be organized in the manner specified below, with tabs or dividers between the sections:

# Title page:

Show the project name and number, the name of the Proposer's firm, address, telephone number, name of contact person and the date.

# **Table of Contents:**

Include a clear identification of the material by section and by page.

#### Letter of Interest:

A Letter of Interest, signed by an authorized representative of your firm, expressing your understanding of the project and expressing a positive commitment to provide the services described herein. In the letter, include:

- complete corporate name of the primary firm responding
- applicable Federal Tax Identification Number
- address
- telephone and fax numbers
- name, title, and email of the person to contact regarding your submission

Please limit this section to two pages.

## **Project Team Form:**

Submit a completed "Project Team" form. The purpose of this form is to identify the key members of your team, including any specialty subconsultants.

## **Organizational Chart:**

Specifically identify the management plan (if needed) and provide an organizational chart for the team. The proposer must describe at a minimum, the basic approach to these projects, to include reporting hierarchy of staff and sub-consultants, clarify the individual(s) responsible for the co-ordination of separate components of the scope of services.

## Statement of Skills and Experience of Project Team:

Describe the experience of the entire project team as it relates to the types of projects described in the Scope section of this RLI. Include the experience of the prime consultants as well as other members of the project team; i.e., additional personnel, sub-consultants, branch office, team members, and other resources anticipated to be utilized for this project. Name specific projects (successfully completed within the past five years) where the team members have performed similar projects previously.

## Resumes of Key Personnel

Include resumes for key personnel for prime and subconsultants.

#### References:

References for past projects in the tri-county area (Broward, Palm Beach, and Miami-Dade.) If past projects are not located in the tri-county area references for past projects in other areas of the State of Florida can be provided. Describe the scope of each project in physical terms and by cost, describe the respondent's responsibilities, and provide the contact information (name, email, telephone number) of an individual in a position of responsibility who can attest to respondent's activities in relation to the project.

List any prior projects performed for the City of Pompano Beach.

## Office Locations:

Identify the location of the office from which services will be rendered, and the number of professional and administrative staff at the prime office location. Also identify the location of office(s) of the prime and/or sub consultants that may be utilized to support any or all of the professional services listed above and the number of professional and administrative staff at the prime office location.

If firms are situated outside the local area, (Broward, Palm Beach, and Miami-Dade counties) include a brief statement as to whether or not the firm will arrange for a local office during the term of the contract, if necessary.

# **Minority Business Enterprises:**

It is the intent of the City of Pompano Beach to encourage minority and women owned firms to participate in the process. The methods by which this is accomplished should be developed and presented by the respondents in their submissions.

For any member of your team that is a certified Minority Business Enterprise (as defined by the State of Florida) you must include copies of their certifications for them to be considered toward Item 5 in the evaluation criteria. Complete Exhibit I and attach certificates.

# **Small Business Enterprises:**

Completed SBE program forms, Exhibits A-D. Include copies of all SBE certifications for firms listed on these forms.

#### Local Businesses:

Completed Local Business program forms, Exhibits E-H.

## Litigation:

Disclose any litigation within the past five (5) years arising out your firm's performance, including status/outcome.

## Acknowledgement of all Addenda issued.

# City Forms:

Responses should include all pages of this solicitation, initialed where indicated, in addition to completed SBE and Local Business forms.

L-40-15	5	Initial

# 7. Insurance

The insurance described herein reflects the insurance requirements deemed necessary for this contract by the City. It is not necessary to have this level of insurance in effect at the time of submittal, but certificates indicating that the insurance is currently carried or a letter from the Carrier indicating upgrade ability will speed the review process to determine the most qualified Proposer.

The successful Proposer(s) shall not commence operations until certification or proof of insurance, detailing terms and provisions of coverage, has been received and approved by the City of Pompano Beach Risk Manager.

The following insurance coverage shall be required.

a. Worker's Compensation Insurance covering all employees and providing benefits as required by Florida Statute, Chapter 440, regardless of the size of the company (number of employees). The Contractor further agrees to be responsible for employment, control and conduct of its employees and for any injury sustained by such employees in the course of their employment.

# b. Liability Insurance

- 1) Naming the City of Pompano Beach as an additional insured, on General Liability Insurance only, in connection with work being done under this contract.
- 2) Such Liability insurance shall include the following checked types of insurance and indicated minimum policy limits.

(The rest of this page has been left blank intentionally.)

L-40-15	6	Init	ia
L-40-13	U	ши	10

# **LIMITS OF LIABILITY**

each Type of Insurance occurrence aggregate GENERAL LIABILITY: MINIMUM \$1,000,000 per OCCURRENCE/\$1,000,000 AGGREGATE \* Policy to be written on a claims incurred basis XX comprehensive form XX premises - operations bodily injury explosion & collapse hazard property damage underground hazard products/completed operations hazard bodily injury and XX contractual insurance property damage XX broad form property combined damage XX independent contractors XX personal injury personal injury AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: MINIMUM \$1,000,000 per OCCURRENCE/\$1,000,000 **AGGREGATE** bodily injury (each person) bodily injury XX comprehensive form (each accident) XX owned property damage XX hired bodily injury and XX non-owned property damage combined **REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY** XX comprehensive form Consultant must show proof they have this coverage. **EXCESS LIABILITY** bodily injury and XX umbrella form property damage XX other than umbrella combined \$2,000,000. \$2,000,000. XX PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY \$2,000,000. \$2,000,000. \* Policy to be written on a claims made basis

The certification or proof of insurance must contain a provision for notification to the City, and the City's contracted law enforcement provider if applicable, thirty (30) days in advance of any material change in coverage or cancellation.

The successful Proposer shall furnish to the City the certification or proof of insurance required by the provisions set forth above, within ten (10) days after notification of award of contract

# 8. <u>Selection/Evaluation Process</u>

A Selection/Evaluation Committee will be appointed to select the most qualified firm(s). The Selection/Evaluation Committee will present their findings to the City Commission.

The Committee will rank responses based upon the following criteria.

<u>Criteria</u> <u>Point Range</u>

- 1. Prior experience of the firm with projects of similar size and complexity: 0-45 points
  - a. Number of similar projects
  - b. Complexity of similar projects
  - c. References from past projects performed by the firm
  - d. Previous projects performed for the City (provide description)
  - e. Litigation within the past 5 years arising out of firm's performance (list, describe outcome)
- 2. Qualifications of personnel including sub consultants:

0-35 points

- a. Organizational chart for project
- b. Number of technical staff
- c. Qualifications of technical staff:
  - (1) Number of licensed staff
  - (2) Education of staff
  - (3) Experience of staff on similar projects
- 3. Proximity of the nearest office to the project location:

0-10 points

- a. Location
- b. Number of staff at the nearest office
- Is the firm a certified minority business enterprise as defined by the 0-10 points Florida Small and Minority Business Assistance Act of 1985? (Certification of any sub-contractors should also be included with the response.)

<u>Value of Work Previously Awarded to Firm (Tie-breaker)</u> - In the event of a tie, the firm with the lowest value of work as a prime contractor on City of Pompano Beach projects within the last five years will receive the higher ranking, the firm with the next lowest value of work shall receive the next highest ranking, and so on. The analysis of past work will be based on the City's Purchase Order and payment records.

The Committee has the option to use the above criteria for the initial ranking to short-list Proposers and to use an ordinal ranking system to score short-listed Proposers following

L-40-15 8 Initial

presentations (if deemed necessary) with a score of "1" assigned to the short-listed Proposer deemed most qualified by the Committee.

Each firm should submit documentation that evidences the firm's capability to provide the services required for the Committee's review for short listing purposes. After an initial review of the Proposals, the City may invite Proposers for an interview to discuss the proposal and meet firm representatives, particularly key personnel who would be assigned to the project. Should interviews be deemed necessary, it is understood that the City shall incur no costs as a result of this interview, nor bear any obligation in further consideration of the submittal.

When more than three responses are received, the committee shall furnish the City Commission (for their approval) a listing, in ranked order, of no fewer than three firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the service. If three or less firms respond to the RLI, the list will contain the ranking of all responses.

The City Commission has the authority to (including, but not limited to); approve the recommendation; reject the recommendation and direct staff to re-advertise the solicitation; or, review the responses themselves and/or request oral presentations and determine a ranking order that may be the same or different from what was originally presented to the City Commission.

# 9. Hold Harmless and Indemnification

Proposer covenants and agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officers, agents, and employees from any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge or expense arising out of any act, action, neglect or omission by the Proposer, whether direct or indirect, or whether to any person or property to which the City or said parties may be subject, except that neither the Proposer nor any of its subcontractors will be liable under this section for damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or property directly caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the City or any of its officers, agents or employees.

## 10. Retention of Records and Right to Access

The selected firm shall maintain during the term of the contract all books of account, receipt invoices, reports and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and standards. The form of all records and reports shall be subject to the approval of the City's Internal Auditor. The selected firm must comply with the Internal Auditor's recommendation for changes, additions, or deletions. The City's Internal Auditor must be permitted during normal business hours to audit and examine the books of account, reports, and records relating to this contract. The selected firm shall maintain and make available such records and files for the duration of the contract and retain them until the expiration of three years after final payment under the contract.

# 11. <u>Communications</u>

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by the firm as a result of any discussions with any City employee. Only those communications, which are in writing from the City, may be considered as a duly authorized expression on behalf of the

L-40-15 9 Initial

City. In addition, only communications from firms that are signed and in writing will be recognized by the City as duly authorized expressions on behalf of firms.

# 12. No Discrimination

There shall be no discrimination as to race, sex, color, age, religion, or national origin in the operations conducted under any contract with the City.

# 13. <u>Independent Contractor</u>

The selected firm will conduct business as an independent contractor under the terms of this contract. Personnel services provided by the firm shall be by employees of the firm and subject to supervision by the firm, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the City. Personnel policies, tax responsibilities, social security and health insurance, employee benefits, purchasing policies and other similar administrative procedures applicable to services rendered under this agreement shall be those of the firm.

# 14. Staff Assignment

The City of Pompano Beach reserves the right to approve or reject, for any reasons, Proposer's staff assigned to this project at any time. Background checks may be required.

# 15. <u>Contract Terms</u>

The contract resulting from this RLI shall include, but not be limited to the following terms:

The contract shall include as a minimum, the entirety of this RLI document, together with the successful Proposer's proposal. Contract shall be prepared by the City of Pompano Beach City Attorney.

If the City of Pompano Beach defends any claim, demand, cause of action, or lawsuit arising out of any act, action, negligent acts or negligent omissions, or willful misconduct of the contractor, its employees, agents or servants during the performance of the contract, whether directly or indirectly, contractor agrees to reimburse the City of Pompano Beach for all expenses, attorney's fees, and court costs incurred in defending such claim, cause of action or lawsuit.

## 16. Waiver

It is agreed that no waiver or modification of the contract resulting from this RLI, or of any covenant, condition or limitation contained in it shall be valid unless it is in writing and duly executed by the party to be charged with it, and that no evidence of any waiver or modification shall be offered or received in evidence in any proceeding, arbitration, or litigation between the parties arising out of or affecting this contract, or the right or obligations of any party under it, unless such waiver or modification is in writing, duly executed as above. The parties agree that the provisions of this paragraph may not be waived except by a duly executed writing.

# 17. Survivorship Rights

This contract resulting from this RLI shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties and their executors, administrators, heirs, personal representative, successors and assigns.

# 18. <u>Termination</u>

The contract resulting from this RLI may be terminated by the City of Pompano Beach without cause upon providing contractor with a least sixty (60) days prior written notice.

Should either party fail to perform any of its obligations under the contract resulting from this RLI for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of such failure, the non-defaulting part will have the right to terminate the contract immediately upon delivery of written notice to the defaulting part of its election to do so. The foregoing rights of termination are in addition to any other rights and remedies that such party may have.

# 19. Manner of Performance

Proposer agrees to perform its duties and obligations under the contract resulting from this RLI in a professional manner and in accordance with all applicable local, federal and state laws, rules and regulations.

Proposer agrees that the services provided under the contract resulting from this RLI shall be provided by employees that are educated, trained and experienced, certified and licensed in all areas encompassed within their designated duties. Proposer agrees to furnish the City of Pompano Beach with all documentation, certification, authorization, license, permit, or registration currently required by applicable laws or rules and regulations. Proposer further certifies that it and its employees are now in and will maintain good standing with such governmental agencies and that it and its employees will keep all license, permits, registration, authorization or certification required by applicable laws or regulations in full force and effect during the term of this contract. Failure of Proposer to comply with this paragraph shall constitute a material breach of contract.

# 20. Acceptance Period

Proposals submitted in response to this RLI must be valid for a period no less than ninety (90) days from the closing date of this solicitation.

# 21. RLI Conditions and Provisions

The proposal must be submitted to the City on or before the tirne and date stated herein. All Proposers, by submission of a proposal, shall agree to comply with all of the conditions, requirements and instructions of this RLI as stated or implied herein. All proposals and supporting materials submitted will become the property of the City.

Exceptions or deviations to this solicitation may not be added after the submittal date.

All Proposers are required to provide all information requested in this RLI. Failure to do so may result in disqualification of the proposal.

The City reserves the right to postpone or cancel this RLI, or reject all proposals, if in its sole discretion it deems it to be in the best interest of the City to do so.

L-40-1	15	11	Initia	L
L-TU-1	1 3	l 1	лица	

The City reserves the right to waive any technical or formal errors or omissions and to reject all proposals, or to award contract for the items herein, in part or whole, if it is determined to be in the best interests of the City to do so.

The City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Proposer in the preparation of proposals or for any work performed in connection therein.

# 22. Standard Provisions

# a. Governing Law

Any agreement resulting from this RLI shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida, and the venue for any legal action relating to such agreement will be in Broward County, Florida.

# b. <u>Licenses</u>

In order to perform public work, the successful Proposer shall: Be licensed to do business in Florida, if an entity, and hold or obtain such Contractor and Business Licenses if required by State Statutes or local ordinances.

# c. Conflict Of Interest

For purposes of determining any possible conflict of interest, each Proposer must disclose if any Elected Official, Appointed Official, or City Employee is also an owner, corporate officer, or an employee of the firm. If any Elected Official, Appointed Official, or City Employee is an owner, corporate officer, or an employee, the Proposer must file a statement with the Broward County Supervisor of Elections pursuant to §112.313, Florida Statutes.

# d. <u>Drug Free Workplace</u>

The selected firm(s) will be required to verify they will operate a "Drug Free Workplace" as set forth in Florida Statute, 287.087.

# e. <u>Public Entity Crimes</u>

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for public entity crime may not submit a proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit proposals on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Florida Statute, Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

# f. Patent Fees, Royalties, And Licenses

If the selected Proposer requires or desires to use any design, trademark, device, material or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, the selected Proposer and his surety shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, device, trademark, copyright, material or process in connection with the work agreed to be performed and shall indemnify the City from any cost, expense, royalty or damage which the City may be obligated to pay by reason of any infringement at any time during or after completion of the work.

# g. Familiarity With Laws

It is assumed the selected firm(s) will be familiar with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may affect its services pursuant to this RLI. Ignorance on the part of the firm will in no way relieve the firm from responsibility.

# h. Withdrawal Of Proposals

A firm may withdraw its proposal without prejudice no later than the advertised deadline for submission of proposals by written communication to the General Services Department, 1190 N.E. 3<sup>rd</sup> Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida 33060.

# i. Composition Of Project Team

Firms are required to commit that the principals and personnel named in the proposal will perform the services throughout the contractual term unless otherwise provided for by way of a negotiated contract or written amendment to same executed by both parties. No diversion or substitution of principals or personnel will be allowed unless a written request that sets forth the qualifications and experience of the proposed replacement(s) is submitted to and approved by the City in writing.

# j. <u>Invoicing/Payment</u>

All invoices should be sent to City of Pompano Beach, Accounts Payable, P.O. Drawer 1300, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33061. In accordance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 218, payment will be made within 45 days after receipt of a proper invoice.

## k. Public Records

- The City of Pompano Beach is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall comply with Florida's Public Records Law. Specifically, the Contractor shall:
  - Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the City in order to perform the service;
  - Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that

L-40-15	13	Initial

does not exceed that provided in chapter 119, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise provided by law;

- Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and exempt from public record requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law; and
- d. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the City, at no cost, all public records in possession of the contractor upon termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt. All records stored electronically must be provided to the City in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the agency.
- The failure of Contractor to comply with the provisions set forth in this Article shall constitute a Default and Breach of this Agreement and the City shall enforce the Default in accordance with the provisions set forth herein.

# 23. Questions and Communication

All questions regarding the RLI are to be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Office, 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C (Front), Pompano Beach, Florida 33060, fax (954) 786-4168, or email <a href="mailto:purchasing@copbfl.com">purchasing@copbfl.com</a>. All questions must include the inquiring firm's name, address, telephone number and RLI name and number. Questions must be received at least seven (7) calendar days before the scheduled solicitation opening. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Any addendum necessary to answer questions will be posted to the City's website, and it is the Proposer's responsibility to obtain all addenda before submitting a response to the solicitation.

# 24. Addenda

The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or additional information can be given. If any addenda are issued to this solicitation the City will attempt to notify all known prospective Proposers, however, it shall be the responsibility of each Proposer, prior to submitting their response, to contact the City Purchasing Office at (954) 786-4098 to determine if addenda were issued and to make such addenda a part of their proposal.

### **PROJECT TEAM**

		RLI NUMBER	
		Federal I.D.#	
PRIME			
Role	Name of Individual Assigned to Project	Number of Years Experience	Education, Degrees
Principal-In-Charge		•	
Project Manager			
Asst. Project Manager	·		
Other Key Member			
Other Key Member		_	
SUB-CONSULTANT			
Role	Company Name and Address of Office Handling This Project	Name of Individu to the Project	al Assigned
Surveying		_	
Landscaping			
Engineering		_	
Other Key Member			
Other Key Member			
Other Key Member			
Other Key Member		_	
(use attachments if nec	essary)	_	

L-40-15 15 \_\_\_\_Initial

# EXHIBIT "A" CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION FORM

RLI Number & Title:		Contractor's Name:	
Name of Firm	<u>Contact Person.</u> Telephone Number	Type of Work to be Performed	Contract Percentage of Work
(INCLUDE CERTIFICATES	S FOR ANY FIRMS LISTED	ON THIS PAGE)	
	FOR (	CITY USE ONLY	
Total SBE Contract Particip	oation	_	
Are documents requested :	submitted accordingly	YESNO	
L-40-15	16	Initial	

# EXHIBIT "B" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS A SUBCONTRACTOR

RL	l Number	
TO:(Name of Prime or G	Canaral Cantractor	_
(Name of Prime of C	seneral Contractor)	
The undersigned intends to per contract as (check below)	form subcontracting w	ork in connection with the above
an individual		a corporation
a partnership		a joint venture
The undersigned is prepared to Contract, as hereafter described		work in connection with the above
(Date)	(Name	e of SBE Contractor)
(Bato)	BY:	of obe officially

L-40-15 17 Initial

# EXHIBIT "C" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UNAVAILABILITY FORM

<u>RLI#</u>

work items to be performed in SBE Contractor Address	, certify tha	Form of Bid Sought (i.e., Unit Price, Materials/Labor, Labor Only, etc.)
work items to be performed in SBE Contractor Address	the City of Pompano Beach:  Work Items Sought	Form of Bid Sought (i.e., Unit Price, Materials/Labor, Labo Only, etc.)
SBE Contractor Address	Work Items Sought	(i.e., Unit Price, Materials/Labor, Labor Only, etc.)
Address		(i.e., Unit Price, Materials/Labor, Labor Only, etc.)
Said SBE CONTRACTOR(s):		
Did not bid in re	sponse to the invitation	
Submitted a bid	that was not the low responsible	e bid
Other:		
Signature:		re:
Note: Attach additional docur		

# EXHIBIT "D" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE GOOD FAITH EFFORT REPORT

R	L	I	#	1
	_		"	

	What portions of the contract have you identified as SBE opportunities?
,	
	Did you provide adequate information to identified SBE? Please comment of how you provided this information.
-	
[	Did you send written notices to SBEs?
	Yes No f yes, please include copy of the notice and the list of individuals who were orwarded copies of the notices.
E	Did you advertise in local publications?
H	Yes No f yes, please attach copies of the ads, including name and dates of publicat
	Did you contact any organizations with large constituents of SBE members to ossible sub-contractors? Please attach list of resource organizations used
۷	Vhat type of efforts did you make to assist SBEs in contracting with you?
_ L	ist the SBEs you will utilize and subcontract percentage of work.
_	
5	19

Other comments:			
outer confinents		·-	 
	_		

Note: Please attach the unavailability letters with this report.

L-40-15

# <u>EXHIBIT E</u> <u>CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA</u> <u>LOCAL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION FORM</u>

_I Number & Title:		Prime Contractor's Name:		
Name of Firm, Address	Contact Person, Telephone Number	Type of Work to be Performed	% of Work	
			_	
		<u> </u>	_	
	_			
		-	_	

Initial

21

L-40-15

# EXHIBIT F LOCAL BUSINESS LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS A SUBCONTRACTOR

		RLI Number	
TO: (Name of Prime or G	General Bidder)		
The undersigned City of Powork in connection with the		iness intends to perform subcontracting (check below)	ng
an individual		a corporation	
a partnership		a joint venture	
The undersigned is prepare Contract, as hereafter desc	ed to perform the for ribed in detail:	ollowing work in connection with the ab	ove
50			
(Date)	(Nam	e of Local Business Contractor)	
	BY:		

L-40-15

22

Initial

## EXHIBIT G LOCAL BUSINESS UNAVAILABILITY FORM

RLI #\_\_\_\_\_

		(Name a	ind Title)		
f		,	certify that	t on the	day of
ems to be perform		d the following L City of Pompan		SINESSES	o bid work
Business Name, A	ddress	Work Items Sou	ught	Unit Price	Labor, Labor
	_		· _		
			_		
id Local Business	es:				
aid Local Business		ot bid in respons	se to the in	nvitation	
aid Local Business	Did n	ot bid in respons			onsible bid
aid Local Business	Did n	•	h was not	the low resp	
aid Local Business	Did n	nitted a bid whic	h was not	the low resp	

L-40-15

# EXHIBIT H GOOD FAITH EFFORT REPORT LOCAL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION

RLI#\_\_\_\_\_

_	
	you provide adequate information to identified Local Businesses? Poment on how you provided this information.
Did	you send written notices to Local Businesses?
	YesNo
	es, please include copy of the notice and the list of individuals who we varded copies of the notices.
Did	you advertise in local publications?
	_ Yes No
f ye	es, please attach copies of the ads, including name and dates of publ
Wha you	at type of efforts did you make to assist Local Businesses in contracti?

L-40-15

Other comments: _		
onior comments		
·		

Initial

### EXHIBIT I

### MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION

RLI #
-------

List all members of your team that are a certified Minority Business Enterprise (as defined by the State of Florida.) You must include copies of the MBE certificates for each firm listed.

Name of Firm	Certificate Included?

L-40-15 26 Initial

# STATEMENT OF NO RESPONSE RLI L-40-15 CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

If you do not intend to submit on this requirement, please complete and return this form by the submittal deadline to the City of Pompano Beach Purchasing Division, Building C, 1190 N.E. 3<sup>rd</sup> Avenue, Pompano Beach, Florida 33060; this form may be faxed to (954) 786-4168. Failure to respond, either by submitting a proposal, or by submitting a "Statement of No Response" form, may result in your firm's name being removed from our mailing list.

WE, the undersigned, have declined to submit on this solicitation for the following reason(s): We do not offer this product or an equivalent Our workload would not permit us to perform Insufficient time to respond to the Request for Letters of Interest Unable to meet specifications (explain below) Other (specify below) Remarks \_\_\_\_\_ COMPANY NAME \_\_\_\_\_\_ ADDRESS \_\_\_\_\_ TELEPHONE \_\_\_\_\_\_ SIGNATURE/TITLE DATE \_\_\_\_\_

Page 27

Initial

RLI L-40-15



## City of Pompano Beach Billable Rate Schedule

Classification	Hourly Rate
Principal Engineer	\$160/hr - \$185/hr
Senior Engineer – Level II	\$135/hr - \$165/hr
Senior Engineer – Level I	\$120/hr - \$135/hr
Engineer – Level II	\$115/hr - \$130/hr
Engineer – Level I	\$110/hr - \$125/hr
Senior Construction Inspector (RPR)	\$100/hr - \$121/hr
Construction Inspector	\$85/hr - \$103/hr
Senior Engineering Technician	\$99/hr - \$120/hr
CADD Designer	\$90/hr - \$110/hr
Clerical	\$60/hr - \$73/hr

- ◆ Reimbursable Expenses billed at direct costs
- ♦ Subconsultant Costs billed with 10% markup
- ♦ Rates effective November 2015 through November 2020.

	Peres, Wahans
Prepared by: _	
. , , -	Rene L. Mathews, President



### **CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE**

DATE (MM/OD/YYYY)

11/18/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

Ce	ertificate holder in lieu of such endors	emen	t(s).				<b>J</b>	
PRO	DUCER			CONTACT NAME:				
	sh Sponsored Programs			PHONE (A/C, No. Extt. 800 – 338 – 1391 [FAX (A/C, No.): 888 – 621 – 3173				
L	ivision of Marsh USA Inc. Box 14404			ADDRESS: acecclientrequest@marsh.com				
1	Moines IA 50306					RDING COVERAGE	NAIC#	
						t & Indemnity Co	22357	
INSU				-		iters Insurance Co	30104	
Mat	hews Consulting, Inc.			INSURER C:				
477	S. Rosemary Ave #330			INSURER D :	•			
wes	t Palm Beach, FL 33401			INSURER E :				
				INSURER F :				
CO	/ERAGES CER	TIFIC	ATE NUMBER:			REVISION NUMBER:		
IN CI	HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES DICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY RE ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY H ICLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH	QUIRE	EMENT, TERM OR CONDITION IN, THE INSURANCE AFFORD	OF ANY CONTRACT DED BY THE POLICIE	OR OTHER I	DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO D HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL	WHICH THIS	
INSR LTR		ADDE  S	SUBR/		POLICY EXP	,		
LTR A	TYPE OF INSURANCE GENERAL LIABILITY	INSR \	84SBGLB7335			LIMITS EACH OCCUPRENCE \$1.0	00.000	
^	X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY	'	Prof. Liab.Excl.	11/01/2015	11/01/2016	DAMAGE TO RENTED	00,000	
	CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR					MED EXP (Any one person) \$1,0		
	CDAMS-MADE X OCCUR					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	00,000	
							00,000	
	OCANII ACCREGATE LIMIT ACCILICE DED:						00,000	
	POLICY X PRO-					FRODUCTS - COMPACE AGG \$2,0	30,000	
В	AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY	Y	84UEGLL7958	11/01/2015	11/01/2016	COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT		
	X ANY AUTO					(Ea accident) \$1,0  BODILY INJURY (Per person) \$	00,000	
	ALLOWNED SCHEDULED		ľ			BODILY INJURY (Per accident) \$	_	
	AUTOS AUTOS NON-OWNED					PROPERTY DAMAGE		
	HIRED AUTOS AUTOS					(Per socident)		
Α	X UMBRELLA LIAB X OCCUR		84SBGLB7335	11/01/2015	11/01/2016	-	00,000	
	EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE						00,000	
	DED X RETENTION\$10,000	1				\$	50,500	
В	WORKERS COMPENSATION		84WBGGJ0270	11/01/2015	11/01/2016	X WC STATU- OTH- X TORY LIMITS ER		
	AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY  ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE   1/ N						,000	
	OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? (Mandatory in NH)	NIA				EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$500	•	
	If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below					E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT \$500	_	
	DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS DOWN	$\vdash$				ELE DIGES OF THE STATE OF THE S	,000	
	PRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHIC					<u> </u>		
Cit	y of Pompano Beach is included as a	dditi	onal insured when required	by written contra	ct.		ļ	
							ı	
CE	RTIFICATE HOLDER			CANCELLATION				
		j	APPHALACE TO THE MANAGE TO THE		N DATE TH	DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCEL EREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DI CY PROVISIONS.		
	ty of Pompano	8	BY TE W	AUTHORIZED REPRES	ENTATIVE			
	tn: Risk Manager Box 1300		11 - 20 - 1 S	P. /-		•		

Pompano Beach, FL 33061

MATHCON-01

**CBARTON** 



### CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 8/27/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

1	the terms and conditions of the policicertificate holder in lieu of such endor	y, certai	in policies may require an						
PR	ODUCER			CONTACT Zoraic	la Gonzalez				
Collinsworth, Alter, Fowler & French, LLC 8000 Governors Square Blvd		PHONE (A/C, No, Ext): (305	) 822-7800		A/C, No):	(305)	362-2443		
	ite 301 ami Lakes, FL 33016			ADDRESS:					
						ORDING COVERAGE			NAIC#
				INSURER A : Wesc	o Insurance	Company			25011
INS	URED			INSURER B:					
	Mathews Consulting, Inc. 477 South Rosemary Ave.			INSURER C:					
	Suite 330			INSURER D:					
	West Palm Beach, FL 33401			INSURER E :					
				INSURER F:					
			ATE NUMBER:			REVISION NUM			
I	THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICII NDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY F CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH TYPE OF INSURANCE	REQUIRE PERTA	EMENT, TERM OR CONDITION  IN, THE INSURANCE AFFOR  ES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE  IDEN	ON OF ANY CONTR RDED BY THE POL BEEN REDUCED B	RACT OR OTHE LICIES DESCRI	R DOCUMENT WITH BED HEREIN IS SUI S.	RESPE	CT TO	WHICH THIS
- 11	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY	INSD W	VB TOLIST NOMBER	(MINASSITE)	17 (MINDODITETY	EACH OCCURRENCE		\$	
	CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR	1				DAMAGE TO RENTEL	5	\$	
	CDAMS-MADE CCCOR					PREMISES (Ea occurr MED EXP (Any one pe		\$	
						PERSONAL & ADV IN		\$	
	GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:					GENERAL AGGREGA		s .	
	POLICY PRO-					PRODUCTS - COMP/O		\$	
	OTHER:				1			\$	
	AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY				<u> </u>	COMBINED SINGLE L (Ea accident)	IMIT	\$	
	ANY AUTO					BODILY INJURY (Per	person)	\$	
	ALL OWNED SCHEDULED					BODILY INJURY (Per	accident)	s	
	HIRED AUTOS HIRED AUTOS AUTOS AUTOS AUTOS					PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident)		s	
	HIRED AUTOS AUTOS		J			(Per accident)	-	\$	
	UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR					EACH OCCURRENCE		\$	
	EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE					AGGREGATE		s	
	DED RETENTION \$					TIOGNEGITIE		s	
	WORKERS COMPENSATION	1	-			PER STATUTE	OTH-	Ψ	
	AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE					E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	ER	s	
	OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? (Mandatory In NH)	NIA				E.L. DISEASE - EA EM			
	If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below			}		E.L. DISEASE - POLICE			
Α	Professional Liab.		ARA111993801	05/01/201	5 05/01/2016		I CIWIII	Ψ	3,000,000
Α	Claims-Made Basis		ARA111993801			Annual Aggrega	ite		3,000,000
^				00.01.20	00.01.2010	Amilaa Aggrege			0,000,000
Pro	CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHIC fessional Liability Retroactive Date 01/0 Continuing Contract for Engineering Se	1/1998;				red)			
CE	RTIFICATE HOLDER			CANCELLATIO	N				
City of Pompano Beach PO Drawer 1300 Pompano Beach, FL 33061			THE EXPIRATI	ON DATE TH	DESCRIBED POLICIE HEREOF, NOTICE CY PROVISIONS.				
		AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE							



# CONTRACT FOR CONSULTING/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This Contract is made as of the day of , 2016, by and between the CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as "CITY," and **Globaltech**, **Inc.** () an individual, () a partnership, (X) a corporation, authorized to do business in the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant".

WHEREAS, the Consultant is able and prepared to provide such services as City requires under the terms and conditions set forth herein; and

**WHEREAS**, the City Commission has approved the recommendation that Consultant be employed by the City and authorized the negotiation of contractual terms.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the mutual promises herein, the City and the Consultant agree as follows:

#### ARTICLE 1 – SERVICES/CONSULTANT AND CITY REPRESENTATIVES

The Consultant's responsibility under this Contract is to provide professional consulting services as more specifically set forth in RLI [or RFP] **No.**<u>L-40-15</u> attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein in its entirety.

The Consultant's representative shall be **Globaltech**, **Inc.** 

The CITY's representative shall be City Engineer or designee,

#### ARTICLE 2 – SCHEDULE/PERIOD OF SERVICE

The CONSULTANT shall adhere to the schedule given in each work authorization after receiving the "Notice to Proceed."

Reports and other items shall be delivered or completed in accordance with the detailed schedule set forth in individual Work Authorizations or Task Orders as negotiated.

The Term of this Agreement shall be for an initial period of one (1) year from the date of execution by both the City and the Consultant. The contract shall be automatically renewed for four (4) additional one-year periods unless the General Services Director or the successful bidder receiving award shall give notice to the other party of intent not to renew for the additional period, which notice must be delivered by certified mail and must be received at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the initial contract period. All terms, prices and conditions shall remain firm for the initial period of the contract, and any renewal period.

#### ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENTS TO CONSULTANT

- A. City agrees to pay Consultant in consideration for its services described herein. It is the intention of the parties hereby to ensure that unless otherwise directed by the City in writing, Consultant will continue to provide services as specified in Exhibit A for the term of this Contract.
- B. <u>Price Formula</u>. City agrees to pay Consultant as negotiated on a Task Order or Work Authorization basis. Each task order or work authorization shall specifically identify the scope of the work to be performed and the fees for said services.
- Fee Determination. Each individual Task Order or Work Authorization may be C. negotiated for fees to be earned by Time and Materials with a Not to Exceed Amount, Lump Sum, or a combination of both methods for subtasks contained therein. The total amount to be paid by the City under a Task Order or Work Authorization shall not exceed specified amounts for all services and materials including "out of pocket" expenses as specified in Paragraph E below and also including any approved subcontracts unless otherwise agreed in writing by both parties. The Consultant shall notify the City's Representative in writing when 90% of the "not to exceed amount" for the total Task Order or Work Authorization has been reached. The Consultant will bill the City on a monthly basis, or as otherwise provided. Time and Materials billing will be made at the amounts set forth in Exhibit B for services rendered toward the completion of the Scope of Work. Where incremental billings for partially completed items are permitted, the total billings shall not exceed the estimated percentage of completion as of the billing date. It is acknowledged and agreed to by the Consultant that the dollar limitation set forth in this section is a limitation upon and describes the maximum extent of City's obligation to pay Consultant, but does not include a limitation upon Consultant's duty to perform all services set forth in Exhibit A for the total compensation in the amount or less than the guaranteed maximum stated above.
- D. Invoices received by the City from the Consultant pursuant to this Contract will be reviewed and approved in writing by the City's Representative, indicating that services have been rendered in conformity with the Contract, and then will be sent to the City's Finance Department for payment. All invoices shall contain a detailed breakdown of the services provided for which payment is being requested. Invoices shall be paid in accordance with the Florida State Statutes governing this process. In addition to detailed invoices, upon request of the City's representative, Consultant will provide City with detailed periodic Status Reports on the project.
- E. "Out-of-pocket" expenses shall be reimbursed up to an amount not to exceed amounts included in each Work Authorization or Task Order. All requests for payment of "out-of-pocket" expenses eligible for reimbursement under the terms of this Contract shall include copies of paid receipts, invoices, or other documentation acceptable to the City's Representative and to the Finance Department. Such documentation shall be sufficient to establish that the expense was actually incurred and necessary in the performance of the Scope of Work described in a Work Authorization and this Contract. All out-of- pocket, reimbursables and expenses shall be billed at actual amount paid by Consultant, with no markup.
- F. <u>Final Invoice</u>: In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, the Consultant will clearly state "<u>Final Invoice</u>" on the Consultant's final/last billing to the City. This final invoice shall also certify that all services provided by Consultant have been properly performed and all charges and costs have been invoiced to the City. Because this account will thereupon be

closed, any and other further charges not properly included on this final invoice are waived by the Consultant.

#### ARTICLE 4 – TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE

Signature of this Contract by the Consultant shall also act as the execution of a truth in negotiation certificate, certifying that the wage rates, overhead charges, and other costs used to determine the compensation provided for this Contract are accurate, complete and current as of the date of the Contract and no higher than those charged the Consultant's most favored customer for the same or substantially similar service. Should the City determine that said rates and costs were significantly increased due to incomplete, non-current or inaccurate representation, then said rates shall be adjusted accordingly.

#### ARTICLE 5 – TERMINATION

This Contract may be cancelled by the Consultant, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City's Representative, in the event of substantial failure by the City to perform in accordance with the terms of this Contract through no fault of the Consultant. It may also be terminated, in whole or in part, by the City, with or without cause, immediately upon written notice from the City's Representative or the City Manager to the Consultant. Unless the Consultant is in breach of its Contract, the Consultant shall be paid for services rendered to the City's satisfaction through the date of termination. Ten Dollars (\$10.00) paid to the Consultant, the adequacy of which is acknowledged, is given as specific and independent consideration of the City's right to terminate this Contract for convenience. Termination for cause by the City shall include, but not be limited to, failure to suitably perform the work, failure to continuously perform the work in a manner calculated to meet or accomplish the objectives of the City as set forth herein, or multiple breach of the provisions of this Contract notwithstanding whether any such breach was previously waived or cured. After receipt of a Termination Notice and except as otherwise directed by the City the Consultant shall:

- A. Stop work on the date and to the extent specified.
- B. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the performance of the terminated work.
- C. Transfer all work documents in process, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated work to the City.
  - D. Continue and complete all parts of the work that have not been terminated.

#### ARTICLE 6 - PERSONNEL

The Consultant is, and shall be, in the performance of all work services and activities under this Contract, an independent Contractor, and not an employee, agent or servant of the City. All persons engaged in any of the work or services performed pursuant to this Contract shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to the Consultant's sole direction, supervision, and control and shall not in any manner be deemed to be employees of the City. The Consultant shall exercise control over

the means and manner in which it and its employees perform the work. This contract does not create a partnership or joint venture between the parties.

The Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City, nor shall such personnel be subject to any withholding for tax, Social Security or other purposes by the City, nor be entitled to any benefits of the City including, but not limited to, sick leave, pension benefits, vacation, medical benefits, life insurance, workers or unemployment compensation benefits, or the like from the City.

All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services.

Any changes or substitutions in the Consultant's key personnel, as may be listed in Article 1, must be made known to the City's Representative at the time substitution becomes effective.

The Consultant warrants that all services shall be performed by skilled and competent personnel to the highest professional standards in the field.

#### ARTICLE 7 – SUBCONTRACTING

Consultant may subcontract any services or work to be provided to City with the prior written approval of the City's Representative. The City reserves the right to accept the use of a subcontractor or to reject the selection of a particular subcontractor and to inspect all facilities of any subcontractors in order to make determination as to the capability of the subcontractor to perform properly under this Contract. The City's acceptance of a subcontractor shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Consultant is encouraged to seek small business enterprises and to utilize businesses that are physically located in the City of Pompano Beach with a current Business Tax Receipt for participation in its subcontracting opportunities.

#### ARTICLE 8 – FEDERAL AND STATE TAX

The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Taxes. The City will provide the Consultant with the current state issued exemption certificate. The Consultant shall not be exempted from paying sales tax to its suppliers for materials used to fulfill contractual obligations with the City, nor is the Consultant authorized to use the City's Tax Exemption Number in securing such materials.

The Consultant shall be responsible for payment of its own and its share of its employees' payroll, payroll taxes and benefits with respect to this Contract

#### ARTICLE 9 – AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The City's performance and obligation to pay under this contract is contingent upon appropriation for various projects, tasks and other professional services by the City Commission.

#### **ARTICLE 10 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

The Consultant shall not commence work under this Contract until it has obtained all insurance required under this paragraph and such insurance has been approved by the Risk Manager of the City, nor shall the Consultant allow any Subcontractor to commence work on its sub-contract until the aforementioned approval is obtained.

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE, reflecting evidence of the required insurance, shall be filed with the Risk Manager prior to the commencement of the work. The Certificate shall contain a provision that coverage afforded under these policies will not be cancelled, will not expire and will not be materially modified until at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the City. Policies shall be issued by companies authorized to conduct business under the laws of the State of Florida and shall have adequate Policyholders and Financial ratings in the latest ratings of A. M. Best and be part of the **Florida Insurance Guarantee Association Act**.

Insurance shall be in force until all work required to be performed under the terms of the Contract is satisfactorily completed as evidenced by the formal acceptance by the City. In the event the Insurance Certificate provided indicates that the insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Contract, the Consultant shall furnish, at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration of the date of such insurance, a renewed Certificate of Insurance as proof that equal and like coverage for the balance of the period of the Contract and extension thereunder is in effect. The Consultant shall not continue to work pursuant to this Contract unless all required insurance remains in full force and effect.

Limits of Liability for required insurance are shown in Exhibit C.

The City of Pompano Beach must be named as an additional insured for the Automobile and Commercial General Liability Coverage.

For Professional Liability, if coverage is provided on a claims made basis, then coverage must be continued for the duration of this Contract and for not less than one (1) year thereafter, or in lieu of continuation, provide an "extended reporting clause" for one (1) year.

Consultant shall notify the City Risk Manager in writing within thirty (30) days of any claims filed or made against the Professional Liability Insurance Policy.

For Workers' Compensation Insurance, coverage shall be maintained during the life of this Contract to comply with statutory limits for all employees, and in the case of any work sublet, the Consultant shall require any Subcontractors similarly to provide Workers' Compensation Insurance for all the latter's employees unless such employees are covered by the protection afforded by the Consultant. The Consultant and his Subcontractors shall maintain during the life of this Contract Employer Liability Insurance.

#### **ARTICLE 11 – INDEMNIFICATION**

1. The Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees against any loss, damage or expense (including all costs and reasonable

attorneys' fees and appellate attorneys' fees) suffered by City from any claim, demand, judgment, decree, or cause of action of any kind or nature to the extent caused by any negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful conduct of Consultant, or its agents, servants, or employees, in the performance of services in the performance of the contract.

- 2. The Consultant agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees against any loss, damage, or expense (including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and appellate attorneys' fees) suffered by the City from (a) any breach by the Consultant of this Contract; (b) any misconduct by the Consultant; (c) any inaccuracy in or breach of any of the representations, warranties or covenants made by the Consultant herein; (d) any claims, suits, actions, damages or causes of action arising during the term of this Contract for any personal injury, loss of life or damage to property to the extent caused by any negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful performance of this Contract by the Consultant and the Consultant's agents, employees, invitees. Such obligation to indemnify and hold harmless shall include all costs, expenses and liabilities incurred by the City in connection with any such claim, suit, action or cause of action, including the investigation thereof and the defense of any action or proceeding brought thereon and any order, judgment or decree which may be entered in any such action or proceeding or as a result thereof. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that City would not enter into this contract without this indemnification of City by Consultant, and that the City entering into this Contract shall constitute good and sufficient consideration for this indemnification. These provisions shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to affect in any way the City's rights, privileges, and immunities as set forth in Florida Statute § 768.28.
- 3. Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00) of the amount paid to Consultant is given as separate, distinct and independent consideration for the Consultant's grant of this indemnity, the sufficiency and receipt of this consideration is acknowledged by the Consultant.

#### ARTICLE 12 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

The City and the Consultant each binds itself and its partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns to the other party of this Contract and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Contract. Except as above, neither the City nor the Consultant shall assign, sublet, encumber, convey or transfer its interest in this Contract without prior written consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of the City, which may be a party hereto, nor shall it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than the City and the Consultant.

#### **ARTICLE 13 – REMEDIES**

The laws of the State of Florida shall govern this Contract. Any and all legal action between the parties arising out of the Contract will be held in Broward County. No remedy

herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

#### ARTICLE 14 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Consultant represents that it has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder, as provided for in the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees (Chapter 112, Part III, Florida Statutes). The Consultant further represents that no person having any interest shall be employed for said performance.

The Consultant shall promptly notify the City's representative, in writing, by certified mail, of a potential conflict(s) of interest for any prospective business association, interest or other circumstance, which may influence or appear to influence the Consultant's judgment or quality of services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Consultant may undertake and request an opinion of the City as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a conflict of interest if entered into by the Consultant. The City agrees to notify the Consultant of its opinion by certified mail within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice by the Consultant. If, in the opinion of the City, the prospective business association, interest, or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the Consultant, the City shall so state in the notice and the Consultant shall at its option, enter into said association, interest or circumstance and it shall be deemed not a conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the City by the Consultant under the terms of this Contract.

#### ARTICLE 15 – EXCUSABLE DELAYS

The Consultant shall not be considered in default by reason of any failure in performance if such failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the Consultant or its subcontractors and without their fault or negligence. Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God; natural or public health emergencies; freight embargoes; and abnormally severe and unusual weather conditions.

Upon the Consultant's request, the City shall consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the work and, if the Consultant's failure to perform was without it, or its subcontractors fault or negligence, the Contract Schedule and/or any other affected provision of this Contract shall be revised accordingly; subject to the City's rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time.

#### **ARTICLE 16 - DEBT**

The Consultant shall not pledge the City's credit or attempt to make it a guarantor of payment or surety for any contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien or any form of indebtedness.

The Consultant further warrants and represents that it has no obligation or indebtedness that would impair its ability to fulfill the terms of this Contract.

#### ARTICLE 17 – DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

The Consultant shall deliver to the City's representatives for approval and acceptance, and before being eligible for final payment of any amounts due, all documents and materials prepared by and for the City under this Contract.

All written and oral information not in the public domain or not previously known, and all information and data obtained, developed, or supplied by the City or at its expense will be kept confidential by the Consultant and will not be disclosed to any other party, directly or indirectly, without the City's prior written consent unless required by a lawful order. All drawings, maps, sketches, programs, data base, reports and other data developed, or purchased, under this Contract for or at the City's expense shall be and remain the City's property and may be reproduced and reused at the discretion of the City.

The City and the Consultant shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (Public Records Law).

All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein, or otherwise made in writing by any party pursuant hereto, including but not limited to any representations made herein relating to disclosure or ownership of documents, shall survive the execution and delivery of this Contract and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby.

#### **ARTICLE 18 – CONTINGENT FEES**

The Consultant warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant to solicit or secure this Contract and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract. Violation of this Article shall constitute a forfeiture of this Contract by Consultant.

#### ARTICLE 19 – ACCESS AND AUDITS

The Consultant shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, expenses, and cost incurred in estimating and performing the work for at least three (3) years after completion of this Contract. The City shall have access to such books, records and documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during normal business hours, at the Consultant's place of business.

#### ARTICLE 20 – NONDISCRIMINATION

The Consultant warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital status and sexual orientation.

#### **ARTICLE 21 – INTERPRETATION**

The language of this Contract has been agreed to by both parties to express their mutual intent and no rule of strict construction shall be applied to either party hereto. The headings are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. All personal pronouns used in this Agreement shall include the other gender, and the singular, the plural, and vice versa, unless the context otherwise requires.

#### **ARTICLE 22 – AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE**

The Consultant hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required conducting its business, and that it will at all times conduct its business activities in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City's representative upon request.

#### **ARTICLE 23 – SEVERABILITY**

If any term or provision of this Contract, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this Contract, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Contract shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

#### ARTICLE 24 – ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT

The City and the Consultant agree that this Contract, together with the Exhibits hereto, sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein. It is further agreed that no modification, amendment or alteration in the terms or conditions contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document executed with the same formality and off equal dignity herewith. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Contract may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto in accordance with Article 25 – Modification of Work. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between this Contract and the provisions in the incorporated Exhibits, the terms of this Contract shall supersede and prevail over the terms in the Exhibits.

#### ARTICLE 25 – MODIFICATION OF SCOPE OF WORK

The City reserves the right to make changes in the Scope of Work, including alterations, reductions therein or additions thereto. Upon receipt by the Consultant of the City's notification of a contemplated change, the Consultant shall, in writing: (1) provide a detailed estimate for the increase or decrease in cost due to the contemplated change; (2) notify the City of any estimated change in the completion date; and (3) advise the City if the contemplated change shall affect the Consultant's ability to meet the completion dates or schedules of this Contract.

If the City so instructs in writing, the Consultant shall suspend work on that portion of the Scope of Work affected by a contemplated change, pending the City's decision to proceed with the change.

If the City elects to make the change, the City shall initiate a Work Authorization or Task Order Amendment and the Consultant shall not commence work on any such change until such written amendment is signed by the Consultant and the City Manager, and if such amendment is in excess of \$25,000, it must also first be approved by the City Commission and signed by the appropriate City Official authorized by the City Commission

The City shall not be liable for payment of any additional or modified work, which is not authorized in the manner provided for by this Article.

#### **ARTICLE 26 – NOTICE**

All notices required in this Contract shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following:

#### **FOR CITY:**

City Manager City of Pompano Beach Post Office Drawer 1300 Pompano Beach, Florida 33061

#### FOR CONSULTANT:

Globaltech, Inc.
David Schuman, Vice President
6001 Broken Sound Parkway NW
Suite 610
Boca Raton, FL 33487

#### ARTICLE 27 – OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

All finished or unfinished documents, data, reports, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models and photographs prepared or provided by the Consultant in connection with this Contract shall become property of the City, whether the project for which they are made is completed or

not, and shall be delivered by Consultant to City within ten (10) days of notice of termination. If applicable, City may withhold any payments then due to Consultant until Consultant complies with the provisions of this section.

#### "CITY"

Witnesses:	CITY OF POMPANO BEACH
Shalley R. Bartholomew	By: Lamar Fisher, Mayor  By: Lamar Fisher, Mayor  Dennis W. Beach, City Manager
Attest:  Asceleta Hammond, City Clerk	(SEAL)
Approved As To Form?  Mark E. Berman, City Attorney  STATE OF FLORIDA  COUNTY OF BROWARD	
The foregoing instrument was acknow 20 Lamar FISHER, as Mayor, DE	ledged before me this 19th day of Canton, control of the control o
NOTARY'S SEAL:  KRYSTAL AARON NOTARY PUBLIC	NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA  Mystol Form  (Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)
STATE OF FLORIDA Comm# EE874865 Expires 2/14/2017	Commission Number

### "CONSULTANT"

### Globaltech, Inc.

	obalteen, inc.
Witnesses:	
Signature	By:
Name Typed, Printed or Stamped	Name Typed, Printed or Stamped
Signature  Ricesson D. Ocson  Name Type, Printed or Stamped	Address: 6001 Broken Sound Pky NW Suite 410 Boca Raton FL 33487
The foregoing instrument was November, 2015, by resident  He/she is personally known to me or who (type of identification) as identification.	as acknowledged before me this 12 <sup>th</sup> day of bernard P. Gandy, as of Globaltech, Inc.
NOTARY'S SEAL:  REBECCA THOMAS MY COMMISSION # FF 160310 EXPIRES: October 29, 2017 Bonded Thru Notary Public Underwriters	NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA  Rebecca Thomas (Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)  FF 160310  Commission Number



## Florida's Warmest Welcome

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH REQUEST FOR LETTERS OF INTEREST L-40-15

CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

RLI OPENING: September 23, 2015, 2:00 P.M.
PURCHASING OFFICE
1190 N.E. 3RD AVENUE, BUILDING C (Front)
POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA 33060

#### CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA

#### REQUEST FOR LETTERS OF INTEREST (RLI) L-40-15

## CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

Pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 287.055 "Consultants' Competitive Negotiation Act" the City of Pompano Beach invites qualified engineering firms to submit Letters of Interest, qualifications and experience for consideration to provide Professional Engineering Consulting services to the City on a continuing as-needed basis.

The City will receive sealed proposals until <u>2:00 p.m. (local)</u>, <u>September 23, 2015</u>, in the City's Purchasing Office, 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060. E-mailed or faxed proposals will not be acceptable.

The City intends to issue multiple contracts to engineering firms to provide continuing professional services to the City for various Water and Reuse Treatment Plant projects. Professional services under this contract will be restricted to those required for any project for which construction costs will not exceed \$2 million, and for any study activity for which fees will not exceed \$200,000. The contracts will be for an initial term of (1) one year, with automatic renewals for (4) four (1) one-year periods.

#### 1. The types of projects to be undertaken may include, but are not limited to

- Reuse Water Treatment Plant Expansion Projects
- Reuse Water Treatment Plant Modification and/or Enhancement Projects
- Water Treatment Plant Expansion Projects
- Water Treatment Plant Modification and/or Enhancement Projects
- The City's approved Capital Improvement Program maybe found here http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department\_directory/budget/budget.html.php

#### 2. The scope of services may include, but is not limited to, the following;

- Prepare studies and make recommendations on methods of operation and/or treatment.
- Prepare preliminary design reports and/or design alternative recommendations. This may include various types of utility modeling, surveying and field data analysis.
- Prepare all required bidding/construction documents for projects. This will include survey
  preparations, design plan preparations, technical specification preparations and cost
  estimate preparations. Attendance at all required pre-design, design, bidding and bid
  award meetings is required.

- Attend pre-bid conference, prepare possible bid addendums for plan revisions. Assist in making bid award recommendations for contracting/construction services.
- Prepare all required permit applications and submittal packages as required for permit issuance of all agency permits (i.e. State, County and City).
- Provide construction engineering/management services for projects. Services during construction may include shop drawing/contractor submittal reviews and approvals, inspection and approval of project improvements, possible plan revisions and review and approval of contractor pay applications.
- Provide project close-out services. This may include preliminary and final acceptance of projects, preparation and approval of punch list items and project certification as required to all permitting agencies.
- Firms must have previous experience in municipal water and reuse treatment plant projects and must be licensed to practice Professional Engineering in the State of Florida, Florida State Statute 481, by the Board of Professional Regulation.

#### 3 Term of Contract

The initial contract period shall be (1) one year, commencing upon award by the appropriate City officials.

The contract shall be automatically renewed for four (4) additional one-year periods unless the General Services Director or the successful bidder receiving award shall give notice to the other party of intent not to renew for the additional period, which notice must be delivered by certified mail and must be received at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the initial contract period. All terms, prices and conditions shall remain firm for the initial period of the contract, and any renewal period.

#### 4. Small Business Enterprise Program

The Pompano Beach City Commission has established a voluntary Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program to encourage and foster the participation of Small Business Enterprises in the central procurement activities of the City. The City of Pompano Beach is strongly committed to ensuring the participation of Small Business Enterprises (SBE's) as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. The definition of a SBE, for the purpose of the City's voluntary program, is taken from the State of Florida Statute 288.703(1).

As of the date of publication of this solicitation, a small business means an independently owned and operated business concern that employs 200 or fewer permanent full-time employees and that, together with its affiliates, has a net worth of not more than \$5 million or any firm based in Florida that has a Small Business Administration 8(a) certification. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the \$5 million net worth requirement shall include both personal and business investments.

The City encourages all firms to undertake good faith efforts to identify appropriate Small Business Enterprise partners. Sources of information on certified Small Business Enterprises include the Broward County Small Business Development Division, the State of Florida Office of Supplier Diversity, South Florida Water Management District, and other

L-40-15	2	Initial
D 10 13		miltimi

agencies throughout the State. The City includes links to these organizations from the City's website <a href="https://www.pompanobeachfl.gov">www.pompanobeachfl.gov</a>.

The City has set a 5% voluntary Small Business Enterprise Goal for this project. SBE Forms are located at the end of this solicitation, and all firms responding <u>must return</u> a response of participation or non-participation in order to be considered responsive for evaluation purposes.

Please indicate in your response if your firm is a certified Small Business Enterprise, and include the completed "Good Faith Effort Report" form with your proposal. Proposers should submit Exhibit A, detailing the list of SBE firms to be used on the proposed contract, and a completed Letter of Intent, Exhibit B, for all participating SBE firms. Submit Exhibit C listing SBE firms that were solicited but not selected. Submit Exhibit D explaining your firm's good faith efforts to include SBE firms on this contract.

#### 5. <u>Local Business Program</u>

On March 23, 2010, the City Commission approved a Resolution establishing a Local Business Program, a policy to increase the participation of City of Pompano Beach businesses in the City's procurement process.

You can view the list of City businesses that have a current Business Tax Receipt on the City's website, and locate local firms that are available to perform the work required by the specifications. The business information, sorted by business use classification, is posted on the webpage for the Business Tax Receipt Division: <a href="http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department directory/development services/business">http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department directory/development services/business</a> tax receipt division/business tax receipt division.html.php

The City has set a 5% voluntary Local Business goal for this project. Local Business program forms are located at the end of this solicitation, and all firms responding must return a response of participation or non-participation in order to be considered responsive for evaluation purposes.

The City of Pompano Beach is strongly committed to insuring the participation of City of Pompano Beach Businesses as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. Proposers are encouraged to participate in the City of Pompano Beach's voluntary Local Business Program by including, as part of their package, the Local Business Participation Form (Exhibit E,) listing the local businesses that will be used on the contract, and the Letter of Intent Form (Exhibit F) from each local business that will participate in the contract. Proposers should utilize businesses that are physically located in the City of Pompano Beach with a current Business Tax Receipt. Proposers who are unable to meet the recommended voluntary goals should also provide the Local Business Unavailability Form (Exhibit G,) listing firms that were contacted but not available, and the Good Faith Effort Report (Exhibit H) describing the efforts made to include local business participation in the contract.

#### 6. Required Proposal Submittal

#### Submission/Format Requirements

L-40-15 3 Initial

Submit one (1) original unbound proposal and five (\_5\_) bound photocopies of the proposal. Use 8 ½" x 11" plain white paper; proposal to be typed, and signed by an authorized representative who is able to contractually bind the Proposer. In addition, Proposers must submit one (1) original copy of the Proposal on electronic media in printable Adobe or Microsoft Word format (or other format approved by the City). Duplicate copies must contain all information included in the original submittal. Failure to adhere to the submittal quantity criteria may result in the Proposal being considered non-responsive.

**Information to be included in the proposal**: In order to maintain comparability and expedite the review process, it is required that proposals be organized in the manner specified below, with tabs or dividers between the sections:

#### Title page:

Show the project name and number, the name of the Proposer's firm, address, telephone number, name of contact person and the date.

#### **Table of Contents:**

Include a clear identification of the material by section and by page.

#### Letter of Interest:

A Letter of Interest, signed by an authorized representative of your firm, expressing your understanding of the project and expressing a positive commitment to provide the services described herein. In the letter, include:

- · complete corporate name of the primary firm responding
- applicable Federal Tax Identification Number
- address
- telephone and fax numbers
- name, title, and email of the person to contact regarding your submission

Please limit this section to two pages.

#### **Project Team Form:**

Submit a completed "Project Team" form. The purpose of this form is to identify the key members of your team, including any specialty subconsultants.

#### **Organizational Chart:**

Specifically identify the management plan (if needed) and provide an organizational chart for the team. The proposer must describe at a minimum, the basic approach to these projects, to include reporting hierarchy of staff and sub-consultants, clarify the individual(s) responsible for the co-ordination of separate components of the scope of services.

#### Statement of Skills and Experience of Project Team:

Describe the experience of the entire project team as it relates to the types of projects described in the Scope section of this RLI. Include the experience of the prime consultants as well as other members of the project team; i.e., additional personnel, sub-consultants, branch office, team members, and other resources anticipated to be utilized for this project. Name specific projects (successfully completed within the past five years) where the team members have performed similar projects previously.

#### **Resumes of Key Personnel**

Include resumes for key personnel for prime and subconsultants.

#### References:

References for past projects in the tri-county area (Broward, Palm Beach, and Miami-Dade.) If past projects are not located in the tri-county area references for past projects in other areas of the State of Florida can be provided. Describe the scope of each project in physical terms and by cost, describe the respondent's responsibilities, and provide the contact information (name, email, telephone number) of an individual in a position of responsibility who can attest to respondent's activities in relation to the project.

List any prior projects performed for the City of Pompano Beach.

#### Office Locations:

Identify the location of the office from which services will be rendered, and the number of professional and administrative staff at the prime office location. Also identify the location of office(s) of the prime and/or sub consultants that may be utilized to support any or all of the professional services listed above and the number of professional and administrative staff at the prime office location.

If firms are situated outside the local area, (Broward, Palm Beach, and Miami-Dade counties) include a brief statement as to whether or not the firm will arrange for a local office during the term of the contract, if necessary.

#### **Minority Business Enterprises:**

It is the intent of the City of Pompano Beach to encourage minority and women owned firms to participate in the process. The methods by which this is accomplished should be developed and presented by the respondents in their submissions.

For any member of your team that is a certified Minority Business Enterprise (as defined by the State of Florida) you must include copies of their certifications for them to be considered toward Item 5 in the evaluation criteria. Complete Exhibit I and attach certificates.

#### **Small Business Enterprises:**

Completed SBE program forms, Exhibits A-D. Include copies of all SBE certifications for firms listed on these forms.

#### **Local Businesses:**

Completed Local Business program forms, Exhibits E-H.

#### Litigation

Disclose any litigation within the past five (5) years arising out your firm's performance, including status/outcome.

#### Acknowledgement of all Addenda issued.

#### City Forms:

Responses should include all pages of this solicitation, initialed where indicated, in addition to completed SBE and Local Business forms.

L-40-15	5	Initia

### 7. Insurance

The insurance described herein reflects the insurance requirements deemed necessary for this contract by the City. It is not necessary to have this level of insurance in effect at the time of submittal, but certificates indicating that the insurance is currently carried or a letter from the Carrier indicating upgrade ability will speed the review process to determine the most qualified Proposer.

The successful Proposer(s) shall not commence operations until certification or proof of insurance, detailing terms and provisions of coverage, has been received and approved by the City of Pompano Beach Risk Manager.

The following insurance coverage shall be required.

a. Worker's Compensation Insurance covering all employees and providing benefits as required by Florida Statute, Chapter 440, regardless of the size of the company (number of employees). The Contractor further agrees to be responsible for employment, control and conduct of its employees and for any injury sustained by such employees in the course of their employment.

#### b. <u>Liability Insurance</u>

- 1) Naming the City of Pompano Beach as an additional insured, on General Liability Insurance only, in connection with work being done under this contract.
- Such Liability insurance shall include the following checked types of insurance and indicated minimum policy limits.

(The rest of this page has been left blank intentionally.)

L-40-15	6	Ini	tı	a

#### LIMITS OF LIABILITY

each Type of Insurance occurrence aggregate GENERAL LIABILITY: MINIMUM \$1,000,000 per OCCURRENCE/\$1,000,000 AGGREGATE \* Policy to be written on a claims incurred basis XX comprehensive form XX premises - operations bodily injury explosion & collapse hazard property damage underground hazard products/completed operations hazard bodily injury and XX contractual insurance property damage XX broad form property combined damage XX independent contractors XX personal injury personal injury AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: MINIMUM \$1,000,000 per OCCURRENCE/\$1,000,000 **AGGREGATE** bodily injury (each person) bodily injury XX comprehensive form (each accident) XX owned property damage XX hired bodily injury and XX non-owned property damage combined **REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY** XX comprehensive form Consultant must show proof they have this coverage. **EXCESS LIABILITY** bodily injury and XX umbrella form property damage XX other than umbrella combined \$2,000,000. \$2,000,000. XX PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY \$2,000,000. \$2,000,000. \* Policy to be written on a claims made basis

The certification or proof of insurance must contain a provision for notification to the City, and the City's contracted law enforcement provider if applicable, thirty (30) days in advance of any material change in coverage or cancellation.

The successful Proposer shall furnish to the City the certification or proof of insurance required by the provisions set forth above, within ten (10) days after notification of award of contract

#### 8. Selection/Evaluation Process

A Selection/Evaluation Committee will be appointed to select the most qualified firm(s). The Selection/Evaluation Committee will present their findings to the City Commission.

The Committee will rank responses based upon the following criteria.

Criteria Point Range

- 1. Prior experience of the firm with projects of similar size and complexity: 0-45 points
  - a. Number of similar projects
  - b. Complexity of similar projects
  - c. References from past projects performed by the firm
  - d. Previous projects performed for the City (provide description)
  - e. Litigation within the past 5 years arising out of firm's performance (list, describe outcome)
- 2. Qualifications of personnel including sub consultants:

0-35 points

- a. Organizational chart for project
- b. Number of technical staff
- c. Qualifications of technical staff:
  - (1) Number of licensed staff
  - (2) Education of staff
  - (3) Experience of staff on similar projects
- 3. Proximity of the nearest office to the project location:

0-10 points

- a. Location
- b. Number of staff at the nearest office
- 4. Is the firm a certified minority business enterprise as defined by the Florida Small and Minority Business Assistance Act of 1985? (Certification of any sub-contractors should also be included with the response.)

<u>Value of Work Previously Awarded to Firm (Tie-breaker)</u> - In the event of a tie, the firm with the lowest value of work as a prime contractor on City of Pompano Beach projects within the last five years will receive the higher ranking, the firm with the next lowest value of work shall receive the next highest ranking, and so on. The analysis of past work will be based on the City's Purchase Order and payment records.

The Committee has the option to use the above criteria for the initial ranking to short-list Proposers and to use an ordinal ranking system to score short-listed Proposers following

L-40-15	0	Initia
1411-13	^	Initia

presentations (if deemed necessary) with a score of "1" assigned to the short-listed Proposer deemed most qualified by the Committee.

Each firm should submit documentation that evidences the firm's capability to provide the services required for the Committee's review for short listing purposes. After an initial review of the Proposals, the City may invite Proposers for an interview to discuss the proposal and meet firm representatives, particularly key personnel who would be assigned to the project. Should interviews be deemed necessary, it is understood that the City shall incur no costs as a result of this interview, nor bear any obligation in further consideration of the submittal.

When more than three responses are received, the committee shall furnish the City Commission (for their approval) a listing, in ranked order, of no fewer than three firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the service. If three or less firms respond to the RLI, the list will contain the ranking of all responses.

The City Commission has the authority to (including, but not limited to); approve the recommendation; reject the recommendation and direct staff to re-advertise the solicitation; or, review the responses themselves and/or request oral presentations and determine a ranking order that may be the same or different from what was originally presented to the City Commission.

#### 9. <u>Hold Harmless and Indemnification</u>

Proposer covenants and agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officers, agents, and employees from any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge or expense arising out of any act, action, neglect or omission by the Proposer, whether direct or indirect, or whether to any person or property to which the City or said parties may be subject, except that neither the Proposer nor any of its subcontractors will be liable under this section for damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or property directly caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the City or any of its officers, agents or employees.

#### 10. Retention of Records and Right to Access

The selected firm shall maintain during the term of the contract all books of account, receipt invoices, reports and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and standards. The form of all records and reports shall be subject to the approval of the City's Internal Auditor. The selected firm must comply with the Internal Auditor's recommendation for changes, additions, or deletions. The City's Internal Auditor must be permitted during normal business hours to audit and examine the books of account, reports, and records relating to this contract. The selected firm shall maintain and make available such records and files for the duration of the contract and retain them until the expiration of three years after final payment under the contract.

#### 11. Communications

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by the firm as a result of any discussions with any City employee. Only those communications, which are in writing from the City, may be considered as a duly authorized expression on behalf of the

City. In addition, only communications from firms that are signed and in writing will be recognized by the City as duly authorized expressions on behalf of firms.

#### 12. No Discrimination

There shall be no discrimination as to race, sex, color, age, religion, or national origin in the operations conducted under any contract with the City.

#### 13. <u>Independent Contractor</u>

The selected firm will conduct business as an independent contractor under the terms of this contract. Personnel services provided by the firm shall be by employees of the firm and subject to supervision by the firm, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the City. Personnel policies, tax responsibilities, social security and health insurance, employee benefits, purchasing policies and other similar administrative procedures applicable to services rendered under this agreement shall be those of the firm.

#### 14. Staff Assignment

The City of Pompano Beach reserves the right to approve or reject, for any reasons, Proposer's staff assigned to this project at any time. Background checks may be required.

#### 15. Contract Terms

The contract resulting from this RLI shall include, but not be limited to the following terms:

The contract shall include as a minimum, the entirety of this RLI document, together with the successful Proposer's proposal. Contract shall be prepared by the City of Pompano Beach City Attorney.

If the City of Pompano Beach defends any claim, demand, cause of action, or lawsuit arising out of any act, action, negligent acts or negligent omissions, or willful misconduct of the contractor, its employees, agents or servants during the performance of the contract, whether directly or indirectly, contractor agrees to reimburse the City of Pompano Beach for all expenses, attomey's fees, and court costs incurred in defending such claim, cause of action or lawsuit.

#### 16. Waiver

It is agreed that no waiver or modification of the contract resulting from this RLI, or of any covenant, condition or limitation contained in it shall be valid unless it is in writing and duly executed by the party to be charged with it, and that no evidence of any waiver or modification shall be offered or received in evidence in any proceeding, arbitration, or litigation between the parties arising out of or affecting this contract, or the right or obligations of any party under it, unless such waiver or modification is in writing, duly executed as above. The parties agree that the provisions of this paragraph may not be waived except by a duly executed writing.

#### 17. Survivorship Rights

This contract resulting from this RLI shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties and their executors, administrators, heirs, personal representative, successors and assigns.

#### 18. <u>Termination</u>

The contract resulting from this RLI may be terminated by the City of Pompano Beach without cause upon providing contractor with a least sixty (60) days prior written notice.

Should either party fail to perform any of its obligations under the contract resulting from this RLI for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of such failure, the non-defaulting part will have the right to terminate the contract immediately upon delivery of written notice to the defaulting part of its election to do so. The foregoing rights of termination are in addition to any other rights and remedies that such party may have.

#### 19. Manner of Performance

Proposer agrees to perform its duties and obligations under the contract resulting from this RLI in a professional manner and in accordance with all applicable local, federal and state laws, rules and regulations.

Proposer agrees that the services provided under the contract resulting from this RLI shall be provided by employees that are educated, trained and experienced, certified and licensed in all areas encompassed within their designated duties. Proposer agrees to furnish the City of Pompano Beach with all documentation, certification, authorization, license, permit, or registration currently required by applicable laws or rules and regulations. Proposer further certifies that it and its employees are now in and will maintain good standing with such governmental agencies and that it and its employees will keep all license, permits, registration, authorization or certification required by applicable laws or regulations in full force and effect during the term of this contract. Failure of Proposer to comply with this paragraph shall constitute a material breach of contract.

#### 20. Acceptance Period

Proposals submitted in response to this RLI must be valid for a period no less than ninety (90) days from the closing date of this solicitation.

#### 21. RLI Conditions and Provisions

The proposal must be submitted to the City on or before the time and date stated herein. All Proposers, by submission of a proposal, shall agree to comply with all of the conditions, requirements and instructions of this RLI as stated or implied herein. All proposals and supporting materials submitted will become the property of the City.

Exceptions or deviations to this solicitation may not be added after the submittal date.

All Proposers are required to provide all information requested in this RLI. Failure to do so may result in disqualification of the proposal.

The City reserves the right to postpone or cancel this RLI, or reject all proposals, if in its sole discretion it deems it to be in the best interest of the City to do so.

L-40-15	11	Initial
D-10-13	1 4	211111111

The City reserves the right to waive any technical or formal errors or omissions and to reject all proposals, or to award contract for the items herein, in part or whole, if it is determined to be in the best interests of the City to do so.

The City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Proposer in the preparation of proposals or for any work performed in connection therein.

#### 22. Standard Provisions

#### a. Governing Law

Any agreement resulting from this RLI shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida, and the venue for any legal action relating to such agreement will be in Broward County, Florida.

#### b. Licenses

In order to perform public work, the successful Proposer shall: Be licensed to do business in Florida, if an entity, and hold or obtain such Contractor and Business Licenses if required by State Statutes or local ordinances.

#### c. <u>Conflict Of Interest</u>

For purposes of determining any possible conflict of interest, each Proposer must disclose if any Elected Official, Appointed Official, or City Employee is also an owner, corporate officer, or an employee of the firm. If any Elected Official, Appointed Official, or City Employee is an owner, corporate officer, or an employee, the Proposer must file a statement with the Broward County Supervisor of Elections pursuant to §112.313, Florida Statutes.

#### Drug Free Workplace

The selected firm(s) will be required to verify they will operate a "Drug Free Workplace" as set forth in Florida Statute, 287.087.

#### e. Public Entity Crimes

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for public entity crime may not submit a proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit proposals on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Florida Statute, Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

#### f. Patent Fees, Royalties, And Licenses

If the selected Proposer requires or desires to use any design, trademark, device, material or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, the selected Proposer and his surety shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, device, trademark, copyright, material or process in connection with the work agreed to be performed and shall indemnify the City from any cost, expense, royalty or damage which the City may be obligated to pay by reason of any infringement at any time during or after completion of the work.

#### g. Familiarity With Laws

It is assumed the selected firm(s) will be familiar with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may affect its services pursuant to this RLI. Ignorance on the part of the firm will in no way relieve the firm from responsibility.

#### h. <u>Withdrawal Of Proposals</u>

A firm may withdraw its proposal without prejudice no later than the advertised deadline for submission of proposals by written communication to the General Services Department, 1190 N.E. 3<sup>rd</sup> Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida 33060.

#### i. <u>Composition Of Project Team</u>

Firms are required to commit that the principals and personnel named in the proposal will perform the services throughout the contractual term unless otherwise provided for by way of a negotiated contract or written amendment to same executed by both parties. No diversion or substitution of principals or personnel will be allowed unless a written request that sets forth the qualifications and experience of the proposed replacement(s) is submitted to and approved by the City in writing.

#### j. <u>Invoicing/Payment</u>

All invoices should be sent to City of Pompano Beach, Accounts Payable, P.O. Drawer 1300, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33061. In accordance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 218, payment will be made within 45 days after receipt of a proper invoice.

#### k. Public Records

- The City of Pompano Beach is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall comply with Florida's Public Records Law. Specifically, the Contractor shall:
  - a. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the City in order to perform the service;
  - b. Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that

1 10 15	12	Y., *4*
L-40-15	1.5	Initia

does not exceed that provided in chapter 119, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise provided by law;

- Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and exempt from public record requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law; and
- d. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the City, at no cost, all public records in possession of the contractor upon termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt. All records stored electronically must be provided to the City in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the agency.
- The failure of Contractor to comply with the provisions set forth in this Article shall constitute a Default and Breach of this Agreement and the City shall enforce the Default in accordance with the provisions set forth herein.

#### 23. Questions and Communication

All questions regarding the RLI are to be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Office, 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C (Front), Pompano Beach, Florida 33060, fax (954) 786-4168, or email <a href="mailto:purchasing@copbfl.com">purchasing@copbfl.com</a>. All questions must include the inquiring firm's name, address, telephone number and RLI name and number. Questions must be received at least seven (7) calendar days before the scheduled solicitation opening. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Any addendum necessary to answer questions will be posted to the City's website, and it is the Proposer's responsibility to obtain all addenda before submitting a response to the solicitation.

#### 24. Addenda

The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or additional information can be given. If any addenda are issued to this solicitation the City will attempt to notify all known prospective Proposers, however, it shall be the responsibility of each Proposer, prior to submitting their response, to contact the City Purchasing Office at (954) 786-4098 to determine if addenda were issued and to make such addenda a part of their proposal.

#### **PROJECT TEAM**

	RLI NUMBER		
		Federal I.D.#	
PRIME			
Role	Name of Individual Assigned to Project	Number of Educatio Years Degrees Experience	n,
Principal-In-Charge			
Project Manager			
Asst. Project Manager	·		_
Other Key Member			_
Other Key Member			_
SUB-CONSULTANT			
Role	Company Name and Address of Office Handling This Project	Name of Individual Assigned to the Project	i
Surveying			_
Landscaping			<u> </u>
Engineering			<u> </u>
Other Key Member			_ _
Other Key Member			_
Other Key Member			_ _
Other Key Member		_	<u> </u>
(use attachments if nec	essary)		_

L-40-15

# EXHIBIT "A" CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION FORM

RLI Number & Title:		Contractor's Name:	
Name of Firm	Contact Person, Telephone Number	Type of Work to be Performed	Contract Percentage of Work
	_		
(INCLUDE CERTIFICATE	S FOR ANY FIRMS LISTED	ON THIS PAGE)	
	FOR (	CITY USE ONLY	
Fotal SBE Contract Particip	pation	_	
Are documents requested :	submitted accordingly _	YESNO	
L-40-15	16	Initial	

## EXHIBIT "B" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS A SUBCONTRACTOR

RL	l Number	
TO:		_
(Name of Prime or C	General Contractor)	
The undersigned intends to per contract as (check below)	form subcontracting w	ork in connection with the above
an individual		a corporation
a partnership		a joint venture
The undersigned is prepared to Contract, as hereafter described		work in connection with the above
<u>.                                      </u>		
	_	
(Date)	(Name	e of SBE Contractor)
	BY:	

## EXHIBIT "C" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UNAVAILABILITY FORM

<u>RLI#</u>

of		, certify tha	it on the	day of
	,	, I invited the following SBE	CONTRACTO	OR(s) to bid
work items to	be performed in	the City of Pompano Beach:		
	Contractor Address	Work Items Sought	(i.e., Material	of Bid Sought Unit Price, s/Labor, Labor nly, etc.)
			_	
Said SBE CC	ONTRACTOR(s):			
		ponse to the invitation		
	Submitted a bid t	hat was not the low responsible	e bid	
	Other:	·		
Signature:		Dat		
		ents as available.		

L-40-15

# EXHIBIT "D" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE GOOD FAITH EFFORT REPORT

RLI#
FX     ##

	nat portions of the contract have you identified as SBE opportunities?
	you provide adequate information to identified SBE? Please comment v you provided this information.
Did	you send written notices to SBEs?
	Yes No es, please include copy of the notice and the list of individuals who were warded copies of the notices.
Did	you advertise in local publications?
lf ye	Yes No es, please attach copies of the ads, including name and dates of publications.
	you contact any organizations with large constituents of SBE members sible sub-contractors? Please attach list of resource organizations use
Wha	at type of efforts did you make to assist SBEs in contracting with you?
List	the SBEs you will utilize and subcontract percentage of work.

L-40-15

19

\_\_\_Initial

0.1		
Other comments:		 
	_	

Note: Please attach the unavailability letters with this report.

L-40-15 20

### EXHIBIT E CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA LOCAL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION FORM

Number & Title:		Prime Contractor's Name:		
Name of Firm, Address	Contact Person, Telephone Number	Type of Work to be Performed	% of Work	
	_			
		-		
		<u> </u>		
		<del>-</del>		
l_				

Initial

21

L-40-15

# EXHIBIT F LOCAL BUSINESS LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS A SUBCONTRACTOR

	RLI Number		
TO: (Name of Prime or Ge	neral Bidder)		
	pano Beach business intends to perform subcontracting bove contract as (check below)		
an individual	a corporation		
a partnership	a joint venture		
The undersigned is prepared Contract, as hereafter describ	to perform the following work in connection with the above ped in detail:		
(Date)	(Name of Local Business Contractor)		
	BY:		

L-40-15 22 \_\_\_\_Initial

#### EXHIBIT G LOCAL BUSINESS UNAVAILABILITY FORM

<b>RLI</b>	#				
------------	---	--	--	--	--

	(Name and Title	e)	
f	, certify t	that on the	day of
ems to be performe	I invited the following LOCAL E	BUSINESSES to n:	bid work
Business Name, Ad	dress Work Items Sought	Unit Price, Materials/L	d Sought (i.e. abor, Labor
	·		
aid Local Businesse		<del></del>	
	Did not bid in response to the	e invitation	
	Submitted a bid which was n	ot the low respo	onsible bid
	Other:		
	Signatur	e:	
	Date:		

23

L-40-15

Initial

# EXHIBIT H GOOD FAITH EFFORT REPORT LOCAL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION

RLI#\_\_\_\_\_

• •	rovide adequate information to identified Local Businesses? on how you provided this information.	Ple
Did you se	end written notices to Local Businesses?	
Yes	No	
	ase include copy of the notice and the list of individuals who vecopies of the notices.	ver
Did you ad	lvertise in local publications?	
Yes	No	
If yes, plea	se attach copies of the ads, including name and dates of pu	blic
What type you ?	of efforts did you make to assist Local Businesses in contract	cting
		_
	<u>.</u>	_

Other comments:	 	
<u> </u>		

#### EXHIBIT I

#### MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION

RLI#	

List all members of your team that are a certified Minority Business Enterprise (as defined by the State of Florida.) You must include copies of the MBE certificates for each firm listed.

Certificate Included?
_

L-40-15 26 Initial

## STATEMENT OF NO RESPONSE RLI L-40-15 CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

If you do not intend to submit on this requirement, please complete and return this form by the submittal deadline to the City of Pompano Beach Purchasing Division, Building C, 1190 N.E. 3<sup>rd</sup> Avenue, Pompano Beach, Florida 33060; this form may be faxed to (954) 786-4168. Failure to respond, either by submitting a proposal, or by submitting a "Statement of No Response" form, may result in your firm's name being removed from our mailing list.

reason(s):	ed, have declined to subtrit on this solicitation for the following
	We do not offer this product or an equivalent
	Our workload would not permit us to perform
	Insufficient time to respond to the Request for Letters of Interest
	Unable to meet specifications (explain below)
	Other (specify below)
Remarks	
COMPANY NAME	
ADDRESS	
	<del> </del>

Page 27

Initial

RLI L-40-15



6001 Broken Sound Pkwy NW, Suite 610 Boca Raton, Florida 33487

Phone: (561) 997-6433; Fax: (561) 997-5811

EB0007225 · CGC1507203

#### **Exhibit B**

#### Globaltech, Inc.

#### Engineering Billing Rates for One Year Term from 2015-2016

Prepared for the City of Pompano Beach Contract for Consulting/Professional Services

Engineering Classification	Billing Rate
Officer	\$210
Engineer 7	\$185
Engineer 6	\$175
Engineer 5	\$165
Engineer 4	\$150
Engineer 3	\$125
Engineer 2	\$105
Engineer 1	\$85
CAD Design Technician	\$85
Administration 3	\$75
Administration 1	\$50



#### CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

11/17/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in fleu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER Brown & Brown of Florida, Inc. 1201 W Cypress Creek Rd # 130 P.O. Box 5727 Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33310-5727 Christopher M. Moore, CPCU		CONTACT NAME:				
		PHONE (A/C. No. Ext); 954-776-2222	FAX (A/C, No): 954-776-4446			
		E-MAIL ADDRESS:				
		INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE	E NAIC#			
		INSURER A : Amerisure Insurance Compar	ıy 19488			
INSURED	Globaltech, Inc.	INSURER B : Torus National Ins Co	25496			
Attn: Rebecca Thomas 6001 Broken Sound Pkwy NW #610		INSURER C : Amerisure Mutual Ins. Co	23396			
	Boca Raton, FL 33487	INSURER D : Indian Harbor Insurance Co	36940			
		INSURER E :				
		INSURER F :				
COVEDA	CEC CEPTIFICATE MUMPED.	DEVISION N	HUMBED.			

CO	COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:									
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD										
	INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.									
E		ISIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH	POLI	CIES.	LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE	BEEN REDUCED BY	PAID CLAIMS			,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
insr Ltr		TYPE OF INSURANCE	INSD	SUBR	POLICY NUMBER	POLICY EFF (MM/DD/YYYY)	PÓLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)	LIMITS	i	
С	X	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY						EACH OCCURRENCE	s	1,000,000
		CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR	Х		CPP20796570502	11/01/2015	11/01/2016	DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (En occurrence)	\$	100,000
		<del></del>						MED EXP (Any one person)	\$	5,000
								PERSONAL & ADV INJURY	\$	1,000,000
	GEN	I'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:						GENERAL AGGREGATE	\$	2,000,000
		POLICY PRO- LOC						PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	\$	2,000,000
		OTHER:						Emp Ben.	\$	1,000,000
	AUT	OMOBILE LIABILITY						COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident)	\$	1,000,000
Α	X	ANY AUTO		1	CA20796540401	11/01/2015	11/01/2016	BODILY INJURY (Per person)	\$	
		ALL OWNED SCHEDULED AUTOS						BODILY INJURY (Per accident)	\$	
		HIRED AUTOS NON-OWNED AUTOS						PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per sccident)	\$	
									\$	
		UMBRELLA LIAB X OCCUR						EACH OCCURRENCE	s	2,000,000
В	X	EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE			09800D152ALI	11/01/2015	11/01/2016	AGGREGATE	\$	2,000,000
		DED X RETENTIONS	)						\$	
		RKERS COMPENSATION EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY						X PER OTH- STATUTE ER		
Α		PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE CERMEMBER EXCLUDED?	N/A		WC207965504	11/01/2015	11/01/2016	E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	s	1,000,000
	(Man	rdatory in NH)	۰٬۰۳					E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE	\$	1,000,000
	DES	s, describe under CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below						E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	\$	1,000,000
D	Pro	fessional Liab			PEC0044423	08/21/2015	08/21/2016	Claim/Agg		3,000,000
	Clai	lms Made			RETRO DATE 7/7/95			Ded		50,000
		TION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHIC					re space is requi	red)		
City	of	Pompano Beach is named as I Liability if required by writte	add	ition	nal Insured with respec	t to				
001	1014	Liability in required by write	,,,	mua				<i>)</i>		
	Fry									
						י	· -/1 - 6			
							Flu	<b>a</b>		
							017	1		
CE	RTIF	ICATE HOLDER				CANCELLATION		<u> </u>		
П					CITYFPO					
	SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE									

City of Pompano Beach 1205 NE 5th Avenue	CITYFPO	SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Pompano Beach, FL 33060		AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
		- when

### CONTRACT FOR CONSULTING/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This Contract is made as of the day of , 20/6, by and between the CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as "CITY," and Tetra Tech, Inc. () an individual, () a partnership, (X) a corporation, authorized to do business in the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant".

WHEREAS, the Consultant is able and prepared to provide such services as City requires under the terms and conditions set forth herein; and

**WHEREAS**, the City Commission has approved the recommendation that Consultant be employed by the City and authorized the negotiation of contractual terms.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the mutual promises herein, the City and the Consultant agree as follows:

#### ARTICLE 1 – SERVICES/CONSULTANT AND CITY REPRESENTATIVES

The Consultant's responsibility under this Contract is to provide professional consulting services as more specifically set forth in RLI [or RFP] No.<u>L-40-15</u> attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein in its entirety.

The Consultant's representative shall be **Tetra Tech**, **Inc**.

The CITY's representative shall be City Engineer or designee,

#### ARTICLE 2 – SCHEDULE/PERIOD OF SERVICE

The CONSULTANT shall adhere to the schedule given in each work authorization after receiving the "Notice to Proceed."

Reports and other items shall be delivered or completed in accordance with the detailed schedule set forth in individual Work Authorizations or Task Orders as negotiated.

The Term of this Agreement shall be for an initial period of one (1) year from the date of execution by both the City and the Consultant. The contract shall be automatically renewed for four (4) additional one-year periods unless the General Services Director or the successful bidder receiving award shall give notice to the other party of intent not to renew for the additional period, which notice must be delivered by certified mail and must be received at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the initial contract period. All terms, prices and conditions shall remain firm for the initial period of the contract, and any renewal period.

#### **ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENTS TO CONSULTANT**

- A. City agrees to pay Consultant in consideration for its services described herein. It is the intention of the parties hereby to ensure that unless otherwise directed by the City in writing, Consultant will continue to provide services as specified in Exhibit A for the term of this Contract.
- B. <u>Price Formula</u>. City agrees to pay Consultant as negotiated on a Task Order or Work Authorization basis. Each task order or work authorization shall specifically identify the scope of the work to be performed and the fees for said services.
- Fee Determination. Each individual Task Order or Work Authorization may be C. negotiated for fees to be earned by Time and Materials with a Not to Exceed Amount, Lump Sum, or a combination of both methods for subtasks contained therein. The total amount to be paid by the City under a Task Order or Work Authorization shall not exceed specified amounts for all services and materials including "out of pocket" expenses as specified in Paragraph E below and also including any approved subcontracts unless otherwise agreed in writing by both parties. Consultant shall notify the City's Representative in writing when 90% of the "not to exceed amount" for the total Task Order or Work Authorization has been reached. The Consultant will bill the City on a monthly basis, or as otherwise provided. Time and Materials billing will be made at the amounts set forth in Exhibit B for services rendered toward the completion of the Scope of Work. Where incremental billings for partially completed items are permitted, the total billings shall not exceed the estimated percentage of completion as of the billing date. It is acknowledged and agreed to by the Consultant that the dollar limitation set forth in this section is a limitation upon and describes the maximum extent of City's obligation to pay Consultant, but does not include a limitation upon Consultant's duty to perform all services set forth in Exhibit A for the total compensation in the amount or less than the guaranteed maximum stated above.
- D. Invoices received by the City from the Consultant pursuant to this Contract will be reviewed and approved in writing by the City's Representative, indicating that services have been rendered in conformity with the Contract, and then will be sent to the City's Finance Department for payment. All invoices shall contain a detailed breakdown of the services provided for which payment is being requested. Invoices shall be paid in accordance with the Florida State Statutes governing this process. In addition to detailed invoices, upon request of the City's representative, Consultant will provide City with detailed periodic Status Reports on the project.
- E. "Out-of-pocket" expenses shall be reimbursed up to an amount not to exceed amounts included in each Work Authorization or Task Order. All requests for payment of "out-of-pocket" expenses eligible for reimbursement under the terms of this Contract shall include copies of paid receipts, invoices, or other documentation acceptable to the City's Representative and to the Finance Department. Such documentation shall be sufficient to establish that the expense was actually incurred and necessary in the performance of the Scope of Work described in a Work Authorization and this Contract. All out-of- pocket, reimbursables and expenses shall be billed at actual amount paid by Consultant, with no markup.
- F. <u>Final Invoice</u>: In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, the Consultant will clearly state "<u>Final Invoice</u>" on the Consultant's final/last billing to the City. This final invoice shall also certify that all services provided by Consultant have been properly performed and all charges and costs have been invoiced to the City. Because this account will thereupon be

closed, any and other further charges not properly included on this final invoice are waived by the Consultant.

#### ARTICLE 4 – TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE

Signature of this Contract by the Consultant shall also act as the execution of a truth in negotiation certificate, certifying that the wage rates, overhead charges, and other costs used to determine the compensation provided for this Contract are accurate, complete and current as of the date of the Contract and no higher than those charged the Consultant's most favored customer for the same or substantially similar service. Should the City determine that said rates and costs were significantly increased due to incomplete, non-current or inaccurate representation, then said rates shall be adjusted accordingly.

#### **ARTICLE 5 - TERMINATION**

This Contract may be cancelled by the Consultant, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City's Representative, in the event of substantial failure by the City to perform in accordance with the terms of this Contract through no fault of the Consultant. It may also be terminated, in whole or in part, by the City, with or without cause, immediately upon written notice from the City's Representative or the City Manager to the Consultant. Unless the Consultant is in breach of its Contract, the Consultant shall be paid for services rendered to the City's satisfaction through the date of termination. Ten Dollars (\$10.00) paid to the Consultant, the adequacy of which is acknowledged, is given as specific and independent consideration of the City's right to terminate this Contract for convenience. Termination for cause by the City shall include, but not be limited to, failure to suitably perform the work, failure to continuously perform the work in a manner calculated to meet or accomplish the objectives of the City as set forth herein, or multiple breach of the provisions of this Contract notwithstanding whether any such breach was previously waived or cured. After receipt of a Termination Notice and except as otherwise directed by the City the Consultant shall:

- A. Stop work on the date and to the extent specified.
- B. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the performance of the terminated work.
- C. Transfer all work documents in process, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated work to the City.
  - D. Continue and complete all parts of the work that have not been terminated.

#### ARTICLE 6 - PERSONNEL

The Consultant is, and shall be, in the performance of all work services and activities under this Contract, an independent Contractor, and not an employee, agent or servant of the City. All persons engaged in any of the work or services performed pursuant to this Contract shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to the Consultant's sole direction, supervision, and control and shall not in any manner be deemed to be employees of the City. The Consultant shall exercise control over the means and manner in which it and its employees perform the work. This contract does not create a partnership or joint venture between the parties.

The Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City, nor shall such personnel be subject to any withholding for tax, Social Security or other purposes by the City, nor be entitled to any benefits of the City including, but not limited to, sick leave, pension benefits, vacation, medical benefits, life insurance, workers or unemployment compensation benefits, or the like from the City.

All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services.

Any changes or substitutions in the Consultant's key personnel, as may be listed in Article 1, must be made known to the City's Representative at the time substitution becomes effective.

The Consultant warrants that all services shall be performed by skilled and competent personnel to the highest professional standards in the field.

#### ARTICLE 7 – SUBCONTRACTING

Consultant may subcontract any services or work to be provided to City with the prior written approval of the City's Representative. The City reserves the right to accept the use of a subcontractor or to reject the selection of a particular subcontractor and to inspect all facilities of any subcontractors in order to make determination as to the capability of the subcontractor to perform properly under this Contract. The City's acceptance of a subcontractor shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Consultant is encouraged to seek small business enterprises and to utilize businesses that are physically located in the City of Pompano Beach with a current Business Tax Receipt for participation in its subcontracting opportunities.

#### ARTICLE 8 – FEDERAL AND STATE TAX

The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Taxes. The City will provide the Consultant with the current state issued exemption certificate. The Consultant shall not be exempted from paying sales tax to its suppliers for materials used to fulfill contractual obligations with the City, nor is the Consultant authorized to use the City's Tax Exemption Number in securing such materials.

The Consultant shall be responsible for payment of its own and its share of its employees' payroll, payroll taxes and benefits with respect to this Contract

#### ARTICLE 9 – AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The City's performance and obligation to pay under this contract is contingent upon appropriation for various projects, tasks and other professional services by the City Commission.

#### **ARTICLE 10 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

The Consultant shall not commence work under this Contract until it has obtained all insurance required under this paragraph and such insurance has been approved by the Risk Manager of the City, nor shall the Consultant allow any Subcontractor to commence work on its sub-contract until the aforementioned approval is obtained.

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE, reflecting evidence of the required insurance, shall be filed with the Risk Manager prior to the commencement of the work. The Certificate shall contain a provision that coverage afforded under these policies will not be cancelled, will not expire and will not be materially modified until at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the City. Policies shall be issued by companies authorized to conduct business under the laws of the State of Florida and shall have adequate Policyholders and Financial ratings in the latest ratings of A. M. Best and be part of the Florida Insurance Guarantee Association Act.

Insurance shall be in force until all work required to be performed under the terms of the Contract is satisfactorily completed as evidenced by the formal acceptance by the City. In the event the Insurance Certificate provided indicates that the insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Contract, the Consultant shall furnish, at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration of the date of such insurance, a renewed Certificate of Insurance as proof that equal and like coverage for the balance of the period of the Contract and extension thereunder is in effect. The Consultant shall not continue to work pursuant to this Contract unless all required insurance remains in full force and effect.

Limits of Liability for required insurance are shown in Exhibit C.

The City of Pompano Beach must be named as an additional insured for the Automobile and Commercial General Liability Coverage.

For Professional Liability, if coverage is provided on a claims made basis, then coverage must be continued for the duration of this Contract and for not less than one (1) year thereafter, or in lieu of continuation, provide an "extended reporting clause" for one (1) year.

Consultant shall notify the City Risk Manager in writing within thirty (30) days of any claims filed or made against the Professional Liability Insurance Policy.

For Workers' Compensation Insurance, coverage shall be maintained during the life of this Contract to comply with statutory limits for all employees, and in the case of any work sublet, the Consultant shall require any Subcontractors similarly to provide Workers' Compensation Insurance for all the latter's employees unless such employees are covered by the protection afforded by the Consultant. The Consultant and his Subcontractors shall maintain during the life of this Contract Employer Liability Insurance.

#### ARTICLE 11 – INDEMNIFICATION

1. The Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees against any loss, damage or expense (including all costs and reasonable

attorneys' fees and appellate attorneys' fees) suffered by City from any claim, demand, judgment, decree, or cause of action of any kind or nature to the extent caused by any negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful conduct of Consultant, or its agents, servants, or employees, in the performance of services in the performance of the contract.

- The Consultant agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and 2. hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees against any loss, damage, or expense (including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and appellate attorneys' fees) suffered by the City from (a) any breach by the Consultant of this Contract; (b) any misconduct by the Consultant; (c) any inaccuracy in or breach of any of the representations, warranties or covenants made by the Consultant herein; (d) any claims, suits, actions, damages or causes of action arising during the term of this Contract for any personal injury, loss of life or damage to property to the extent caused by any negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful performance of this Contract by the Consultant and the Consultant's agents, employees, invitees. Such obligation to indemnify and hold harmless shall include all costs, expenses and liabilities incurred by the City in connection with any such claim, suit, action or cause of action, including the investigation thereof and the defense of any action or proceeding brought thereon and any order, judgment or decree which may be entered in any such action or proceeding or as a result thereof. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that City would not enter into this contract without this indemnification of City by Consultant, and that the City entering into this Contract shall constitute good and sufficient consideration for this indemnification. These provisions shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to affect in any way the City's rights, privileges, and immunities as set forth in Florida Statute § 768.28.
- 3. Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00) of the amount paid to Consultant is given as separate, distinct and independent consideration for the Consultant's grant of this indemnity, the sufficiency and receipt of this consideration is acknowledged by the Consultant.

#### ARTICLE 12 – SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

The City and the Consultant each binds itself and its partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns to the other party of this Contract and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Contract. Except as above, neither the City nor the Consultant shall assign, sublet, encumber, convey or transfer its interest in this Contract without prior written consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of the City, which may be a party hereto, nor shall it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than the City and the Consultant.

#### **ARTICLE 13 – REMEDIES**

The laws of the State of Florida shall govern this Contract. Any and all legal action between the parties arising out of the Contract will be held in Broward County. No remedy

herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

#### ARTICLE 14 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Consultant represents that it has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder, as provided for in the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees (Chapter 112, Part III, Florida Statutes). The Consultant further represents that no person having any interest shall be employed for said performance.

The Consultant shall promptly notify the City's representative, in writing, by certified mail, of a potential conflict(s) of interest for any prospective business association, interest or other circumstance, which may influence or appear to influence the Consultant's judgment or quality of services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Consultant may undertake and request an opinion of the City as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a conflict of interest if entered into by the Consultant. The City agrees to notify the Consultant of its opinion by certified mail within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice by the Consultant. If, in the opinion of the City, the prospective business association, interest, or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the Consultant, the City shall so state in the notice and the Consultant shall at its option, enter into said association, interest or circumstance and it shall be deemed not a conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the City by the Consultant under the terms of this Contract.

#### ARTICLE 15 – EXCUSABLE DELAYS

The Consultant shall not be considered in default by reason of any failure in performance if such failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the Consultant or its subcontractors and without their fault or negligence. Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God; natural or public health emergencies; freight embargoes; and abnormally severe and unusual weather conditions.

Upon the Consultant's request, the City shall consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the work and, if the Consultant's failure to perform was without it, or its subcontractors fault or negligence, the Contract Schedule and/or any other affected provision of this Contract shall be revised accordingly; subject to the City's rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time.

#### **ARTICLE 16 – DEBT**

The Consultant shall not pledge the City's credit or attempt to make it a guarantor of payment or surety for any contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien or any form of indebtedness.

The Consultant further warrants and represents that it has no obligation or indebtedness that would impair its ability to fulfill the terms of this Contract.

#### ARTICLE 17 – DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

The Consultant shall deliver to the City's representatives for approval and acceptance, and before being eligible for final payment of any amounts due, all documents and materials prepared by and for the City under this Contract.

All written and oral information not in the public domain or not previously known, and all information and data obtained, developed, or supplied by the City or at its expense will be kept confidential by the Consultant and will not be disclosed to any other party, directly or indirectly, without the City's prior written consent unless required by a lawful order. All drawings, maps, sketches, programs, data base, reports and other data developed, or purchased, under this Contract for or at the City's expense shall be and remain the City's property and may be reproduced and reused at the discretion of the City.

The City and the Consultant shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (Public Records Law).

All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein, or otherwise made in writing by any party pursuant hereto, including but not limited to any representations made herein relating to disclosure or ownership of documents, shall survive the execution and delivery of this Contract and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby.

#### **ARTICLE 18 – CONTINGENT FEES**

The Consultant warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant to solicit or secure this Contract and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract. Violation of this Article shall constitute a forfeiture of this Contract by Consultant.

#### **ARTICLE 19 – ACCESS AND AUDITS**

The Consultant shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, expenses, and cost incurred in estimating and performing the work for at least three (3) years after completion of this Contract. The City shall have access to such books, records and documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during normal business hours, at the Consultant's place of business.

#### **ARTICLE 20 – NONDISCRIMINATION**

The Consultant warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital status and sexual orientation.

#### **ARTICLE 21 – INTERPRETATION**

The language of this Contract has been agreed to by both parties to express their mutual intent and no rule of strict construction shall be applied to either party hereto. The headings are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. All personal pronouns used in this Agreement shall include the other gender, and the singular, the plural, and vice versa, unless the context otherwise requires.

#### ARTICLE 22 – AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE

The Consultant hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required conducting its business, and that it will at all times conduct its business activities in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City's representative upon request.

#### **ARTICLE 23 – SEVERABILITY**

If any term or provision of this Contract, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this Contract, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Contract shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

#### ARTICLE 24 – ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT

The City and the Consultant agree that this Contract, together with the Exhibits hereto, sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein. It is further agreed that no modification, amendment or alteration in the terms or conditions contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document executed with the same formality and off equal dignity herewith. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Contract may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto in accordance with Article 25 – Modification of Work. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between this Contract and the provisions in the incorporated Exhibits, the terms of this Contract shall supersede and prevail over the terms in the Exhibits.

#### ARTICLE 25 – MODIFICATION OF SCOPE OF WORK

The City reserves the right to make changes in the Scope of Work, including alterations, reductions therein or additions thereto. Upon receipt by the Consultant of the City's notification of a contemplated change, the Consultant shall, in writing: (1) provide a detailed estimate for the increase or decrease in cost due to the contemplated change; (2) notify the City of any estimated change in the completion date; and (3) advise the City if the contemplated change shall affect the Consultant's ability to meet the completion dates or schedules of this Contract.

If the City so instructs in writing, the Consultant shall suspend work on that portion of the Scope of Work affected by a contemplated change, pending the City's decision to proceed with the change.

If the City elects to make the change, the City shall initiate a Work Authorization or Task Order Amendment and the Consultant shall not commence work on any such change until such written amendment is signed by the Consultant and the City Manager, and if such amendment is in excess of \$25,000, it must also first be approved by the City Commission and signed by the appropriate City Official authorized by the City Commission

The City shall not be liable for payment of any additional or modified work, which is not authorized in the manner provided for by this Article.

#### **ARTICLE 26 – NOTICE**

All notices required in this Contract shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following:

#### **FOR CITY:**

City Manager City of Pompano Beach Post Office Drawer 1300 Pompano Beach, Florida 33061

#### FOR CONSULTANT:

Tetra Tech, Inc.
Charles Drake, Vice President
201 East Pine Street
Suite 1000
Orlando, FL 32801

#### **ARTICLE 27 – OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS**

All finished or unfinished documents, data, reports, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models and photographs prepared or provided by the Consultant in connection with this Contract shall become property of the City, whether the project for which they are made is completed or

not, and shall be delivered by Consultant to City within ten (10) days of notice of termination. If applicable, City may withhold any payments then due to Consultant until Consultant complies with the provisions of this section.

#### "ÇITY"

Warner	CITY OF DOMDANO DE ACII
Witnesses:	CITY OF POMPANO BEACH
Shally R. Bartholomero	By: Lamar Fisher, Mayor  By: Lamar Fisher, Mayor  Dennis W. Beach, City Manager
Attest:  Meelda Hammond, City Clerk	(SEAL)
Approved As To Form:  Mark E. Berman, City Attorney	
20 by LAMAR FISHER, as Mayor, DE	cledged before me this 19th day of January, ENNIS W. BEACH, as City Manager and ASCELETA ompano Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation, on behalf
	NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA
NOTARY'S SEAL:  KRYSTAL AARON NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA Comm# EE874865 Expires 2/14/2017	(Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)  Commission Number

#### "CONSULTANT"

Witnesses:	Tetra Tech, Inc.
Sarah Paulolan Signature	By:Signature
Name Typed, Printed or Stamped	Name Typed, Printed or Stamped
Signature  Kari Nemico  Name Type, Printed or Stamped	Title: Vier President  Address: 201 EAST PIAGE ST  H 1000 ORIAND FI  32801
November, 20,15, Vice President	or who has produced
NOTARY'S SEAL:	NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA  L. Susan Cruz
L SUSAN CRUZ  MY COMMISSION # EE 203420  EXPIRES: May 30, 2016  Bonded Thru Notary Public Underwriters	(Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)  EE 203 420  Commission Number



### Florida's Warmest Welcome

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH REQUEST FOR LETTERS OF INTEREST L-40-15

CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

RLI OPENING: September 23, 2015, 2:00 P.M.
PURCHASING OFFICE
1190 N.E. 3RD AVENUE, BUILDING C (Front)
POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA 33060

#### CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA

#### REQUEST FOR LETTERS OF INTEREST (RLI) L-40-15

### CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

Pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 287.055 "Consultants' Competitive Negotiation Act" the City of Pompano Beach invites qualified engineering firms to submit Letters of Interest, qualifications and experience for consideration to provide Professional Engineering Consulting services to the City on a continuing as-needed basis.

The City will receive sealed proposals until <u>2:00 p.m. (local)</u>, <u>September 23, 2015</u>, in the City's Purchasing Office, 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060. E-mailed or faxed proposals will not be acceptable.

The City intends to issue multiple contracts to engineering firms to provide continuing professional services to the City for various Water and Reuse Treatment Plant projects. Professional services under this contract will be restricted to those required for any project for which construction costs will not exceed \$2 million, and for any study activity for which fees will not exceed \$200,000. The contracts will be for an initial term of (1) one year, with automatic renewals for (4) four (1) one-year periods.

#### 1. The types of projects to be undertaken may include, but are not limited to

- Reuse Water Treatment Plant Expansion Projects
- Reuse Water Treatment Plant Modification and/or Enhancement Projects
- Water Treatment Plant Expansion Projects
- Water Treatment Plant Modification and/or Enhancement Projects
- The City's approved Capital Improvement Program maybe found here http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department\_directory/budget/budget.html.php

#### 2. The scope of services may include, but is not limited to, the following;

- Prepare studies and make recommendations on methods of operation and/or treatment.
- Prepare preliminary design reports and/or design alternative recommendations. This may include various types of utility modeling, surveying and field data analysis.
- Prepare all required bidding/construction documents for projects. This will include survey
  preparations, design plan preparations, technical specification preparations and cost
  estimate preparations. Attendance at all required pre-design, design, bidding and bid
  award meetings is required.

L-40		ni	

- Attend pre-bid conference, prepare possible bid addendums for plan revisions. Assist in making bid award recommendations for contracting/construction services.
- Prepare all required permit applications and submittal packages as required for permit issuance of all agency permits (i.e. State, County and City).
- Provide construction engineering/management services for projects. Services during construction may include shop drawing/contractor submittal reviews and approvals, inspection and approval of project improvements, possible plan revisions and review and approval of contractor pay applications.
- Provide project close-out services. This may include preliminary and final acceptance of projects, preparation and approval of punch list items and project certification as required to all permitting agencies.
- Firms must have previous experience in municipal water and reuse treatment plant projects and must be licensed to practice Professional Engineering in the State of Florida, Florida State Statute 481, by the Board of Professional Regulation.

### 3 Term of Contract

The initial contract period shall be (1) one year, commencing upon award by the appropriate City officials.

The contract shall be automatically renewed for four (4) additional one-year periods unless the General Services Director or the successful bidder receiving award shall give notice to the other party of intent not to renew for the additional period, which notice must be delivered by certified mail and must be received at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the initial contract period. All terms, prices and conditions shall remain firm for the initial period of the contract, and any renewal period.

### 4. Small Business Enterprise Program

The Pompano Beach City Commission has established a voluntary Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program to encourage and foster the participation of Small Business Enterprises in the central procurement activities of the City. The City of Pompano Beach is strongly committed to ensuring the participation of Small Business Enterprises (SBE's) as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. The definition of a SBE, for the purpose of the City's voluntary program, is taken from the State of Florida Statute 288.703(1).

As of the date of publication of this solicitation, a small business means an independently owned and operated business concern that employs 200 or fewer permanent full-time employees and that, together with its affiliates, has a net worth of not more than \$5 million or any firm based in Florida that has a Small Business Administration 8(a) certification. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the \$5 million net worth requirement shall include both personal and business investments.

The City encourages all firms to undertake good faith efforts to identify appropriate Small Business Enterprise partners. Sources of information on certified Small Business Enterprises include the Broward County Small Business Development Division, the State of Florida Office of Supplier Diversity, South Florida Water Management District, and other

L-40-15	2	Initial

agencies throughout the State. The City includes links to these organizations from the City's website <a href="https://www.pompanobeachfl.gov">www.pompanobeachfl.gov</a>.

The City has set a 5% voluntary Small Business Enterprise Goal for this project. SBE Forms are located at the end of this solicitation, and all firms responding <u>must return</u> a response of participation or non-participation in order to be considered responsive for evaluation purposes.

Please indicate in your response if your firm is a certified Small Business Enterprise, and include the completed "Good Faith Effort Report" form with your proposal. Proposers should submit Exhibit A, detailing the list of SBE firms to be used on the proposed contract, and a completed Letter of Intent, Exhibit B, for all participating SBE firms. Submit Exhibit C listing SBE firms that were solicited but not selected. Submit Exhibit D explaining your firm's good faith efforts to include SBE firms on this contract.

# 5. Local Business Program

On March 23, 2010, the City Commission approved a Resolution establishing a Local Business Program, a policy to increase the participation of City of Pompano Beach businesses in the City's procurement process.

You can view the list of City businesses that have a current Business Tax Receipt on the City's website, and locate local firms that are available to perform the work required by the specifications. The business information, sorted by business use classification, is posted on the webpage for the Business Tax Receipt Division: <a href="http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department\_directory/development\_services/business\_tax\_receipt\_division/business\_tax\_receipt\_division.html.php">http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department\_directory/development\_services/business\_tax\_receipt\_division.html.php</a>

The City has set a 5% voluntary Local Business goal for this project. Local Business program forms are located at the end of this solicitation, and all firms responding must return a response of participation or non-participation in order to be considered responsive for evaluation purposes.

The City of Pompano Beach is strongly committed to insuring the participation of City of Pompano Beach Businesses as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. Proposers are encouraged to participate in the City of Pompano Beach's voluntary Local Business Program by including, as part of their package, the Local Business Participation Form (Exhibit E,) listing the local businesses that will be used on the contract, and the Letter of Intent Form (Exhibit F) from each local business that will participate in the contract. Proposers should utilize businesses that are physically located in the City of Pompano Beach with a current Business Tax Receipt. Proposers who are unable to meet the recommended voluntary goals should also provide the Local Business Unavailability Form (Exhibit G,) listing firms that were contacted but not available, and the Good Faith Effort Report (Exhibit H) describing the efforts made to include local business participation in the contract.

## 6. Required Proposal Submittal

### Submission/Format Requirements

T	-40-15	2	Initial
	-411-15	•	Initial

Submit one (1) original unbound proposal and five (\_5\_) bound photocopies of the proposal. Use 8 ½" x 11" plain white paper; proposal to be typed, and signed by an authorized representative who is able to contractually bind the Proposer. In addition, Proposers must submit one (1) original copy of the Proposal on electronic media in printable Adobe or Microsoft Word format (or other format approved by the City). Duplicate copies must contain all information included in the original submittal. Failure to adhere to the submittal quantity criteria may result in the Proposal being considered non-responsive.

**Information to be included in the proposal**: In order to maintain comparability and expedite the review process, it is required that proposals be organized in the manner specified below, with tabs or dividers between the sections:

#### Title page:

Show the project name and number, the name of the Proposer's firm, address, telephone number, name of contact person and the date.

#### **Table of Contents:**

Include a clear identification of the material by section and by page.

#### Letter of Interest:

A Letter of Interest, signed by an authorized representative of your firm, expressing your understanding of the project and expressing a positive commitment to provide the services described herein. In the letter, include:

- complete corporate name of the primary firm responding
- applicable Federal Tax Identification Number
- address
- telephone and fax numbers
- name, title, and email of the person to contact regarding your submission

Please limit this section to two pages.

#### **Project Team Form:**

Submit a completed "Project Team" form. The purpose of this form is to identify the key members of your team, including any specialty subconsultants.

#### **Organizational Chart:**

Specifically identify the management plan (if needed) and provide an organizational chart for the team. The proposer must describe at a minimum, the basic approach to these projects, to include reporting hierarchy of staff and sub-consultants, clarify the individual(s) responsible for the co-ordination of separate components of the scope of services.

#### Statement of Skills and Experience of Project Team:

Describe the experience of the entire project team as it relates to the types of projects described in the Scope section of this RLI. Include the experience of the prime consultants as well as other members of the project team; i.e., additional personnel, sub-consultants, branch office, team members, and other resources anticipated to be utilized for this project. Name specific projects (successfully completed within the past five years) where the team members have performed similar projects previously.

### **Resumes of Key Personnel**

Include resumes for key personnel for prime and subconsultants.

#### References:

References for past projects in the tri-county area (Broward, Palm Beach, and Miami-Dade.) If past projects are not located in the tri-county area references for past projects in other areas of the State of Florida can be provided. Describe the scope of each project in physical terms and by cost, describe the respondent's responsibilities, and provide the contact information (name, email, telephone number) of an individual in a position of responsibility who can attest to respondent's activities in relation to the project.

List any prior projects performed for the City of Pompano Beach.

#### Office Locations:

Identify the location of the office from which services will be rendered, and the number of professional and administrative staff at the prime office location. Also identify the location of office(s) of the prime and/or sub consultants that may be utilized to support any or all of the professional services listed above and the number of professional and administrative staff at the prime office location.

If firms are situated outside the local area, (Broward, Palm Beach, and Miami-Dade counties) include a brief statement as to whether or not the firm will arrange for a local office during the term of the contract, if necessary.

#### **Minority Business Enterprises:**

It is the intent of the City of Pompano Beach to encourage minority and women owned firms to participate in the process. The methods by which this is accomplished should be developed and presented by the respondents in their submissions.

For any member of your team that is a certified Minority Business Enterprise (as defined by the State of Florida) you must include copies of their certifications for them to be considered toward Item 5 in the evaluation criteria. Complete Exhibit I and attach certificates.

#### **Small Business Enterprises:**

Completed SBE program forms, Exhibits A-D. Include copies of all SBE certifications for firms listed on these forms.

#### **Local Businesses:**

Completed Local Business program forms, Exhibits E-H.

#### Litigation

Disclose any litigation within the past five (5) years arising out your firm's performance, including status/outcome.

#### Acknowledgement of all Addenda issued.

#### City Forms:

Responses should include all pages of this solicitation, initialed where indicated, in addition to completed SBE and Local Business forms.

# 7. Insurance

The insurance described herein reflects the insurance requirements deemed necessary for this contract by the City. It is not necessary to have this level of insurance in effect at the time of submittal, but certificates indicating that the insurance is currently carried or a letter from the Carrier indicating upgrade ability will speed the review process to determine the most qualified Proposer.

The successful Proposer(s) shall not commence operations until certification or proof of insurance, detailing terms and provisions of coverage, has been received and approved by the City of Pompano Beach Risk Manager.

The following insurance coverage shall be required.

a. Worker's Compensation Insurance covering all employees and providing benefits as required by Florida Statute, Chapter 440, regardless of the size of the company (number of employees). The Contractor further agrees to be responsible for employment, control and conduct of its employees and for any injury sustained by such employees in the course of their employment.

# b. <u>Liability Insurance</u>

- 1) Naming the City of Pompano Beach as an additional insured, on General Liability Insurance only, in connection with work being done under this contract.
- 2) Such Liability insurance shall include the following checked types of insurance and indicated minimum policy limits.

(The rest of this page has been left blank intentionally.)

- 10	T 11
1 40 15	6 Initia
L-40-15	0 1111114

#### **LIMITS OF LIABILITY**

each Type of Insurance occurrence aggregate GENERAL LIABILITY: MINIMUM \$1,000,000 per OCCURRENCE/\$1,000,000 AGGREGATE \* Policy to be written on a claims incurred basis XX comprehensive form XX premises - operations bodily injury explosion & collapse hazard property damage underground hazard products/completed operations hazard bodily injury and XX contractual insurance property damage XX broad form property combined damage XX independent contractors XX personal injury personal injury AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: MINIMUM \$1,000,000 per OCCURRENCE/\$1,000,000 **AGGREGATE** bodily injury (each person) bodily injury XX comprehensive form (each accident) XX owned property damage XX hired bodily injury and XX non-owned property damage combined **REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY** XX comprehensive form Consultant must show proof they have this coverage. **EXCESS LIABILITY** bodily injury and XX umbrella form property damage XX other than umbrella combined \$2,000,000. \$2,000,000. XX PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY \$2,000,000. \$2,000,000. \* Policy to be written on a claims made basis

The certification or proof of insurance must contain a provision for notification to the City, and the City's contracted law enforcement provider if applicable, thirty (30) days in advance of any material change in coverage or cancellation.

The successful Proposer shall furnish to the City the certification or proof of insurance required by the provisions set forth above, within ten (10) days after notification of award of contract.

## 8. Selection/Evaluation Process

A Selection/Evaluation Committee will be appointed to select the most qualified firm(s). The Selection/Evaluation Committee will present their findings to the City Commission.

The Committee will rank responses based upon the following criteria.

<u>Criteria</u> <u>Point Range</u>

- 1. Prior experience of the firm with projects of similar size and complexity: 0-45 points
  - a. Number of similar projects
  - b. Complexity of similar projects
  - c. References from past projects performed by the firm
  - d. Previous projects performed for the City (provide description)
  - e. Litigation within the past 5 years arising out of firm's performance (list, describe outcome)
- 2. Qualifications of personnel including sub consultants:

0-35 points

- a. Organizational chart for project
- b. Number of technical staff
- c. Qualifications of technical staff:
  - (1) Number of licensed staff
  - (2) Education of staff
  - (3) Experience of staff on similar projects
- 3. Proximity of the nearest office to the project location:

0-10 points

- a. Location
- b. Number of staff at the nearest office
- 4. Is the firm a certified minority business enterprise as defined by the Florida Small and Minority Business Assistance Act of 1985? (Certification of any sub-contractors should also be included with the response.)

<u>Value of Work Previously Awarded to Firm (Tie-breaker)</u> - In the event of a tie, the firm with the lowest value of work as a prime contractor on City of Pompano Beach projects within the last five years will receive the higher ranking, the firm with the next lowest value of work shall receive the next highest ranking, and so on. The analysis of past work will be based on the City's Purchase Order and payment records.

The Committee has the option to use the above criteria for the initial ranking to short-list Proposers and to use an ordinal ranking system to score short-listed Proposers following

L-40-15	8	Initia	ı

presentations (if deemed necessary) with a score of "1" assigned to the short-listed Proposer deemed most qualified by the Committee.

Each firm should submit documentation that evidences the firm's capability to provide the services required for the Committee's review for short listing purposes. After an initial review of the Proposals, the City may invite Proposers for an interview to discuss the proposal and meet firm representatives, particularly key personnel who would be assigned to the project. Should interviews be deemed necessary, it is understood that the City shall incur no costs as a result of this interview, nor bear any obligation in further consideration of the submittal.

When more than three responses are received, the committee shall furnish the City Commission (for their approval) a listing, in ranked order, of no fewer than three firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the service. If three or less firms respond to the RLI, the list will contain the ranking of all responses.

The City Commission has the authority to (including, but not limited to); approve the recommendation; reject the recommendation and direct staff to re-advertise the solicitation; or, review the responses themselves and/or request oral presentations and determine a ranking order that may be the same or different from what was originally presented to the City Commission.

### 9. Hold Harmless and Indemnification

Proposer covenants and agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officers, agents, and employees from any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge or expense arising out of any act, action, neglect or omission by the Proposer, whether direct or indirect, or whether to any person or property to which the City or said parties may be subject, except that neither the Proposer nor any of its subcontractors will be liable under this section for damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or property directly caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the City or any of its officers, agents or employees.

## 10. Retention of Records and Right to Access

The selected firm shall maintain during the term of the contract all books of account, receipt invoices, reports and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and standards. The form of all records and reports shall be subject to the approval of the City's Internal Auditor. The selected firm must comply with the Internal Auditor's recommendation for changes, additions, or deletions. The City's Internal Auditor must be permitted during normal business hours to audit and examine the books of account, reports, and records relating to this contract. The selected firm shall maintain and make available such records and files for the duration of the contract and retain them until the expiration of three years after final payment under the contract.

#### 11. Communications

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by the firm as a result of any discussions with any City employee. Only those communications, which are in writing from the City, may be considered as a duly authorized expression on behalf of the

City. In addition, only communications from firms that are signed and in writing will be recognized by the City as duly authorized expressions on behalf of firms.

# 12. No Discrimination

There shall be no discrimination as to race, sex, color, age, religion, or national origin in the operations conducted under any contract with the City.

# 13. <u>Independent Contractor</u>

The selected firm will conduct business as an independent contractor under the terms of this contract. Personnel services provided by the firm shall be by employees of the firm and subject to supervision by the firm, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the City. Personnel policies, tax responsibilities, social security and health insurance, employee benefits, purchasing policies and other similar administrative procedures applicable to services rendered under this agreement shall be those of the firm.

# 14. Staff Assignment

The City of Pompano Beach reserves the right to approve or reject, for any reasons, Proposer's staff assigned to this project at any time. Background checks may be required.

# 15. <u>Contract Terms</u>

The contract resulting from this RLI shall include, but not be limited to the following terms:

The contract shall include as a minimum, the entirety of this RLI document, together with the successful Proposer's proposal. Contract shall be prepared by the City of Pompano Beach City Attorney.

If the City of Pompano Beach defends any claim, demand, cause of action, or lawsuit arising out of any act, action, negligent acts or negligent omissions, or willful misconduct of the contractor, its employees, agents or servants during the performance of the contract, whether directly or indirectly, contractor agrees to reimburse the City of Pompano Beach for all expenses, attorney's fees, and court costs incurred in defending such claim, cause of action or lawsuit.

#### 16. Waiver

It is agreed that no waiver or modification of the contract resulting from this RLI, or of any covenant, condition or limitation contained in it shall be valid unless it is in writing and duly executed by the party to be charged with it, and that no evidence of any waiver or modification shall be offered or received in evidence in any proceeding, arbitration, or litigation between the parties arising out of or affecting this contract, or the right or obligations of any party under it, unless such waiver or modification is in writing, duly executed as above. The parties agree that the provisions of this paragraph may not be waived except by a duly executed writing.

#### 17. Survivorship Rights

This contract resulting from this RLI shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties and their executors, administrators, heirs, personal representative, successors and assigns.

# 18. <u>Termination</u>

The contract resulting from this RLI may be terminated by the City of Pompano Beach without cause upon providing contractor with a least sixty (60) days prior written notice.

Should either party fail to perform any of its obligations under the contract resulting from this RLI for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of such failure, the non-defaulting part will have the right to terminate the contract immediately upon delivery of written notice to the defaulting part of its election to do so. The foregoing rights of termination are in addition to any other rights and remedies that such party may have.

# 19. Manner of Performance

Proposer agrees to perform its duties and obligations under the contract resulting from this RLI in a professional manner and in accordance with all applicable local, federal and state laws, rules and regulations.

Proposer agrees that the services provided under the contract resulting from this RLI shall be provided by employees that are educated, trained and experienced, certified and licensed in all areas encompassed within their designated duties. Proposer agrees to furnish the City of Pompano Beach with all documentation, certification, authorization, license, permit, or registration currently required by applicable laws or rules and regulations. Proposer further certifies that it and its employees are now in and will maintain good standing with such governmental agencies and that it and its employees will keep all license, permits, registration, authorization or certification required by applicable laws or regulations in full force and effect during the term of this contract. Failure of Proposer to comply with this paragraph shall constitute a material breach of contract.

#### 20. Acceptance Period

Proposals submitted in response to this RLI must be valid for a period no less than ninety (90) days from the closing date of this solicitation.

# 21. RLI Conditions and Provisions

The proposal must be submitted to the City on or before the time and date stated herein. All Proposers, by submission of a proposal, shall agree to comply with all of the conditions, requirements and instructions of this RLI as stated or implied herein. All proposals and supporting materials submitted will become the property of the City.

Exceptions or deviations to this solicitation may not be added after the submittal date.

All Proposers are required to provide all information requested in this RLI. Failure to do so may result in disqualification of the proposal.

The City reserves the right to postpone or cancel this RLI, or reject all proposals, if in its sole discretion it deems it to be in the best interest of the City to do so.

The City reserves the right to waive any technical or formal errors or omissions and to reject all proposals, or to award contract for the items herein, in part or whole, if it is determined to be in the best interests of the City to do so.

The City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Proposer in the preparation of proposals or for any work performed in connection therein.

### 22. Standard Provisions

#### a. Governing Law

Any agreement resulting from this RLI shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida, and the venue for any legal action relating to such agreement will be in Broward County, Florida.

# b. <u>Licenses</u>

In order to perform public work, the successful Proposer shall:

Be licensed to do business in Florida, if an entity, and hold or obtain such Contractor' and Business Licenses if required by State Statutes or local ordinances.

# c. Conflict Of Interest

For purposes of determining any possible conflict of interest, each Proposer must disclose if any Elected Official, Appointed Official, or City Employee is also an owner, corporate officer, or an employee of the firm. If any Elected Official, Appointed Official, or City Employee is an owner, corporate officer, or an employee, the Proposer must file a statement with the Broward County Supervisor of Elections pursuant to §112.313, Florida Statutes.

# d. Drug Free Workplace

The selected firm(s) will be required to verify they will operate a "Drug Free Workplace" as set forth in Florida Statute, 287.087.

#### e. Public Entity Crimes

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for public entity crime may not submit a proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit proposals on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Florida Statute, Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

### f. Patent Fees, Royalties, And Licenses

If the selected Proposer requires or desires to use any design, trademark, device, material or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, the selected Proposer and his surety shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, device, trademark, copyright, material or process in connection with the work agreed to be performed and shall indemnify the City from any cost, expense, royalty or damage which the City may be obligated to pay by reason of any infringement at any time during or after completion of the work.

### g. Familiarity With Laws

It is assumed the selected firm(s) will be familiar with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may affect its services pursuant to this RLI. Ignorance on the part of the firm will in no way relieve the firm from responsibility.

# h. Withdrawal Of Proposals

A firm may withdraw its proposal without prejudice no later than the advertised deadline for submission of proposals by written communication to the General Services Department, 1190 N.E. 3<sup>rd</sup> Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida 33060.

# i. Composition Of Project Team

Firms are required to commit that the principals and personnel named in the proposal will perform the services throughout the contractual term unless otherwise provided for by way of a negotiated contract or written amendment to same executed by both parties. No diversion or substitution of principals or personnel will be allowed unless a written request that sets forth the qualifications and experience of the proposed replacement(s) is submitted to and approved by the City in writing.

# j. <u>Invoicing/Payment</u>

All invoices should be sent to City of Pompano Beach, Accounts Payable, P.O. Drawer 1300, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33061. In accordance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 218, payment will be made within 45 days after receipt of a proper invoice.

#### k. Public Records

- The City of Pompano Beach is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall comply with Florida's Public Records Law. Specifically, the Contractor shall:
  - Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the City in order to perform the service;
  - b. Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that

L-40-15	nıt	

does not exceed that provided in chapter 119, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise provided by law;

- Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and exempt from public record requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law; and
- d. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the City, at no cost, all public records in possession of the contractor upon termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt. All records stored electronically must be provided to the City in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the agency.
- The failure of Contractor to comply with the provisions set forth in this Article shall constitute a Default and Breach of this Agreement and the City shall enforce the Default in accordance with the provisions set forth herein.

### 23. Questions and Communication

All questions regarding the RLI are to be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Office, 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C (Front), Pompano Beach, Florida 33060, fax (954) 786-4168, or email <a href="mailto:purchasing@copbfl.com">purchasing@copbfl.com</a>. All questions must include the inquiring firm's name, address, telephone number and RLI name and number. Questions must be received at least seven (7) calendar days before the scheduled solicitation opening. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Any addendum necessary to answer questions will be posted to the City's website, and it is the Proposer's responsibility to obtain all addenda before submitting a response to the solicitation.

# 24. Addenda

The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or additional information can be given. If any addenda are issued to this solicitation the City will attempt to notify all known prospective Proposers, however, it shall be the responsibility of each Proposer, prior to submitting their response, to contact the City Purchasing Office at (954) 786-4098 to determine if addenda were issued and to make such addenda a part of their proposal.

# **PROJECT TEAM**

		RLI NUMBER	
		Federal I.D.#	·
PRIME			
Role	Name of Individual Assigned to Project	Number of Years Experience	Education, Degrees
Principal-In-Charge			
Project Manager			
Asst. Project Manager	<u> </u>		
Other Key Member			
Other Key Member			
SUB-CONSULTANT			
Role	Company Name and Address of Office Handling This Project	Name of Individute to the Project	ual Assigned
Surveying		_	_
Landscaping			
Engineering		_	
Other Key Member			
Other Key Member		_	
Other Key Member		_	
Other Key Member		_	
(use attachments if nec	essary)		<del></del>

L-40-15

# EXHIBIT "A" CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION FORM

RLI Number & Title:		Contractor's Name:	
Name of Firm	Contact Person. Telephone Number	Type of Work to be Performed	Contract Percentage of Work
(INCLUDE CERTIFICATE	S FOR ANY FIRMS LISTED	ON THIS PAGE)	
	FOR (	CITY USE ONLY	
Total SBE Contract Partici	pation	_	
Are documents requested	submitted accordingly	YESNO	
L-40-15	16	Initial	

# EXHIBIT "B" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS A SUBCONTRACTOR

RL	.I Number		
TO: (Name of Prime or C	General Contractor)	_	
The undersigned intends to per contract as (check below)	form subcontracting w	ork in connection with the abov	'e
an individual		a corporation	
a partnership		a joint venture	
The undersigned is prepared to Contract, as hereafter described		work in connection with the abo	ove
-			
(Date)	(Name	e of SBE Contractor)	
	BY:		

# EXHIBIT "C" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UNAVAILABILITY FORM

RLI#

		(Name and Title)	_
of		, certify tha	it on theday of
		, I invited the following SBE	CONTRACTOR(s) to bid
work items	to be performed in	the City of Pompano Beach:	
SB	BE Contractor Address	Work Items Sought	Form of Bid Sought (i.e., Unit Price, Materials/Labor, Labor Only, etc.)
			<del></del>
Said SBE C	ONTRACTOR(s):		
	Did not bid in resp	ponse to the invitation	
	Submitted a bid to	hat was not the low responsible	e bid
	Other:		
Signature: _		Dat	e:
	h additional docum		
1010. 711100	ir additional accum	onto do avallablo.	

18

L-40-15

Initial

# EXHIBIT "D" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE GOOD FAITH EFFORT REPORT

RLI#
KLIŦ

	provide adequate information to identified SBE? Please commer provided this information.
Did you	send written notices to SBEs?
	Yes No lease include copy of the notice and the list of individuals who were copies of the notices.
Did you	advertise in local publications?
f yes, pl	Yes No ease attach copies of the ads, including name and dates of public
	contact any organizations with large constituents of SBE member sub-contractors? Please attach list of resource organizations use
∕Vhat typ	e of efforts did you make to assist SBEs in contracting with you?
	SBEs you will utilize and subcontract percentage of work.

19

Initial

L-40-15

Other comments:			
other commente.			
	-		

Note: Please attach the unavailability letters with this report.

# <u>EXHIBIT E</u> <u>CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA</u> <u>LOCAL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION FORM</u>

	Prime Contractor's Name:		
Contact Person, Telephone Number	Type of Work to be Performed	% of Wor	
	_		

Initial

21

L-40-15

# EXHIBIT F LOCAL BUSINESS LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS A SUBCONTRACTOR

RLI Number\_\_\_\_\_

TO:	(Name of Prime or General	al Bidder)		
	undersigned City of Pompar in connection with the abov			ntracting
	an individual		a corporation	
	a partnership		a joint venture	
The เ Cont	undersigned is prepared to pract, as hereafter described	perform the followin in detail:	ng work in connection with	the above
_				
				_
		<u>-</u>		
				_
	(Date)	(Name of L	ocal Business Contractor)	<u> </u>
		BY:		

L-40-15 22 Initial

# EXHIBIT G LOCAL BUSINESS UNAVAILABILITY FORM

RLI#\_\_\_\_\_

	(Name and Title)	)	
f	, certify t	hat on the	day of
tems to be performe	, I invited the following LOCAL B ed in the City of Pompano Beach	BUSINESSES to 1:	bid work
Business Name, Ad	ddress Work Items Sought	Unit Price,	d Sought (i.e. abor, Labor
	· ·		
		_	
aid Local Business	es:		
aid Local Business	es:  Did not bid in response to the	e invitation	
aid Local Business			onsible bid
aid Local Business	Did not bid in response to the	ot the low respo	
aid Local Business	Did not bid in response to the Submitted a bid which was no Other:	ot the low respo	
aid Local Business	Did not bid in response to the Submitted a bid which was no Other:  Signature	ot the low respo	

# EXHIBIT H GOOD FAITH EFFORT REPORT LOCAL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION

RLI#\_\_\_\_\_

Did you provide adequate information to identified Local Businesses? Plea comment on how you provided this information.	
Did you ser	nd written notices to Local Businesses?
Yes	No
	se include copy of the notice and the list of individuals who were copies of the notices.
Did you adv	vertise in local publications?
Yes	No
If ves pleas	se attach copies of the ads, including name and dates of publica
you, ploud	of efforts did you make to assist Local Businesses in contracting

L-40-15

		 *	
Other comments: _			
<u> </u>	_	 <u></u>	

# EXHIBIT I

# MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION

RLI#	

List all members of your team that are a certified Minority Business Enterprise (as defined by the State of Florida.) You must include copies of the MBE certificates for each firm listed.

Name of Firm	Certificate Included?
-	

L-40-15 26 Initial

# STATEMENT OF NO RESPONSE RLI L-40-15 CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

If you do not intend to submit on this requirement, please complete and return this form by the submittal deadline to the City of Pompano Beach Purchasing Division, Building C, 1190 N.E. 3<sup>rd</sup> Avenue, Pompano Beach, Florida 33060; this form may be faxed to (954) 786-4168. Failure to respond, either by submitting a proposal, or by submitting a "Statement of No Response" form, may result in your firm's name being removed from our mailing list.

reason(s):	d, have declined to submit on this solicitation for the following
	We do not offer this product or an equivalent
	Our workload would not permit us to perform
	nsufficient time to respond to the Request for Letters of Interest
	Unable to meet specifications (explain below)
	Other (specify below)
Remarks	
COMPANY NAME _	
ADDRESS	
TELEPHONE	
SIGNATURE/TITLE _	

Page 27

Initial

RLI L-40-15

EXHIBIT B- HOURLY RATE	E AND FEE SCHEDULE	



# **Schedule of Hourly Rates**

**Engineering and Consulting Services (ECS)** 

Hourly Billing Rates for: TT IER

Rates Effective Starting: February 10, 2015

Personnel	Hourly Rate
	Houriy Kate
Management Operations Management	
Operations Management	\$300.00
Principal in Charge	\$300.00
Project and Program Management	\$160.00
Project Manager 1	\$160.00
Project Manager 2	\$180.00 \$210.00
Sr Project Manager	\$210.00
Program Manager	\$240.00
A/E Services	
Engineers	¢25.00
Engineer 1	\$85.00
Engineer 2	\$110.00
Engineer 3	\$125.00
Project Engineer 1	\$135.00
Project Engineer 2	\$165.00
Sr Engineer 1	\$215.00
Sr Engineer 2	\$220.00
Sr Engineer 3	\$225.00
Principal Engineer	\$250.00
Engineering Designers	
Engineering Technician	\$60.00
Engineering Designer 1	\$85.00
Engineering Designer 2	\$95.00
Engineering Designer 3	\$115.00
Sr Eng Designer 1	\$125.00
Sr Eng Designer 2	\$140.00
Architects	
Architectural Designer 1	\$75.00
Architectural Designer 2	\$80.00
Architectural Designer 3	\$90.00
Architect 1	\$110.00
Architect 2	\$140.00
Sr Architect 1	\$150.00
Sr Architect 2	\$165.00
Architectural Program Mgr	\$225.00
Information Technology	
Sys Analyst / Programmer 1	\$75.00
Sys Analyst / Programmer 2	\$100.00
Sr Sys Analyst / Programmer 1	\$145.00
Sr Sys Analyst / Programmer 2	\$195.00



# **Schedule of Hourly Rates**

Engineering and Consulting Services (ECS)

Hourly Billing Rates for: TT IER

Rates Effective Starting: February 10, 2015

Personnel	Hourly Rate
	Hourry Nate
Sci Svcs	
Scientists	
Scientist 1	\$80.00
Scientist 2	\$95.00
Scientist 3	\$100.00
Sr Scientist 1	\$135.00
Sr Scientist 2	\$165.00
Sr Scientist 3	\$195.00
Field Services	
Construction Observation	
Construction Project Rep 1	\$80.00
Construction Project Rep 2	\$90.00
Sr Constr Project Rep 1	\$140.00
Sr Constr Project Rep 2	\$150.00
Construction Administration	
Construction Administrator	\$75.00
Sr Construction Administrator	\$90.00
Construction Management	
Construction Manager 1	\$150.00
Construction Manager 2	\$195.00
Construction Director	\$200.00
Surveying	
Survey Tech 1	\$55.00
Survey Tech 2	\$75.00
Survey Crew Chief	\$95.00
Surveying Specialist	\$100.00
Land Surveyor	\$110.00
Sr Land Surveyor	\$155.00
Plant Operations	
Plant Operator 1	\$80.00
Plant Operator 2	\$90.00
Plant Supervisor	\$100.00
Technical Services	
Technicians	
Technician 1	\$55.00
Technician 2	\$75.00
Technician 3	\$90.00
Sr Technician 1	\$120.00
Sr Technician 2	\$130.00
Sr Technician 3	\$140.00



# **Schedule of Hourly Rates**

Engineering and Consulting Services (ECS)

Hourly Billing Rates for: TT IER

Rates Effective Starting: February 10, 2015

Project Support         Computer Aided Design (CAD)           CAD Technician 1         \$65.00           CAD Technician 2         \$70.00           CAD Technician 3         \$75.00           CAD Designer         \$90.00           Sr CAD Designer 1         \$110.00           Sr CAD Designer 2         \$120.00           CAD Director         \$130.00           Geographic Information Systems (GIS)         GIS Analyst 1           GIS Analyst 1         \$65.00           GIS Analyst 2         \$80.00           GIS Application Developer         \$130.00           Sr GIS Application Developer         \$130.00           Business Support         SPOET Administration           Project Administration         \$65.00           Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$100.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$100.00           Sr Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 1         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 3         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 4         \$90.00           Project Analyst 5         \$90.00 </th <th></th> <th></th>		
Project Support   September	Personnel	Hourly Rate
Computer Aided Design (CAD)         \$65.00           CAD Technician 1         \$65.00           CAD Technician 2         \$70.00           CAD Technician 3         \$75.00           CAD Designer         \$90.00           Sr CAD Designer 1         \$110.00           Sr CAD Designer 2         \$120.00           CAD Director         \$130.00           Geographic Information Systems (GIS)         \$130.00           GIS Analyst 1         \$65.00           GIS Analyst 2         \$80.00           Sr GIS Analyst 3         \$90.00           GIS Application Developer         \$130.00           Sr GIS Application Developer         \$130.00           Business Support         Project Administration           Project Administration         \$160.00           Project Administration         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$80.00           Sr Contract Administrator         \$100.00           Contract Administrator         \$100.00           Finance / Accounting         Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 3         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 4 <th></th> <th></th>		
CAD Technician 1       \$65.00         CAD Technician 2       \$70.00         CAD Technician 3       \$75.00         CAD Designer       \$90.00         Sr CAD Designer 1       \$110.00         Sr CAD Designer 2       \$120.00         CAD Director       \$130.00         Geographic Information Systems (GIS)       \$65.00         GIS Analyst 1       \$65.00         GIS Analyst 2       \$80.00         Sr GIS Analyst \$90.00       \$90.00         GIS Application Developer       \$130.00         Sr GIS Application Developer       \$160.00         Business Support         Project Administration         Project Assistant 1       \$65.00         Project Administrator       \$90.00         Sr Project Administrator       \$90.00         Sr Project Administrator       \$80.00         Sr Contract Administrator       \$80.00         Sr Contract Administrator       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst 3       \$110.00         Project Analyst 4       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst 5       \$1		
CAD Technician 2         \$70.00           CAD Technician 3         \$75.00           CAD Designer 9         \$90.00           Sr CAD Designer 1         \$110.00           Sr CAD Designer 2         \$120.00           CAD Director         \$130.00           Geographic Information Systems (GIS)         \$65.00           GIS Analyst 1         \$65.00           GIS Analyst 2         \$80.00           Sr GIS Application Developer         \$130.00           GIS Application Developer         \$130.00           Sr GIS Application Developer         \$160.00           Business Support         ***           Project Assistant 1         \$65.00           Project Administration         \$90.00           Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$100.00           Or Sr Project Administrator         \$80.00           Sr Contract Administrator         \$80.00           Friance / Accounting         ***           Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 3         \$10.00           Project Analyst 4         \$10.00           Project Analyst 5         \$90.00		\$65.00
CAD Technician 3       \$75.00         CAD Designer       \$90.00         Sr CAD Designer 1       \$110.00         Sr CAD Designer 2       \$120.00         CAD Director       \$130.00         Geographic Information Systems (GIS)       \$65.00         GIS Analyst 1       \$65.00         GIS Analyst 2       \$80.00         Sr GIS Analyst       \$90.00         GIS Application Developer       \$130.00         Sr GIS Application Developer       \$160.00         Business Support         Project Administration         Project Assistant 1       \$65.00         Project Administrator       \$90.00         Sr Project Administrator       \$90.00         Sr Project Administrator       \$90.00         Sr Project Administrator       \$80.00         Sr Contract Administrator       \$80.00         Finance / Accounting       \$70.00         Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Froject Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst 3       \$110.00         Project Analyst 4       \$70.00         Fronical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00<		
CAD Designer 1       \$110.00         Sr CAD Designer 2       \$120.00         CAD Director       \$130.00         Geographic Information Systems (GIS)         GIS Analyst 1       \$65.00         GIS Analyst 2       \$80.00         Sr GIS Analyst 3       \$90.00         GIS Application Developer 3       \$130.00         Sr GIS Application Developer 4       \$160.00         Business Support 5         Project Administration 6         Project Assistant 1       \$65.00         Project Assistant 2       \$70.00         Project Administrator 5       \$90.00         Sr Project Administrator 5       \$90.00         Sr Project Administrator 5       \$100.00         Contract Administrator 5       \$90.00         Sr Contract Administrator 5       \$90.00         Finance / Accounting 7       \$90.00         Project Analyst 1 \$70.00       \$70.00         Project Analyst 2 \$90.00       \$90.00         Fr Project Analyst 5       \$110.00         Project Analyst 6       \$110.00         Project Analyst 7       \$110.00         Project Analyst 9       \$110.00         Project Analyst 9       \$110.00		·
Sr CAD Designer 1         \$110.00           Sr CAD Designer 2         \$120.00           CAD Director         \$130.00           Geographic Information Systems (GIS)         \$130.00           GIS Analyst 1         \$65.00           GIS Analyst 2         \$80.00           Sr GIS Analyst         \$90.00           GIS Application Developer         \$130.00           Sr GIS Application Developer         \$160.00           Business Support           Project Administration           Project Assistant 1         \$65.00           Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$100.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$80.00           Sr Contract Administrator         \$80.00           Sr Contract Administrator         \$100.00           Finance / Accounting         \$70.00           Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Sr Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 3         \$110.00           Project Accounting Director         \$200.00           Technical Writer 1         \$65.00           Technical Writer 2         \$75.00           S		
Sr CAD Designer 2         \$120.00           CAD Director         \$130.00           Geographic Information Systems (GIS)         \$65.00           GIS Analyst 1         \$65.00           GIS Analyst 2         \$80.00           Sr GIS Analyst         \$90.00           GIS Application Developer         \$130.00           Sr GIS Application Developer         \$160.00           Business Support           Project Administration           Project Assistant 1         \$65.00           Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$80.00           Sr Contract Administrator         \$80.00           Sr Contract Administrator         \$100.00           Finance / Accounting         \$90.00           Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 3         \$110.00           Project Accounting Director         \$200.00           Technical Writer 1         \$65.00           Technical Writer 2         \$75.00           Sr Technical Writer 4         \$85.00           Graphic Artist         \$80.00           Consultan		
CAD Director         \$130.00           Geographic Information Systems (GIS)         \$65.00           GIS Analyst 1         \$65.00           Sr GIS Analyst 2         \$80.00           Sr GIS Application Developer         \$130.00           Sr GIS Application Developer         \$160.00           Business Support           Project Administration           Project Assistant 1         \$65.00           Project Assistant 2         \$70.00           Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$100.00           Contracts / Legal         \$100.00           Contract Administrator         \$100.00           Finance / Accounting         \$100.00           Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 3         \$110.00           Project Accounting Director         \$200.00           Technical Writer 1         \$65.00           Technical Writer 2         \$75.00           Sr Technical Writer 4         \$85.00           Graphics         \$65.00           Graphics         \$90.00           Consultant 1 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td></td<>		
Geographic Information Systems (GIS)         \$65.00           GIS Analyst 1         \$80.00           Sr GIS Analyst         \$90.00           GIS Application Developer         \$130.00           Sr GIS Application Developer         \$160.00           Business Support           Project Administration           Project Assistant 1         \$65.00           Project Assistant 2         \$70.00           Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$100.00           Contract J (Legal         \$100.00           Contract Administrator         \$80.00           Sr Contract Administrator         \$100.00           Finance / Accounting         \$100.00           Finance / Accounting         \$100.00           Froject Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 3         \$110.00           Project Accounting Director         \$200.00           Technical Writer 1         \$65.00           Technical Writer 2         \$75.00           Sr Technical Writer 2         \$75.00           Sr Technical Writer 4         \$85.00           Graphic Artist         \$80.00 <td< td=""><td></td><td>A CONTRACTOR OF THE CONTRACTOR</td></td<>		A CONTRACTOR OF THE CONTRACTOR
GIS Analyst 1		Ţ130.00
GIS Analyst       \$90.00         GIS Application Developer       \$130.00         Sr GIS Application Developer       \$160.00         Business Support         Project Administration         Project Assistant 1       \$65.00         Project Assistant 2       \$70.00         Project Administrator       \$90.00         Sr Project Administrator       \$100.00         Contract Administrator       \$80.00         Sr Contract Administrator       \$100.00         Finance / Accounting       \$70.00         Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Accounting Director       \$200.00         Technical Writers       \$65.00         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics       \$85.00         Graphics       \$90.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00		\$65.00
Sr GIS Analyst       \$90.00         GIS Application Developer       \$130.00         Sr GIS Application Developer       \$160.00         Business Support         Project Administration         Project Assistant 1       \$65.00         Project Assistant 2       \$70.00         Project Administrator       \$90.00         Sr Project Administrator       \$100.00         Contracts / Legal       \$80.00         Contract Administrator       \$80.00         Finance / Accounting       \$100.00         Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Accounting Director       \$200.00         Technical Writers       \$200.00         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer 3       \$80.00         Consultant 4       \$70.00         Consultant 5       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00		
GIS Application Developer       \$130.00         Sr GIS Application Developer       \$160.00         Business Support         Project Administration         Project Assistant 1       \$65.00         Project Administrator       \$90.00         Sr Project Administrator       \$100.00         Contract Administrator       \$80.00         Sr Contract Administrator       \$100.00         Finance / Accounting       \$100.00         Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst 3       \$110.00         Project Accounting Director       \$200.00         Technical Writers         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics       \$80.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00		
Sr GIS Application Developer       \$160.00         Business Support         Project Administration         Project Assistant 1       \$65.00         Project Administrator       \$90.00         Sr Project Administrator       \$100.00         Contract Administrator       \$80.00         Sr Contract Administrator       \$100.00         Finance / Accounting         Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Accounting Director       \$200.00         Technical Writers         Technical Writers       \$65.00         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics       \$80.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00		
Business Support           Project Administration         \$65.00           Project Assistant 1         \$65.00           Project Assistant 2         \$70.00           Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$100.00           Contract Administrator         \$100.00           Finance / Accounting         \$100.00           Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Accounting Director         \$200.00           Technical Writers         \$200.00           Technical Writers         \$75.00           Technical Writer 1         \$65.00           Technical Writer 2         \$75.00           Sr Technical Writer         \$85.00           Graphics         \$80.00           Consulting         \$90.00           Consultant 1         \$70.00           Consultant 2         \$90.00           Sr Consultant 1         \$120.00           Sr Consultant 2         \$180.00		
Project Administration         \$65.00           Project Assistant 1         \$65.00           Project Assistant 2         \$70.00           Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$100.00           Contracts / Legal         \$80.00           Contract Administrator         \$80.00           Sr Contract Administrator         \$100.00           Finance / Accounting         \$70.00           Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst         \$110.00           Project Accounting Director         \$200.00           Technical Writers         \$65.00           Technical Writer 1         \$65.00           Technical Writer 2         \$75.00           Sr Technical Writer         \$80.00           Graphics         \$80.00           Graphics         \$90.00           Consulting         \$90.00           Consultant 1         \$70.00           Consultant 2         \$90.00           Sr Consultant 2         \$180.00		
Project Assistant 2         \$70.00           Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$100.00           Contracts / Legal         Contract Administrator         \$80.00           Sr Contract Administrator         \$100.00           Finance / Accounting         Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst 4         \$110.00           Project Accounting Director         \$200.00           Technical Writers         Technical Writers           Technical Writer 1         \$65.00           Technical Writer 2         \$75.00           Sr Technical Writer         \$85.00           Graphics         \$80.00           Consulting         \$90.00           Consultant 1         \$70.00           Consultant 2         \$90.00           Sr Consultant 1         \$120.00           Sr Consultant 2         \$180.00		
Project Administrator         \$90.00           Sr Project Administrator         \$100.00           Contracts / Legal         Contract Administrator         \$80.00           Sr Contract Administrator         \$100.00           Finance / Accounting         Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst         \$110.00           Project Accounting Director         \$200.00           Technical Writers         \$65.00           Technical Writer 1         \$65.00           Technical Writer 2         \$75.00           Sr Technical Writer         \$85.00           Graphics         \$80.00           Consulting         \$70.00           Consultant 1         \$70.00           Consultant 2         \$90.00           Sr Consultant 1         \$120.00           Sr Consultant 2         \$180.00		\$65.00
Sr Project Administrator       \$100.00         Contracts / Legal       \$80.00         Contract Administrator       \$100.00         Finance / Accounting       \$70.00         Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst       \$110.00         Project Accounting Director       \$200.00         Technical Writers       \$65.00         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics       \$80.00         Consulting       \$70.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00	Project Assistant 2	\$70.00
Contracts / Legal         \$80.00           Contract Administrator         \$100.00           Finance / Accounting           Project Analyst 1         \$70.00           Project Analyst 2         \$90.00           Sr Project Analyst         \$110.00           Project Accounting Director         \$200.00           Technical Writers         \$65.00           Technical Writer 1         \$65.00           Technical Writer 2         \$75.00           Sr Technical Writer         \$85.00           Graphics           Graphics         \$80.00           Consulting         \$70.00           Consultant 1         \$70.00           Consultant 2         \$90.00           Sr Consultant 1         \$120.00           Sr Consultant 2         \$180.00	Project Administrator	\$90.00
Contract Administrator       \$80.00         Sr Contract Administrator       \$100.00         Finance / Accounting       Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst 3       \$110.00         Project Accounting Director 4       \$200.00         Technical Writers 5       \$65.00         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Sr Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer 3       \$85.00         Graphics 5       \$85.00         Graphics 6       \$80.00         Consulting 7       \$70.00         Consultant 1 5       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1 5       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2 \$180.00	Sr Project Administrator	\$100.00
Sr Contract Administrator       \$100.00         Finance / Accounting         Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst       \$110.00         Project Accounting Director       \$200.00         Technical Writers         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics         Graphics       \$80.00         Consulting       \$70.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00	Contracts / Legal	
Finance / Accounting         Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst       \$110.00         Project Accounting Director       \$200.00         Technical Writers         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics         Graphics       \$80.00         Consultant         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00	Contract Administrator	\$80.00
Project Analyst 1       \$70.00         Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst       \$110.00         Project Accounting Director       \$200.00         Technical Writers         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics         Graphic Artist       \$80.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00	Sr Contract Administrator	\$100.00
Project Analyst 2       \$90.00         Sr Project Analyst       \$110.00         Project Accounting Director       \$200.00         Technical Writers         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics         Graphics       \$80.00         Consulting         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00	Finance / Accounting	
Sr Project Analyst       \$110.00         Project Accounting Director       \$200.00         Technical Writers         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics         Graphics       \$80.00         Consultant         Consultant       \$70.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00	Project Analyst 1	\$70.00
Project Accounting Director         \$200.00           Technical Writers         \$65.00           Technical Writer 1         \$65.00           Sr Technical Writer 2         \$75.00           Sr Technical Writer         \$85.00           Graphics         \$80.00           Consulting         \$70.00           Consultant 1         \$70.00           Consultant 2         \$90.00           Sr Consultant 1         \$120.00           Sr Consultant 2         \$180.00	Project Analyst 2	\$90.00
Technical Writers         Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics       \$80.00         Consulting       \$70.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00		\$110.00
Technical Writer 1       \$65.00         Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics       \$80.00         Consulting       \$70.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00	v - v -	\$200.00
Technical Writer 2       \$75.00         Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics       \$80.00         Consulting       \$70.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00		
Sr Technical Writer       \$85.00         Graphics       \$80.00         Consulting       \$70.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00		
Graphics         \$80.00           Consulting         \$70.00           Consultant 1         \$70.00           Consultant 2         \$90.00           Sr Consultant 1         \$120.00           Sr Consultant 2         \$180.00		
Graphic Artist       \$80.00         Consulting       \$70.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00		\$85.00
Consulting       \$70.00         Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00		
Consultant 1       \$70.00         Consultant 2       \$90.00         Sr Consultant 1       \$120.00         Sr Consultant 2       \$180.00		\$80.00
Consultant 2         \$90.00           Sr Consultant 1         \$120.00           Sr Consultant 2         \$180.00		
Sr Consultant 1         \$120.00           Sr Consultant 2         \$180.00		
Sr Consultant 2 \$180.00		
Sr Consultant 3 \$190.00		
	Sr Consultant 3	\$190.00



City of Pompano Beach 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C Pompano Beach FL 33060 USA

HOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE INFRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCOMMINE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Am Rich Townson Service West Jan

©1965-2014 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reserved. The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

# CONTRACT FOR CONSULTING/PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This Contract is made as of the day of , 206, by and between the CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as "CITY," and <u>Carollo Engineers, Inc.</u> () an individual, () a partnership, (X) a corporation, authorized to do business in the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant".

WHEREAS, the Consultant is able and prepared to provide such services as City requires under the terms and conditions set forth herein; and

**WHEREAS**, the City Commission has approved the recommendation that Consultant be employed by the City and authorized the negotiation of contractual terms.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the mutual promises herein, the City and the Consultant agree as follows:

#### ARTICLE 1 – SERVICES/CONSULTANT AND CITY REPRESENTATIVES

The Consultant's responsibility under this Contract is to provide professional consulting services as more specifically set forth in RLI [or RFP] No.<u>L-40-15</u> attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein in its entirety.

The Consultant's representative shall be Carollo Engineers, Inc.

The CITY's representative shall be City Engineer or designee,

#### ARTICLE 2 – SCHEDULE/PERIOD OF SERVICE

The CONSULTANT shall adhere to the schedule given in each work authorization after receiving the "Notice to Proceed."

Reports and other items shall be delivered or completed in accordance with the detailed schedule set forth in individual Work Authorizations or Task Orders as negotiated.

The Term of this Agreement shall be for an initial period of one (1) year from the date of execution by both the City and the Consultant. The contract shall be automatically renewed for four (4) additional one-year periods unless the General Services Director or the successful bidder receiving award shall give notice to the other party of intent not to renew for the additional period, which notice must be delivered by certified mail and must be received at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the initial contract period. All terms, prices and conditions shall remain firm for the initial period of the contract, and any renewal period.

#### **ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENTS TO CONSULTANT**

- A. City agrees to pay Consultant in consideration for its services described herein. It is the intention of the parties hereby to ensure that unless otherwise directed by the City in writing, Consultant will continue to provide services as specified in Exhibit A for the term of this Contract.
- B. <u>Price Formula</u>. City agrees to pay Consultant as negotiated on a Task Order or Work Authorization basis. Each task order or work authorization shall specifically identify the scope of the work to be performed and the fees for said services.
- C. Fee Determination. Each individual Task Order or Work Authorization may be negotiated for fees to be earned by Time and Materials with a Not to Exceed Amount, Lump Sum, or a combination of both methods for subtasks contained therein. The total amount to be paid by the City under a Task Order or Work Authorization shall not exceed specified amounts for all services and materials including "out of pocket" expenses as specified in Paragraph E below and also including any approved subcontracts unless otherwise agreed in writing by both parties. Consultant shall notify the City's Representative in writing when 90% of the "not to exceed amount" for the total Task Order or Work Authorization has been reached. The Consultant will bill the City on a monthly basis, or as otherwise provided. Time and Materials billing will be made at the amounts set forth in Exhibit B for services rendered toward the completion of the Scope of Work. Where incremental billings for partially completed items are permitted, the total billings shall not exceed the estimated percentage of completion as of the billing date. It is acknowledged and agreed to by the Consultant that the dollar limitation set forth in this section is a limitation upon and describes the maximum extent of City's obligation to pay Consultant, but does not include a limitation upon Consultant's duty to perform all services set forth in Exhibit A for the total compensation in the amount or less than the guaranteed maximum stated above.
- D. Invoices received by the City from the Consultant pursuant to this Contract will be reviewed and approved in writing by the City's Representative, indicating that services have been rendered in conformity with the Contract, and then will be sent to the City's Finance Department for payment. All invoices shall contain a detailed breakdown of the services provided for which payment is being requested. Invoices shall be paid in accordance with the Florida State Statutes governing this process. In addition to detailed invoices, upon request of the City's representative, Consultant will provide City with detailed periodic Status Reports on the project.
- E. "Out-of-pocket" expenses shall be reimbursed up to an amount not to exceed amounts included in each Work Authorization or Task Order. All requests for payment of "out-of-pocket" expenses eligible for reimbursement under the terms of this Contract shall include copies of paid receipts, invoices, or other documentation acceptable to the City's Representative and to the Finance Department. Such documentation shall be sufficient to establish that the expense was actually incurred and necessary in the performance of the Scope of Work described in a Work Authorization and this Contract. All out-of- pocket, reimbursables and expenses shall be billed at actual amount paid by Consultant, with no markup.
- F. <u>Final Invoice</u>: In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, the Consultant will clearly state "<u>Final Invoice</u>" on the Consultant's final/last billing to the City. This final invoice shall also certify that all services provided by Consultant have been properly performed and all charges and costs have been invoiced to the City. Because this account will thereupon be

closed, any and other further charges not properly included on this final invoice are waived by the Consultant.

#### ARTICLE 4 – TRUTH-IN-NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE

Signature of this Contract by the Consultant shall also act as the execution of a truth in negotiation certificate, certifying that the wage rates, overhead charges, and other costs used to determine the compensation provided for this Contract are accurate, complete and current as of the date of the Contract and no higher than those charged the Consultant's most favored customer for the same or substantially similar service. Should the City determine that said rates and costs were significantly increased due to incomplete, non-current or inaccurate representation, then said rates shall be adjusted accordingly.

#### **ARTICLE 5 – TERMINATION**

This Contract may be cancelled by the Consultant, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City's Representative, in the event of substantial failure by the City to perform in accordance with the terms of this Contract through no fault of the Consultant. It may also be terminated, in whole or in part, by the City, with or without cause, immediately upon written notice from the City's Representative or the City Manager to the Consultant. Unless the Consultant is in breach of its Contract, the Consultant shall be paid for services rendered to the City's satisfaction through the date of termination. Ten Dollars (\$10.00) paid to the Consultant, the adequacy of which is acknowledged, is given as specific and independent consideration of the City's right to terminate this Contract for convenience. Termination for cause by the City shall include, but not be limited to, failure to suitably perform the work, failure to continuously perform the work in a manner calculated to meet or accomplish the objectives of the City as set forth herein, or multiple breach of the provisions of this Contract notwithstanding whether any such breach was previously waived or cured. After receipt of a Termination Notice and except as otherwise directed by the City the Consultant shall:

- A. Stop work on the date and to the extent specified.
- B. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the performance of the terminated work.
- C. Transfer all work documents in process, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated work to the City.
  - D. Continue and complete all parts of the work that have not been terminated.

### **ARTICLE 6 - PERSONNEL**

The Consultant is, and shall be, in the performance of all work services and activities under this Contract, an independent Contractor, and not an employee, agent or servant of the City. All persons engaged in any of the work or services performed pursuant to this Contract shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to the Consultant's sole direction, supervision, and control and shall not in any manner be deemed to be employees of the City. The Consultant shall exercise control over the means and manner in which it and its employees perform the work. This contract does not create a partnership or joint venture between the parties.

The Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City, nor shall such personnel be subject to any withholding for tax, Social Security or other purposes by the City, nor be entitled to any benefits of the City including, but not limited to, sick leave, pension benefits, vacation, medical benefits, life insurance, workers or unemployment compensation benefits, or the like from the City.

All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services.

Any changes or substitutions in the Consultant's key personnel, as may be listed in Article 1, must be made known to the City's Representative at the time substitution becomes effective.

The Consultant warrants that all services shall be performed by skilled and competent personnel to the highest professional standards in the field.

#### ARTICLE 7 – SUBCONTRACTING

Consultant may subcontract any services or work to be provided to City with the prior written approval of the City's Representative. The City reserves the right to accept the use of a subcontractor or to reject the selection of a particular subcontractor and to inspect all facilities of any subcontractors in order to make determination as to the capability of the subcontractor to perform properly under this Contract. The City's acceptance of a subcontractor shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Consultant is encouraged to seek small business enterprises and to utilize businesses that are physically located in the City of Pompano Beach with a current Business Tax Receipt for participation in its subcontracting opportunities.

#### ARTICLE 8 – FEDERAL AND STATE TAX

The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Taxes. The City will provide the Consultant with the current state issued exemption certificate. The Consultant shall not be exempted from paying sales tax to its suppliers for materials used to fulfill contractual obligations with the City, nor is the Consultant authorized to use the City's Tax Exemption Number in securing such materials.

The Consultant shall be responsible for payment of its own and its share of its employees' payroll, payroll taxes and benefits with respect to this Contract

### ARTICLE 9 – AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The City's performance and obligation to pay under this contract is contingent upon appropriation for various projects, tasks and other professional services by the City Commission.

#### **ARTICLE 10 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

The Consultant shall not commence work under this Contract until it has obtained all insurance required under this paragraph and such insurance has been approved by the Risk Manager of the City, nor shall the Consultant allow any Subcontractor to commence work on its sub-contract until the aforementioned approval is obtained.

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE, reflecting evidence of the required insurance, shall be filed with the Risk Manager prior to the commencement of the work. The Certificate shall contain a provision that coverage afforded under these policies will not be cancelled, will not expire and will not be materially modified until at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the City. Policies shall be issued by companies authorized to conduct business under the laws of the State of Florida and shall have adequate Policyholders and Financial ratings in the latest ratings of A. M. Best and be part of the **Florida Insurance Guarantee Association Act**.

Insurance shall be in force until all work required to be performed under the terms of the Contract is satisfactorily completed as evidenced by the formal acceptance by the City. In the event the Insurance Certificate provided indicates that the insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Contract, the Consultant shall furnish, at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration of the date of such insurance, a renewed Certificate of Insurance as proof that equal and like coverage for the balance of the period of the Contract and extension thereunder is in effect. The Consultant shall not continue to work pursuant to this Contract unless all required insurance remains in full force and effect.

Limits of Liability for required insurance are shown in Exhibit C.

The City of Pompano Beach must be named as an additional insured for the Automobile and Commercial General Liability Coverage.

For Professional Liability, if coverage is provided on a claims made basis, then coverage must be continued for the duration of this Contract and for not less than one (1) year thereafter, or in lieu of continuation, provide an "extended reporting clause" for one (1) year.

Consultant shall notify the City Risk Manager in writing within thirty (30) days of any claims filed or made against the Professional Liability Insurance Policy.

For Workers' Compensation Insurance, coverage shall be maintained during the life of this Contract to comply with statutory limits for all employees, and in the case of any work sublet, the Consultant shall require any Subcontractors similarly to provide Workers' Compensation Insurance for all the latter's employees unless such employees are covered by the protection afforded by the Consultant. The Consultant and his Subcontractors shall maintain during the life of this Contract Employer Liability Insurance.

#### **ARTICLE 11 – INDEMNIFICATION**

1. The Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees against any loss, damage or expense (including all costs and reasonable

attorneys' fees and appellate attorneys' fees) suffered by City from any claim, demand, judgment, decree, or cause of action of any kind or nature to the extent caused by any negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful conduct of Consultant, or its agents, servants, or employees, in the performance of services in the performance of the contract.

- The Consultant agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents and employees against any loss, damage, or expense (including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and appellate attorneys' fees) suffered by the City from (a) any breach by the Consultant of this Contract; (b) any misconduct by the Consultant; (c) any inaccuracy in or breach of any of the representations, warranties or covenants made by the Consultant herein; (d) any claims, suits, actions, damages or causes of action arising during the term of this Contract for any personal injury, loss of life or damage to property to the extent caused by any negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful performance of this Contract by the Consultant and the Consultant's agents, employees, invitees. Such obligation to indemnify and hold harmless shall include all costs, expenses and liabilities incurred by the City in connection with any such claim, suit, action or cause of action, including the investigation thereof and the defense of any action or proceeding brought thereon and any order, judgment or decree which may be entered in any such action or proceeding or as a result thereof. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that City would not enter into this contract without this indemnification of City by Consultant, and that the City entering into this Contract shall constitute good and sufficient consideration for this indemnification. These provisions shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to affect in any way the City's rights, privileges, and immunities as set forth in Florida Statute § 768.28.
- 3. Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00) of the amount paid to Consultant is given as separate, distinct and independent consideration for the Consultant's grant of this indemnity, the sufficiency and receipt of this consideration is acknowledged by the Consultant.

#### ARTICLE 12 – SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

The City and the Consultant each binds itself and its partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns to the other party of this Contract and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Contract. Except as above, neither the City nor the Consultant shall assign, sublet, encumber, convey or transfer its interest in this Contract without prior written consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officer or agent of the City, which may be a party hereto, nor shall it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than the City and the Consultant.

#### **ARTICLE 13 – REMEDIES**

The laws of the State of Florida shall govern this Contract. Any and all legal action between the parties arising out of the Contract will be held in Broward County. No remedy

herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

#### ARTICLE 14 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Consultant represents that it has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder, as provided for in the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees (Chapter 112, Part III, Florida Statutes). The Consultant further represents that no person having any interest shall be employed for said performance.

The Consultant shall promptly notify the City's representative, in writing, by certified mail, of a potential conflict(s) of interest for any prospective business association, interest or other circumstance, which may influence or appear to influence the Consultant's judgment or quality of services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Consultant may undertake and request an opinion of the City as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a conflict of interest if entered into by the Consultant. The City agrees to notify the Consultant of its opinion by certified mail within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice by the Consultant. If, in the opinion of the City, the prospective business association, interest, or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the Consultant, the City shall so state in the notice and the Consultant shall at its option, enter into said association, interest or circumstance and it shall be deemed not a conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the City by the Consultant under the terms of this Contract.

#### **ARTICLE 15 - EXCUSABLE DELAYS**

The Consultant shall not be considered in default by reason of any failure in performance if such failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the Consultant or its subcontractors and without their fault or negligence. Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God; natural or public health emergencies; freight embargoes; and abnormally severe and unusual weather conditions.

Upon the Consultant's request, the City shall consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the work and, if the Consultant's failure to perform was without it, or its subcontractors fault or negligence, the Contract Schedule and/or any other affected provision of this Contract shall be revised accordingly; subject to the City's rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time.

#### ARTICLE 16 - DEBT

The Consultant shall not pledge the City's credit or attempt to make it a guarantor of payment or surety for any contract, debt, obligation, judgment, lien or any form of indebtedness.

The Consultant further warrants and represents that it has no obligation or indebtedness that would impair its ability to fulfill the terms of this Contract.

#### ARTICLE 17 – DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

The Consultant shall deliver to the City's representatives for approval and acceptance, and before being eligible for final payment of any amounts due, all documents and materials prepared by and for the City under this Contract.

All written and oral information not in the public domain or not previously known, and all information and data obtained, developed, or supplied by the City or at its expense will be kept confidential by the Consultant and will not be disclosed to any other party, directly or indirectly, without the City's prior written consent unless required by a lawful order. All drawings, maps, sketches, programs, data base, reports and other data developed, or purchased, under this Contract for or at the City's expense shall be and remain the City's property and may be reproduced and reused at the discretion of the City.

The City and the Consultant shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (Public Records Law).

All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein, or otherwise made in writing by any party pursuant hereto, including but not limited to any representations made herein relating to disclosure or ownership of documents, shall survive the execution and delivery of this Contract and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby.

#### **ARTICLE 18 – CONTINGENT FEES**

The Consultant warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant to solicit or secure this Contract and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract. Violation of this Article shall constitute a forfeiture of this Contract by Consultant.

#### **ARTICLE 19 – ACCESS AND AUDITS**

The Consultant shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, expenses, and cost incurred in estimating and performing the work for at least three (3) years after completion of this Contract. The City shall have access to such books, records and documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during normal business hours, at the Consultant's place of business.

#### **ARTICLE 20 – NONDISCRIMINATION**

The Consultant warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital status and sexual orientation.

#### **ARTICLE 21 – INTERPRETATION**

The language of this Contract has been agreed to by both parties to express their mutual intent and no rule of strict construction shall be applied to either party hereto. The headings are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. All personal pronouns used in this Agreement shall include the other gender, and the singular, the plural, and vice versa, unless the context otherwise requires.

#### **ARTICLE 22 – AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE**

The Consultant hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required conducting its business, and that it will at all times conduct its business activities in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City's representative upon request.

#### ARTICLE 23 – SEVERABILITY

If any term or provision of this Contract, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this Contract, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Contract shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

#### ARTICLE 24 – ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT

The City and the Consultant agree that this Contract, together with the Exhibits hereto, sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein. It is further agreed that no modification, amendment or alteration in the terms or conditions contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document executed with the same formality and off equal dignity herewith. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Contract may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto in accordance with Article 25 – Modification of Work. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between this Contract and the provisions in the incorporated Exhibits, the terms of this Contract shall supersede and prevail over the terms in the Exhibits.

#### ARTICLE 25 – MODIFICATION OF SCOPE OF WORK

The City reserves the right to make changes in the Scope of Work, including alterations, reductions therein or additions thereto. Upon receipt by the Consultant of the City's notification of a contemplated change, the Consultant shall, in writing: (1) provide a detailed estimate for the increase or decrease in cost due to the contemplated change; (2) notify the City of any estimated change in the completion date; and (3) advise the City if the contemplated change shall affect the Consultant's ability to meet the completion dates or schedules of this Contract.

If the City so instructs in writing, the Consultant shall suspend work on that portion of the Scope of Work affected by a contemplated change, pending the City's decision to proceed with the change.

If the City elects to make the change, the City shall initiate a Work Authorization or Task Order Amendment and the Consultant shall not commence work on any such change until such written amendment is signed by the Consultant and the City Manager, and if such amendment is in excess of \$25,000, it must also first be approved by the City Commission and signed by the appropriate City Official authorized by the City Commission

The City shall not be liable for payment of any additional or modified work, which is not authorized in the manner provided for by this Article.

#### **ARTICLE 26 – NOTICE**

All notices required in this Contract shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following:

#### **FOR CITY:**

City Manager City of Pompano Beach Post Office Drawer 1300 Pompano Beach, Florida 33061

#### **FOR CONSULTANT:**

Carollo Engineers, Inc.
Elizabeth Fujikawa, Vice President
9897 Lake Worth Road
Suite 302
Lake Worth, FL 33467

#### **ARTICLE 27 – OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS**

All finished or unfinished documents, data, reports, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models and photographs prepared or provided by the Consultant in connection with this Contract shall become property of the City, whether the project for which they are made is completed or

not, and shall be delivered by Consultant to City within ten (10) days of notice of termination. If applicable, City may withhold any payments then due to Consultant until Consultant complies with the provisions of this section.

	<u>"CITY"</u>
Witnesses:	CITY OF POMPANO BEACH
Sandra M. Monusey	By:
Shelly R. Bartholomew	By: Dennis W. Beach, City Manager
Attest:	
Asceleta Hammond, City Clerk	(SEAL)
Approved As To Form:  Mark E. Berman, City Attorney	
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF BROWARD	
The foregoing instrument was acknow 2016 by LAMAR FISHER, as Mayor, DE	ledged before me this 19th day of Johnson, control of the control
	Shitial Our
NOTARY'S SEAL:	NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA
KRYSTAL AARON NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA Comm# EE874865	(Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)
WOE 191° Expires 2/14/2017	Commission Number

#### "CONSULTANT"

#### Carollo Engineers, Inc.

Witnesses	
Signature	By: Elizabeth Signature
Monica A. Pazahanick  Name Typed, Printed or Stamped	Name Typed, Printed or Stamped
	Title: VICE PRESIDENT
Andrea Carpenter  Andrea Carpenter	Address: 9897 lake Worth Rd Lake WORTH, FL 33467
Andrea Carpenter Name Type, Printed or Stamped	
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF PALM BEACH	
The foregoing instrument  November, 20_15,	was acknowledged before me this 12th day of by Elizabeth Fügikawa, as of arollo Engineers, Inc.
He she is personally known to me or (type of identification) as identification	who has produced
NOTARY'S SEAL:	NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA
JANICE MUDD Commission # EE 216919 Expires November 14, 2016 Bonded Thru Troy Fain Insurance 800-385-7019	(Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped)  Exp 11-14-16 #EE 216 919  Commission Number



### Florida's Warmest Welcome

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH REQUEST FOR LETTERS OF INTEREST L-40-15

CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

RLI OPENING: September 23, 2015, 2:00 P.M.
PURCHASING OFFICE
1190 N.E. 3RD AVENUE, BUILDING C (Front)
POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA 33060

#### CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA

#### REQUEST FOR LETTERS OF INTEREST (RLI) L-40-15

### CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

Pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 287.055 "Consultants' Competitive Negotiation Act" the City of Pompano Beach invites qualified engineering firms to submit Letters of Interest, qualifications and experience for consideration to provide Professional Engineering Consulting services to the City on a continuing as-needed basis.

The City will receive sealed proposals until <u>2:00 p.m. (local)</u>, <u>September 23, 2015</u>, in the City's Purchasing Office, 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060. E-mailed or faxed proposals will not be acceptable.

The City intends to issue multiple contracts to engineering firms to provide continuing professional services to the City for various Water and Reuse Treatment Plant projects. Professional services under this contract will be restricted to those required for any project for which construction costs will not exceed \$2 million, and for any study activity for which fees will not exceed \$200,000. The contracts will be for an initial term of (1) one year, with automatic renewals for (4) four (1) one-year periods.

#### 1. The types of projects to be undertaken may include, but are not limited to

- Reuse Water Treatment Plant Expansion Projects
- Reuse Water Treatment Plant Modification and/or Enhancement Projects
- Water Treatment Plant Expansion Projects
- Water Treatment Plant Modification and/or Enhancement Projects
- The City's approved Capital Improvement Program maybe found here http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department\_directory/budget/budget.html.php

#### 2. The scope of services may include, but is not limited to, the following:

- Prepare studies and make recommendations on methods of operation and/or treatment.
- Prepare preliminary design reports and/or design alternative recommendations. This may include various types of utility modeling, surveying and field data analysis.
- Prepare all required bidding/construction documents for projects. This will include survey
  preparations, design plan preparations, technical specification preparations and cost
  estimate preparations. Attendance at all required pre-design, design, bidding and bid
  award meetings is required.

L-40-15	Initial
---------	---------

- Attend pre-bid conference, prepare possible bid addendums for plan revisions. Assist in making bid award recommendations for contracting/construction services.
- Prepare all required permit applications and submittal packages as required for permit issuance of all agency permits (i.e. State, County and City).
- Provide construction engineering/management services for projects. Services during construction may include shop drawing/contractor submittal reviews and approvals, inspection and approval of project improvements, possible plan revisions and review and approval of contractor pay applications.
- Provide project close-out services. This may include preliminary and final acceptance of projects, preparation and approval of punch list items and project certification as required to all permitting agencies.
- Firms must have previous experience in municipal water and reuse treatment plant projects and must be licensed to practice Professional Engineering in the State of Florida, Florida State Statute 481, by the Board of Professional Regulation.

#### 3 Term of Contract

The initial contract period shall be (1) one year, commencing upon award by the appropriate City officials.

The contract shall be automatically renewed for four (4) additional one-year periods unless the General Services Director or the successful bidder receiving award shall give notice to the other party of intent not to renew for the additional period, which notice must be delivered by certified mail and must be received at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the initial contract period. All terms, prices and conditions shall remain firm for the initial period of the contract, and any renewal period.

#### 4. <u>Small Business Enterprise Program</u>

The Pompano Beach City Commission has established a voluntary Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Program to encourage and foster the participation of Small Business Enterprises in the central procurement activities of the City. The City of Pompano Beach is strongly committed to ensuring the participation of Small Business Enterprises (SBE's) as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. The definition of a SBE, for the purpose of the City's voluntary program, is taken from the State of Florida Statute 288.703(1).

As of the date of publication of this solicitation, a small business means an independently owned and operated business concern that employs 200 or fewer permanent full-time employees and that, together with its affiliates, has a net worth of not more than \$5 million or any firm based in Florida that has a Small Business Administration 8(a) certification. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the \$5 million net worth requirement shall include both personal and business investments.

The City encourages all firms to undertake good faith efforts to identify appropriate Small Business Enterprise partners. Sources of information on certified Small Business Enterprises include the Broward County Small Business Development Division, the State of Florida Office of Supplier Diversity, South Florida Water Management District, and other

L-40-15	2	Initial

agencies throughout the State. The City includes links to these organizations from the City's website <a href="https://www.pompanobeachfl.gov">www.pompanobeachfl.gov</a>.

The City has set a 5% voluntary Small Business Enterprise Goal for this project. SBE Forms are located at the end of this solicitation, and all firms responding <u>must return</u> a response of participation or non-participation in order to be considered responsive for evaluation purposes.

Please indicate in your response if your firm is a certified Small Business Enterprise, and include the completed "Good Faith Effort Report" form with your proposal. Proposers should submit Exhibit A, detailing the list of SBE firms to be used on the proposed contract, and a completed Letter of Intent, Exhibit B, for all participating SBE firms. Submit Exhibit C listing SBE firms that were solicited but not selected. Submit Exhibit D explaining your firm's good faith efforts to include SBE firms on this contract.

#### 5. Local Business Program

On March 23, 2010, the City Commission approved a Resolution establishing a Local Business Program, a policy to increase the participation of City of Pompano Beach businesses in the City's procurement process.

You can view the list of City businesses that have a current Business Tax Receipt on the City's website, and locate local firms that are available to perform the work required by the specifications. The business information, sorted by business use classification, is posted on the webpage for the Business Tax Receipt Division: <a href="http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department directory/development services/business">http://pompanobeachfl.gov/pages/department directory/development services/business</a> tax receipt division/business tax receipt division.html.php

The City has set a 5% voluntary Local Business goal for this project. Local Business program forms are located at the end of this solicitation, and all firms responding must return a response of participation or non-participation in order to be considered responsive for evaluation purposes.

The City of Pompano Beach is strongly committed to insuring the participation of City of Pompano Beach Businesses as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. Proposers are encouraged to participate in the City of Pompano Beach's voluntary Local Business Program by including, as part of their package, the Local Business Participation Form (Exhibit E,) listing the local businesses that will be used on the contract, and the Letter of Intent Form (Exhibit F) from each local business that will participate in the contract. Proposers should utilize businesses that are physically located in the City of Pompano Beach with a current Business Tax Receipt. Proposers who are unable to meet the recommended voluntary goals should also provide the Local Business Unavailability Form (Exhibit G,) listing firms that were contacted but not available, and the Good Faith Effort Report (Exhibit H) describing the efforts made to include local business participation in the contract.

#### 6. Required Proposal Submittal

#### Submission/Format Requirements

L-40-15 3 Initial

Submit one (1) original unbound proposal and five (\_5\_) bound photocopies of the proposal. Use 8 ½" x 11" plain white paper; proposal to be typed, and signed by an authorized representative who is able to contractually bind the Proposer. In addition, Proposers must submit one (1) original copy of the Proposal on electronic media in printable Adobe or Microsoft Word format (or other format approved by the City). Duplicate copies must contain all information included in the original submittal. Failure to adhere to the submittal quantity criteria may result in the Proposal being considered non-responsive.

**Information to be included in the proposal**: In order to maintain comparability and expedite the review process, it is required that proposals be organized in the manner specified below, with tabs or dividers between the sections:

#### Title page:

Show the project name and number, the name of the Proposer's firm, address, telephone number, name of contact person and the date.

#### **Table of Contents:**

Include a clear identification of the material by section and by page.

#### Letter of Interest:

A Letter of Interest, signed by an authorized representative of your firm, expressing your understanding of the project and expressing a positive commitment to provide the services described herein. In the letter, include:

- complete corporate name of the primary firm responding
- applicable Federal Tax Identification Number
- address
- · telephone and fax numbers
- name, title, and email of the person to contact regarding your submission

Please limit this section to two pages.

#### **Project Team Form:**

Submit a completed "Project Team" form. The purpose of this form is to identify the key members of your team, including any specialty subconsultants.

#### **Organizational Chart:**

Specifically identify the management plan (if needed) and provide an organizational chart for the team. The proposer must describe at a minimum, the basic approach to these projects, to include reporting hierarchy of staff and sub-consultants, clarify the individual(s) responsible for the co-ordination of separate components of the scope of services.

#### Statement of Skills and Experience of Project Team:

Describe the experience of the entire project team as it relates to the types of projects described in the Scope section of this RLI. Include the experience of the prime consultants as well as other members of the project team; i.e., additional personnel, sub-consultants, branch office, team members, and other resources anticipated to be utilized for this project. Name specific projects (successfully completed within the past five years) where the team members have performed similar projects previously.

#### **Resumes of Key Personnel**

Include resumes for key personnel for prime and subconsultants.

L-40-15	4	Initial

#### References:

References for past projects in the tri-county area (Broward, Palm Beach, and Miami-Dade.) If past projects are not located in the tri-county area references for past projects in other areas of the State of Florida can be provided. Describe the scope of each project in physical terms and by cost, describe the respondent's responsibilities, and provide the contact information (name, email, telephone number) of an individual in a position of responsibility who can attest to respondent's activities in relation to the project.

List any prior projects performed for the City of Pompano Beach.

#### Office Locations:

Identify the location of the office from which services will be rendered, and the number of professional and administrative staff at the prime office location. Also identify the location of office(s) of the prime and/or sub consultants that may be utilized to support any or all of the professional services listed above and the number of professional and administrative staff at the prime office location.

If firms are situated outside the local area, (Broward, Palm Beach, and Miami-Dade counties) include a brief statement as to whether or not the firm will arrange for a local office during the term of the contract, if necessary.

#### **Minority Business Enterprises:**

It is the intent of the City of Pompano Beach to encourage minority and women owned firms to participate in the process. The methods by which this is accomplished should be developed and presented by the respondents in their submissions.

For any member of your team that is a certified Minority Business Enterprise (as defined by the State of Florida) you must include copies of their certifications for them to be considered toward Item 5 in the evaluation criteria. Complete Exhibit I and attach certificates.

#### **Small Business Enterprises:**

Completed SBE program forms, Exhibits A-D. Include copies of all SBE certifications for firms listed on these forms.

#### Local Businesses:

Completed Local Business program forms, Exhibits E-H.

#### Litigation:

Disclose any litigation within the past five (5) years arising out your firm's performance, including status/outcome.

#### Acknowledgement of all Addenda issued.

#### City Forms:

Responses should include all pages of this solicitation, initialed where indicated, in addition to completed SBE and Local Business forms.

L-40-15	
	Initia

#### 7. Insurance

The insurance described herein reflects the insurance requirements deemed necessary for this contract by the City. It is not necessary to have this level of insurance in effect at the time of submittal, but certificates indicating that the insurance is currently carried or a letter from the Carrier indicating upgrade ability will speed the review process to determine the most qualified Proposer.

The successful Proposer(s) shall not commence operations until certification or proof of insurance, detailing terms and provisions of coverage, has been received and approved by the City of Pompano Beach Risk Manager.

The following insurance coverage shall be required.

a. Worker's Compensation Insurance covering all employees and providing benefits as required by Florida Statute, Chapter 440, regardless of the size of the company (number of employees). The Contractor further agrees to be responsible for employment, control and conduct of its employees and for any injury sustained by such employees in the course of their employment.

#### b. <u>Liability Insurance</u>

- 1) Naming the City of Pompano Beach as an additional insured, on General Liability Insurance only, in connection with work being done under this contract.
- 2) Such Liability insurance shall include the following checked types of insurance and indicated minimum policy limits.

(The rest of this page has been left blank intentionally.)

			lnı	
L-4				

#### **LIMITS OF LIABILITY**

each Type of Insurance occurrence aggregate GENERAL LIABILITY: MINIMUM \$1,000,000 per OCCURRENCE/\$1,000,000 AGGREGATE \* Policy to be written on a claims incurred basis XX comprehensive form XX premises - operations bodily injury explosion & collapse hazard property damage underground hazard products/completed operations hazard bodily injury and XX contractual insurance property damage XX broad form property combined damage XX independent contractors XX personal injury personal injury AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: MINIMUM \$1,000,000 per OCCURRENCE/\$1,000,000 **AGGREGATE** bodily injury (each person) bodily injury XX comprehensive form (each accident) XX owned property damage XX hired bodily injury and XX non-owned property damage combined **REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY** XX comprehensive form Consultant must show proof they have this coverage. **EXCESS LIABILITY** bodily injury and XX umbrella form property damage XX other than umbrella combined \$2,000,000. \$2,000,000. XX PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY \$2,000,000. \$2,000,000. \* Policy to be written on a claims made basis

L-40-15

The certification or proof of insurance must contain a provision for notification to the City, and the City's contracted law enforcement provider if applicable, thirty (30) days in advance of any material change in coverage or cancellation.

The successful Proposer shall furnish to the City the certification or proof of insurance required by the provisions set forth above, within ten (10) days after notification of award of contract.

#### 8. <u>Selection/Evaluation Process</u>

A Selection/Evaluation Committee will be appointed to select the most qualified firm(s). The Selection/Evaluation Committee will present their findings to the City Commission.

The Committee will rank responses based upon the following criteria.

<u>Criteria</u> <u>Point Range</u>

- 1. Prior experience of the firm with projects of similar size and complexity: 0-45 points
  - a. Number of similar projects
  - b. Complexity of similar projects
  - c. References from past projects performed by the firm
  - d. Previous projects performed for the City (provide description)
  - e. Litigation within the past 5 years arising out of firm's performance (list, describe outcome)
- 2. Qualifications of personnel including sub consultants:

0-35 points

- a. Organizational chart for project
- b. Number of technical staff
- c. Qualifications of technical staff:
  - (1) Number of licensed staff
  - (2) Education of staff
  - (3) Experience of staff on similar projects
- 3. Proximity of the nearest office to the project location:

0-10 points

- a. Location
- b. Number of staff at the nearest office
- Is the firm a certified minority business enterprise as defined by the Florida Small and Minority Business Assistance Act of 1985? (Certification of any sub-contractors should also be included with the response.)

<u>Value of Work Previously Awarded to Firm (Tie-breaker)</u> - In the event of a tie, the firm with the lowest value of work as a prime contractor on City of Pompano Beach projects within the last five years will receive the higher ranking, the firm with the next lowest value of work shall receive the next highest ranking, and so on. The analysis of past work will be based on the City's Purchase Order and payment records.

The Committee has the option to use the above criteria for the initial ranking to short-list Proposers and to use an ordinal ranking system to score short-listed Proposers following

L-40-15	0	T *.*
1 = /1(1=13)	V	Initia
1,==+(/= 1.)	Δ	IIIII I

presentations (if deemed necessary) with a score of "1" assigned to the short-listed Proposer deemed most qualified by the Committee.

Each firm should submit documentation that evidences the firm's capability to provide the services required for the Committee's review for short listing purposes. After an initial review of the Proposals, the City may invite Proposers for an interview to discuss the proposal and meet firm representatives, particularly key personnel who would be assigned to the project. Should interviews be deemed necessary, it is understood that the City shall incur no costs as a result of this interview, nor bear any obligation in further consideration of the submittal.

When more than three responses are received, the committee shall furnish the City Commission (for their approval) a listing, in ranked order, of no fewer than three firms deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the service. If three or less firms respond to the RLI, the list will contain the ranking of all responses.

The City Commission has the authority to (including, but not limited to); approve the recommendation; reject the recommendation and direct staff to re-advertise the solicitation; or, review the responses themselves and/or request oral presentations and determine a ranking order that may be the same or different from what was originally presented to the City Commission.

#### 9. Hold Harmless and Indemnification

Proposer covenants and agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officers, agents, and employees from any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge or expense arising out of any act, action, neglect or omission by the Proposer, whether direct or indirect, or whether to any person or property to which the City or said parties may be subject, except that neither the Proposer nor any of its subcontractors will be liable under this section for damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or property directly caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the City or any of its officers, agents or employees.

#### 10. Retention of Records and Right to Access

The selected firm shall maintain during the term of the contract all books of account, receipt invoices, reports and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and standards. The form of all records and reports shall be subject to the approval of the City's Internal Auditor. The selected firm must comply with the Internal Auditor's recommendation for changes, additions, or deletions. The City's Internal Auditor must be permitted during normal business hours to audit and examine the books of account, reports, and records relating to this contract. The selected firm shall maintain and make available such records and files for the duration of the contract and retain them until the expiration of three years after final payment under the contract.

#### 11. Communications

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by the firm as a result of any discussions with any City employee. Only those communications, which are in writing from the City, may be considered as a duly authorized expression on behalf of the

T 4	40-15	^	т.		
_4	10-15	U	Ini	111	2

City. In addition, only communications from firms that are signed and in writing will be recognized by the City as duly authorized expressions on behalf of firms.

#### 12. No Discrimination

There shall be no discrimination as to race, sex, color, age, religion, or national origin in the operations conducted under any contract with the City.

#### 13. <u>Independent Contractor</u>

The selected firm will conduct business as an independent contractor under the terms of this contract. Personnel services provided by the firm shall be by employees of the firm and subject to supervision by the firm, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the City. Personnel policies, tax responsibilities, social security and health insurance, employee benefits, purchasing policies and other similar administrative procedures applicable to services rendered under this agreement shall be those of the firm.

#### 14. Staff Assignment

The City of Pompano Beach reserves the right to approve or reject, for any reasons, Proposer's staff assigned to this project at any time. Background checks may be required.

#### 15. Contract Terms

The contract resulting from this RLI shall include, but not be limited to the following terms:

The contract shall include as a minimum, the entirety of this RLI document, together with the successful Proposer's proposal. Contract shall be prepared by the City of Pompano Beach City Attorney.

If the City of Pompano Beach defends any claim, demand, cause of action, or lawsuit arising out of any act, action, negligent acts or negligent omissions, or willful misconduct of the contractor, its employees, agents or servants during the performance of the contract, whether directly or indirectly, contractor agrees to reimburse the City of Pompano Beach for all expenses, attorney's fees, and court costs incurred in defending such claim, cause of action or lawsuit.

#### 16. Waiver

It is agreed that no waiver or modification of the contract resulting from this RLI, or of any covenant, condition or limitation contained in it shall be valid unless it is in writing and duly executed by the party to be charged with it, and that no evidence of any waiver or modification shall be offered or received in evidence in any proceeding, arbitration, or litigation between the parties arising out of or affecting this contract, or the right or obligations of any party under it, unless such waiver or modification is in writing, duly executed as above. The parties agree that the provisions of this paragraph may not be waived except by a duly executed writing.

#### 17. Survivorship Rights

L-4		ni		

This contract resulting from this RLI shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective parties and their executors, administrators, heirs, personal representative, successors and assigns.

#### 18. Termination

The contract resulting from this RLI may be terminated by the City of Pompano Beach without cause upon providing contractor with a least sixty (60) days prior written notice.

Should either party fail to perform any of its obligations under the contract resulting from this RLI for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of such failure, the non-defaulting part will have the right to terminate the contract immediately upon delivery of written notice to the defaulting part of its election to do so. The foregoing rights of termination are in addition to any other rights and remedies that such party may have.

#### 19. <u>Manner of Performance</u>

Proposer agrees to perform its duties and obligations under the contract resulting from this RLI in a professional manner and in accordance with all applicable local, federal and state laws, rules and regulations.

Proposer agrees that the services provided under the contract resulting from this RLI shall be provided by employees that are educated, trained and experienced, certified and licensed in all areas encompassed within their designated duties. Proposer agrees to furnish the City of Pompano Beach with all documentation, certification, authorization, license, permit, or registration currently required by applicable laws or rules and regulations. Proposer further certifies that it and its employees are now in and will maintain good standing with such governmental agencies and that it and its employees will keep all license, permits, registration, authorization or certification required by applicable laws or regulations in full force and effect during the term of this contract. Failure of Proposer to comply with this paragraph shall constitute a material breach of contract.

#### 20. Acceptance Period

Proposals submitted in response to this RLI must be valid for a period no less than ninety (90) days from the closing date of this solicitation.

#### 21. RLI Conditions and Provisions

The proposal must be submitted to the City on or before the time and date stated herein. All Proposers, by submission of a proposal, shall agree to comply with all of the conditions, requirements and instructions of this RLI as stated or implied herein. All proposals and supporting materials submitted will become the property of the City.

Exceptions or deviations to this solicitation may not be added after the submittal date.

All Proposers are required to provide all information requested in this RLI. Failure to do so may result in disqualification of the proposal.

The City reserves the right to postpone or cancel this RLI, or reject all proposals, if in its sole discretion it deems it to be in the best interest of the City to do so.

L-40-15	Initia

The City reserves the right to waive any technical or formal errors or omissions and to reject all proposals, or to award contract for the items herein, in part or whole, if it is determined to be in the best interests of the City to do so.

The City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Proposer in the preparation of proposals or for any work performed in connection therein.

#### 22. Standard Provisions

#### a. Governing Law

Any agreement resulting from this RLI shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida, and the venue for any legal action relating to such agreement will be in Broward County, Florida.

#### b. Licenses

In order to perform public work, the successful Proposer shall: Be licensed to do business in Florida, if an entity, and hold or obtain such Contractor' and Business Licenses if required by State Statutes or local ordinances.

#### c. Conflict Of Interest

For purposes of determining any possible conflict of interest, each Proposer must disclose if any Elected Official, Appointed Official, or City Employee is also an owner, corporate officer, or an employee of the firm. If any Elected Official, Appointed Official, or City Employee is an owner, corporate officer, or an employee, the Proposer must file a statement with the Broward County Supervisor of Elections pursuant to §112.313, Florida Statutes.

#### d. <u>Drug Free Workplace</u>

The selected firm(s) will be required to verify they will operate a "Drug Free Workplace" as set forth in Florida Statute, 287.087.

#### e. <u>Public Entity Crimes</u>

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for public entity crime may not submit a proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit proposals on leases of real property to public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Florida Statute, Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

#### f. Patent Fees, Royalties, And Licenses

If the selected Proposer requires or desires to use any design, trademark, device, material or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, the selected Proposer and his surety shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, device, trademark, copyright, material or process in connection with the work agreed to be performed and shall indemnify the City from any cost, expense, royalty or damage which the City may be obligated to pay by reason of any infringement at any time during or after completion of the work.

#### g. Familiarity With Laws

It is assumed the selected firm(s) will be familiar with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may affect its services pursuant to this RLI. Ignorance on the part of the firm will in no way relieve the firm from responsibility.

#### h. Withdrawal Of Proposals

A firm may withdraw its proposal without prejudice no later than the advertised deadline for submission of proposals by written communication to the General Services Department, 1190 N.E. 3<sup>rd</sup> Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida 33060.

#### i. Composition Of Project Team

Firms are required to commit that the principals and personnel named in the proposal will perform the services throughout the contractual term unless otherwise provided for by way of a negotiated contract or written amendment to same executed by both parties. No diversion or substitution of principals or personnel will be allowed unless a written request that sets forth the qualifications and experience of the proposed replacement(s) is submitted to and approved by the City in writing.

#### j. <u>Invoicing/Payment</u>

All invoices should be sent to City of Pompano Beach, Accounts Payable, P.O. Drawer 1300, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33061. In accordance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 218, payment will be made within 45 days after receipt of a proper invoice.

#### k. Public Records

- The City of Pompano Beach is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall comply with Florida's Public Records Law. Specifically, the Contractor shall:
  - a. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the City in order to perform the service;
  - Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that

T 40 10	1.0	T *.* 1
1 -411-15	1.4	Initial
L-40-15	1.3	шшаі

does not exceed that provided in chapter 119, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise provided by law;

- Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and exempt from public record requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law; and
- d. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the City, at no cost, all public records in possession of the contractor upon termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt. All records stored electronically must be provided to the City in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the agency.
- 2. The failure of Contractor to comply with the provisions set forth in this Article shall constitute a Default and Breach of this Agreement and the City shall enforce the Default in accordance with the provisions set forth herein.

#### 23. Questions and Communication

All questions regarding the RLI are to be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Office, 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C (Front), Pompano Beach, Florida 33060, fax (954) 786-4168, or email <a href="mailto:purchasing@copbfl.com">purchasing@copbfl.com</a>. All questions must include the inquiring firm's name, address, telephone number and RLI name and number. Questions must be received at least seven (7) calendar days before the scheduled solicitation opening. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Any addendum necessary to answer questions will be posted to the City's website, and it is the Proposer's responsibility to obtain all addenda before submitting a response to the solicitation.

#### 24. Addenda

The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or additional information can be given. If any addenda are issued to this solicitation the City will attempt to notify all known prospective Proposers, however, it shall be the responsibility of each Proposer, prior to submitting their response, to contact the City Purchasing Office at (954) 786-4098 to determine if addenda were issued and to make such addenda a part of their proposal.

L-40-15	14	Initial
L-+0-13	AT .	minai

#### **PROJECT TEAM**

		KLI NOMBER	
		Federal I.D.#	
PRIME			
Role	Name of Individual Assigned to Project	Number of Years Experience	Education, Degrees
Principal-In-Charge Project Manager			
Asst. Project Manager	·		
Other Key Member			
Other Key Member		_	
SUB-CONSULTANT			
Role	Company Name and Address of Office Handling This Project	Name of Individuate to the Project	al Assigned
Surveying		_	
Landscaping			
Engineering		_	
Other Key Member		_	
Other Key Member			
Other Key Member			
Other Key Member			
(use attachments if nec	essary)	_	

L-40-15

15

Initial

# EXHIBIT "A" CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION FORM

RLI Number & Title:		Contractor's Name:	
Name of Firm	Contact Person, Telephone Number	Type of Work to be Performed	Contract Percentage of Work
(INCLUDE CERTIFICATI	ES FOR ANY FIRMS LISTED	ON THIS PAGE)	
	FOR (	CITY USE ONLY	
Total SBE Contract Partic	cipation	_	
Are documents requested	submitted accordingly _	YESNO	
L-40-15	16	Initial	

# EXHIBIT "B" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS A SUBCONTRACTOR

RL	.I Number	
TO:(Name of Prime or 0	General Contractor)	_
•	•	ork in connection with the above
an individual		a corporation
a partnership		a joint venture
The undersigned is prepared to Contract, as hereafter describe	•	work in connection with the above
	<del></del> -	
(Date)	(Name	of SBE Contractor)
	RY·	

## EXHIBIT "C" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE UNAVAILABILITY FORM

RLI#

		(Name and Title)		
of		, certify tha	at on the	day of
	,	, I invited the following SBE	CONTRACTO	OR(s) to bid
work items	to be performed in	the City of Pompano Beach:		
	E Contractor Address	Work Items Sought	(i.e., Material	of Bid Sought Unit Price, s/Labor, Labo nly, etc.)
Said SBE C	ONTRACTOR(s):			
<del></del>	Did not bid in res	ponse to the invitation		
	Submitted a bid t	hat was not the low responsible	e bid	
	Other:			
		Dat		

# EXHIBIT "D" SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE GOOD FAITH EFFORT REPORT

RL	#	<b>!</b>
----	---	----------

	What portions of the contract have you identified as SBE opportunities?
	Did you provide adequate information to identified SBE? Please comment of how you provided this information.
-	
ı	Did you send written notices to SBEs?
	Yes No If yes, please include copy of the notice and the list of individuals who were forwarded copies of the notices.
I	Did you advertise in local publications?
ı	Yes No f yes, please attach copies of the ads, including name and dates of publicat
	Did you contact any organizations with large constituents of SBE members to ossible sub-contractors? Please attach list of resource organizations used
٧	What type of efforts did you make to assist SBEs in contracting with you?
-	iet the CDEs vou will utilize and subscrites to recenters of work
_	ist the SBEs you will utilize and subcontract percentage of work.
	19
5	19

Other comments: _		

Note: Please attach the unavailability letters with this report.

L-40-15 20 Initial

### <u>EXHIBIT E</u> <u>CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA</u> <u>LOCAL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION FORM</u>

Number & Title:		Prime Contractor's Name:	
Name of Firm, Address	Contact Person, Telephone Number	Type of Work to be Performed	% of Work
-			

L-40-15 21 \_\_\_\_Initial

#### EXHIBIT F LOCAL BUSINESS LETTER OF INTENT TO PERFORM AS A SUBCONTRACTOR

RLI Number

TO:	(Name of Prime or Genera	al Bidder)		_
	undersigned City of Pompar in connection with the abov		ntends to perform subcontract below)	cting
	an individual		a corporation	
	a partnership		a joint venture	
	ndersigned is prepared to pact, as hereafter described		work in connection with the	above
			-	
		_		
	(Date)	(Name of Lo	cal Business Contractor)	-
		BY:		_

#### EXHIBIT G LOCAL BUSINESS UNAVAILABILITY FORM

RLI#\_\_\_\_\_

l,		
Ι,	(Name and Title	)
·	, certify t	that on theday of
,, I invited the forms to be performed in the City o	ollowing LOCAL E f Pompano Beach	BUSINESSES to bid work
Business Name, Address Work		Form of Bid Sought (i.e., Unit Price, Materials/Labor, Labor Only, etc.)
	·	
id Local Businesses:		
Did not bid	in response to the	e invitation
Submitted a	a bid which was n	ot the low responsible bid
Other:		
	Signatur	e:
	Date:	
ete: Attach additional documents	as available.	
40-15	23	

#### EXHIBIT H GOOD FAITH EFFORT REPORT LOCAL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION

RLI#
------

	ovide adequate information to identified Local Businesses? Plan how you provided this information.
Did you ser	nd written notices to Local Businesses?
Yes	No
	se include copy of the notice and the list of individuals who we copies of the notices.
Did you adv	vertise in local publications?
Yes	No
f yes, pleas	se attach copies of the ads, including name and dates of public
What type o ∕ou ?	of efforts did you make to assist Local Businesses in contracting

L-40-15

Other comments:	-	

#### **EXHIBIT I**

#### MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION

RL	<b>  #</b>		

List all members of your team that are a certified Minority Business Enterprise (as defined by the State of Florida.) You must include copies of the MBE certificates for each firm listed.

Name of Firm	Certificate Included?
1.	
	_

L-40-15 26 Initial

## STATEMENT OF NO RESPONSE RLI L-40-15 CONTINUING CONTRACT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR WATER AND REUSE TREATMENT PLANT PROJECTS

If you do not intend to submit on this requirement, please complete and return this form by the submittal deadline to the City of Pompano Beach Purchasing Division, Building C, 1190 N.E. 3<sup>rd</sup> Avenue, Pompano Beach, Florida 33060; this form may be faxed to (954) 786-4168. Failure to respond, either by submitting a proposal, or by submitting a "Statement of No Response" form, may result in your firm's name being removed from our mailing list.

WE, the undersignesson(s):	ned, have declined to submit on this solicitation for the following
	We do not offer this product or an equivalent
	Our workload would not permit us to perform
	Insufficient time to respond to the Request for Letters of Interest
	Unable to meet specifications (explain below)
	Other (specify below)
Remarks	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
COMPANY NAME	
ADDRESS	
	E

Page 27

Initial

RLI L-40-15



# Exhibit B CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC. FEE SCHEDULE

As of October 2015

	Ноц	ırly Rate
Engineers/Scientists		
Staff Professional	\$	120.00
Assistant Professional	\$	138.00
Professional	\$	152.00
Project Professional	\$	184.00
Lead Project Professional	\$	260.00
Senior Professional	\$	260.00
Senior Process Specialist	\$	290.00
Technicians/Designers		
Technician	\$	88.00
Senior Technician	\$	116.00
Designer	\$	138.00
Lead Designer	\$	193.00
Senior Designer	\$	230.00
Support Staff		
Clerical	\$	65.00
<b>Document Processing</b>	\$	104.00
Administrative Assistant	\$	79.00
Senior Administrator	\$	104.00
Field Staff		
Inspector	\$	165.00
Senior Inspector	\$	215.00
Project Equipment & Communication Charge	\$	12.00
(PCEC) Per DL Hour		
Other Direct Expenses		
Travel and Subsistence		at cost
Mileage	IRS Reimbursement Rate	
Subconsultants		cost & 10%
Other Direct Costs		at cost

This fee schedule is subject to annual revisions due to labor adjustments





#### CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

11/11/2015

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

iMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTINUED HONGE IN HOU C					
PRODUCER Risk Strategies	Company	CONTACT NAME:	Risk Strategies Company	у	
2040 Main Stre	et, Suite 450	PHONE (A/C, No. Ext):	949-242-9240	FAX (A/C, No);	
Irvine, CA 92614		E-MAIL ADDRESS;	syoung@risk-strategies.		
			INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVER	AGE	NAIC #
www.risk-strategies.com	CA DOI License No. 0F06675	INSURER A: H	anover Insurance Company		22292
NSURED		INSURER B : No	ational Union Fire Insurance C	ompany	19445
Carollo Engineers, Inc 2700 Ygnacio Valley R	oad #300	INSURER C: Massachusetts Bay Insurance Company			22306
Walnut Creek CA 94598		INSURER D : Co	ontinental Casualty Company		20443
		INSURER E :			
		INSURER F :			
COVERAGES	CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 27271126		REVISION	NUMBER:	

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 27271126

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUICED BY PAID CLAIMS.

E	EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.						
INSR	TYPE OF INSURANCE	NSD WYD	POLICY NUMBER	POLICY EFF (MM/DD/YYYY)	POLICY EXP (MM/DD/YYYY)	LIMITS	
Α	COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY	1	ZHF894489204	12/31/2014	12/31/2015	Didi Oddor (Inc.	\$ \$1,000,000
1	CLAIMS-MADE / OCCUR					DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence)	\$ \$1,000,000
	✓ Deductible \$0					MED EXP (Any one person)	\$ \$25,000
						PERSONAL & ADVINJURY	\$ \$1,000,000
	GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:					GENERAL AGGREGATE	\$ \$2,000,000
	POLICY V PRO-					PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	\$ \$2,000,000
	OTHER:						\$
С	AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY	1	ADFA48696300	12/31/2014	12/31/2015	COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ex accident)	\$ \$1,000,000
1	✓ ANY AUTO	`				BODILY INJURY (Per person)	\$
1	ALL OWNED SCHEDULED AUTOS				1	BOOILY INJURY (Per accident)	\$
	AUTOS AUTOS AUTOS NON-OWNED AUTOS					PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per socident)	\$
						Deductible: Comp/Coll	s \$1,000
В	✓ UMBRELLA LIAB ✓ OCCUR		BE019426390	12/31/2014	12/31/2015	EACH OCCURRENCE	\$ \$2,000,000
	EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE					AGGREGATE	\$ \$2,000,000
	DED ✓ RETENTION \$ 10,000						\$
C	WORKERS COMPENSATION		WDF895749906	12/31/2014	12/31/2015	✓ PER ✓ OTH-	Deductible: \$0
	ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE	N/A				E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	\$ \$1,000,000
1	(Mandetory In NH)	N/ A				E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE	\$ \$1,000,000
	If yea, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below					E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	
D	Professional Liability	9	AEH288354410	7/4/2015	7/4/2016	Each Claim:	\$2,000,000
	Unlimited Prior Acts					Aggregate:	\$2,000,000
		9				Deductible:	\$400,000
1	1 1		I .		1		

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Projects as on file with the insured including but not limited to: Continuing Contract for Engineering Services for Water & Reuse Treatment Plant Projects. Request for Letters of Interest L-40-15. City of Pompano Beach is included as additional insured with respects to General & Auto Liability.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER	CANCELLATION				
City of Pompano Beach 1190 N.E. 3rd Ave., Build Pompano Beach FL 33Q	ing C ON MANAGEMENT	SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.			
	2040	AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE  WHIS CRISTS			

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Michael Christian